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X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
OR
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Delaware 20-1945088
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39550 Orchard Hill Place Drive
Novi, Michigan 48375
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: None.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act:
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Common Stock, par value $0.001 per st OTC Bulletin Boarc
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a walbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities
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to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es x No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokilib site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiule 405 of Regulation S-T during the precedi@gribnths (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post filed). Yes x No ~

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it oontained herein, and will not be
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10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated™fifaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated file h Accelerated filel X
Non-accelerated file - Smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge
Act). Yes ™ No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant Had &ll documents and reports required to be fidgcbections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent toitallition of securities under a plan confirmedaby
courtt Yesx No -~

The aggregate market value of voting and non-vatommgmon stock held by non-affiliates as of June281,1 was $437,286,166.
The number of the registrant’s shares of commockst0.001 par value per share, outstanding asas€M1, 2012 was 18,322,693 shares.
Documents Incorporated by Reference

Certain portions, as expressly described in ttpsnte of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for tb&2 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are
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PART I

ltem 1. Business

Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. (together with itesmidated subsidiaries, the “Company,” “Cooperm8tad,” “we” or “us”)is a leading
manufacturer of fluid handling, body sealing, amtiA/ibration Systems (“AVS”) components, systemshsystems, and modules. Our
products are primarily for use in passenger vehialed light trucks that are manufactured by glalbmotive original equipment
manufacturers (“OEMs”) and replacement markets.cdfeduct substantially all of our activities througlr subsidiaries.

We believe that we are the largest global prodotéody sealing systems, the second largest glatoalucer of the types of fluid
handling products that we manufacture and oneefdtgest North American producers of AVS produéfs. design and manufacture our
products in each major region of the world throagtisciplined and sustained approach to enginearidgoperational excellence. We operate
in 71 manufacturing locations and nine design, megiing, and administrative locations in 19 cowstaround the world.

Approximately 81% of our sales in 2011 were to OEMsluding Ford Motor Company (“Ford”), General Mcs Company (“GM”)and
Chrysler Group LLC ( “Chrysler”) (collectively, ¢h*Detroit 3”), Fiat, Volkswagen/Audi Group, RentMissan, PSA Peugeot Citroén,
Daimler, BMW, Toyota, Volvo, Jaguar/Land Rover dthohda. The remaining 19% of our 2011 sales weragly to Tier | and Tier Il
automotive suppliers and non-automotive manufacsute 2011, our products were found in each of2b¢op-selling models in North
America and in 19 of the 20 top-selling models urdpe. Our principal executive offices are locaae89550 Orchard Hill Place Drive, Novi,
Michigan 48375, and our telephone number is (288)5900. Additional information is available at auebsite at www.cooperstandard.com,
which is not a part of this Annual Report on ForgaKL

Corporate History and Business Developments

Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. was established 04123 a Delaware corporation and began operatiidegember 23, 2004 when it
acquired the automotive segment of Cooper Tire &tikm Company (the “2004 Acquisition”). Cooper-StarttiHoldings Inc. operates the
business primarily through its principal operatgupsidiary, Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc.

In February 2006, the Company acquired fluid hamgdfystems operations in North America, EuropeGinida (collectively, “FHS")
from ITT Industries, Inc. In August 2007, we acggircertain Metzeler Automotive Profile Systems isgadystems operations in Europe
(“MAPS”) together with a MAPS joint venture intetés China from Automotive Sealing Systems S.A. ¥éenpleted a related acquisition of a
MAPS joint venture interest in India (“MAP Indiai) December 2007. In addition to these transactimesacquired a hose manufacturing
operation in Mexico from the Gates Corporation arfdel rail manufacturing operation in Mexico fréxatomotive Component Holdings,
LLC, in 2005 and 2007, respectively. In March 20d/&,acquired USi, Inc., a supplier of coatingsfiastic injection molding products, from
Ikyuo Co. Ltd. of Japan. In May 2011, we establishgoint venture with Fonds de Modernisation dgaigementiers Automobiles (“FMEA”)
that combined the Company’s French body sealingatipes and the operations of Société des Polyniae®-Thomas (“SPBT"), a French
supplier of anti-vibration systems, low pressuredw as well as body sealing products.

The Company has two operating divisions, North Aogeand International (covering Europe, South Acgeend Asia Pacific). This
operating structure allows us to offer our full ffolio of products and support our regional andogllocustomers with complete engineering and
manufacturing expertise in all major regions of wld.

We have implemented a number of operational retstring initiatives in recent years, including thelzal reorganization of our operati
structure in 2009, the closure or consolidatiofectlities in North America,

3



Table of Contents

Europe, South America, Australia and Asia and dweganization of our French body sealing operatmmsuant to our joint venture agreernr
with FMEA. For information on these restructurimgtiatives, see Note 6. “Restructuring” to the aditated financial statements.

Reorganization

On August 3, 2009, Cooper-Standard Holdings Ind.each of its direct and indirect wholly-owned Us8bsidiaries (the “Debtorsfijed
voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 Kigbter 11”) of title 11 of the United States Cotte (‘Bankruptcy Code”), in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (tHgankruptcy Court”). On August 4, 2009, our Canadsabsidiary, Cooper-Standard
Automotive Canada Limited (“CSA Canada”) commenpeateedings seeking relief from its creditors undanada’s Companies’ Creditors
Arrangement Act in the Ontario Superior Court oftlte (Commercial List) in Toronto, Canada (the fi@ian Court”). Our subsidiaries and
operations outside the United States and Canadanegrincluded in the Chapter 11 cases or the Gangudoceedings (other than CSA
Canada) and continued to operate in the ordinanyseoof business.

On March 26, 2010, the Debtors filed with the Bauitcy Court a Second Amended Joint Chapter 11 &fl&eorganization (as amend
and supplemented, the “Plan of Reorganization”)May 12, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court entered anrocdafirming our Plan of
Reorganization. On May 27, 2010 (the “Effective &@atwe consummated the reorganization and emerged Chapter 11. For further
information see Note 3. “Reorganization under Caapi Bankruptcy Code.”

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Aacting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standa@bdification (“ASC”) 852, “
Reorganization;,” we adopted fresh-start accounting upon our eerarg from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings andrbe@ new entity for
financial reporting purposes as of June 1, 201@oAdingly, the consolidated financial statementsie reporting entity subsequent to
emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedihgs‘@uccessor”) are not comparable to the congdelitifinancial statements for the
reporting entity prior to emergence from Chaptebahkruptcy proceedings (the “Predecessor”). Thari@any,”"when used in reference to
period subsequent to emergence from Chapter 11ripatick proceedings, refers to the Successor, amthwhked in reference to periods prio
emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceediefgsto the Predecessor. For further informasee, Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accounting,” to
the consolidated financial statements includedhi® Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Business Strategy
Sustain and improve operational excellence to sigéren global organizatior

We seek to optimize our business and cost strutdusacceed in the rapidly changing global autoweoitidustry, with an emphasis on
reducing overall costs and creating more efficreahufacturing operations. Our primary areas of $cane:

. Identifying and implementing lean manufacturindiaiives. Our lean manufacturing initiatives focus on optimg manufacturing
by eliminating waste, controlling costs and enhaggroductivity. Lean manufacturing initiativesegtch of our manufacturing and
design facilities continue to be an important eletiie sustaining our operational excellen

. Expand global footprin. We are supplementing our Western European opesatiith Central and Eastern European facilitie
support our customers’ evolving footprints. In aibeli, we continue to expand our operations in Chindia, South America and
Mexico. During 2011, we acquired a 20% ownershipriest in a joint venture in Thailand and openegrafions in Romani:

. Consolidating facilities to reduce cost structurgdamprove capacity utilizatio. Our capacity utilization efforts are designet
streamline our global operations and include takidgantage of opportunities to reduce our overst structure by consolidating
and closing facilities. For examp
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during 2011, we announced the closure of a manufagt facility in North America and in Europe andralecision to establish
centralized shared services function in Europe viMecontinue to take a disciplined approach tolaating opportunities that wot
improve our efficiency, profitability and cost stture.

. Maintaining flexibility in all areas of our operatns. Our operational capital needs are generally Idhv@n other companies in our
industry and a portion of our manufacturing equiptrie movable from job-to-job, providing us fleXiby in adapting to market
changes and serving customers worldw

Leverage Technology for Innovation and Grow

We will continue to draw on our technical expertisgrovide customers with innovative solutionsr®agineers combine product des
with a broad understanding of material optionsdiohanced vehicle performance. We believe our réipatéor successful innovation in prod
design and various materials is the reason ouomests consult us early in their vehicle developnaent design process of their next gener:
vehicles.

Recent innovations that highlight our ability toxdeine materials and product design expertise cgole in the following products:

. Safe See™. Safe See™ is a body sealing product featuring sensors intitt the seal capable of reversing power windaesys
and partitions to prevent injur

. New Mult-State Mount The vacuum actuated mount responds to bi-modhtrémodal inputs from the onboard vehicle compute
As a result of receiving inputs from the on-boaethicle computer we are able to more precisely theanounts in real time to the
engine/vehicle frequency characteristics thus plisig engine noise and vibration during varyingidg/road conditions

. Direct Injection Fuel Rai. Direct Injection Fuel Rails draw upon our inndvatwelding and brazing processes as well as
understanding of metal dynamics to create highspurescapability. This allows us to provide fuelsdor advanced direct injection
engines which improve fuel economy and performa

. Stratlink ™. Utilizing our internal material engineering capgies, we have developed a rubber compoundgkdbrms as well as
previously externally sourced compounds, thus figanitly reducing cost

. PlastiCool™. PlastiCool™ is a low cost, low weight, high terrgtare alternative to metal and rubber hose cugretsed in
transmission cooling that offers a more robusttjdesign, improving quality and potentially redugiwarranty costs. Additionally,
because the material is smaller than current @temes, it allows for greater design flexibilit

. Waste Gate ActuatorRelying on our validated Exhaust Gas Reticulatialyes (“EGR”) technology, we have developed
electronically controlled Waste Gate Actuatorsdateol boost pressure and improve the efficienctodhy's advanced turbo engi
systems. Using electronically controlled actuatbescontrol exhaust bypass of turbo systems are @xxurately controlled than
today's current system

Continued emphasis on fuel efficiency, global plats and emerging markets

We believe that by focusing on fuel efficiency, la platforms and emerging markets, we will be ablsolidify and expand our global
leadership position.

. Fuel efficiency. With the recent shift in customer preferencesatallight weight, fuel efficient vehicles, we intkto target sma
car, hybrid and alternative powertrains and incedae content we provide to these platforms. Wbelthat furthering our
position in the small car and hybrid mar
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and alternative powertrains market will allow usriorease market share, create greater economgeslaf and provide mo
opportunities to partner with custome

. Global platforms Our global presence makes us one of the selecti@nufacturers in our product areas who can tdkarstage of
the many business opportunities that are becomiatgdle worldwide as a result of the OEMs’ expangdemphasis on global
platforms. Nine of the top twenty vehicles on whieh had the most content in the fourth quarterQdfl2were based on global
platforms, which is evidence that customers lookgdor global vehicle platform suppac

. Emerging market<China, India and South America will continue torbgions of emphasis as their light vehicle markets
projected to grow substantially as their econorn@tinue to develop. In fact, fifty seven percehglobal vehicle production is
expected to come from emerging markets over thefiexyears (IHS Global Vehicle Production Forecast September2d1).

Developing systems solutions and other ve-added products

We believe that significant opportunities exisgtow by providing complete subsystems, modulesamsgmblies. As a leader in design,
engineering and technical capabilities, we focusngoroving products, developing new technologied mmplementing more efficient proces
in each of our product lines. Our body sealing pats are visible to vehicle passengers and cameelthe vehicle's aesthetic appeal, in
addition to creating a barrier to wind, precipibati dust and noise. As part of the shift in glah&tomer buying patterns to more fuel efficient
vehicles there is an increased importance on astdharmal management systems. Thermal Manageiyetenss regulate the various
powertrain heating/cooling circuits as well as cohtabin temperature. With our ability to provigladitional thermal management products
such as tubes and hoses and new innovative prosiuciisas electronically controlled auxiliary codlpapmps & valves, Throttle Valves and
Waste Gate Actuators we are in a unique positiggréeide complete thermal management systems to tineelemanding requirements of
today’s Hybrid, Electric and Advanced Internal Carstion Engines. Our AVS products are an importantrgbutor to vehicle quality,
significantly improving ride and handling. Our ffuhandling modules and subsystems are designedreeise functionality and decrease costs
to the OEM, which can be the deciding factor inmifg new business.

Pursue acquisitions and alliances to enhance caggieis and accelerate growt

We intend to continue to selectively pursue comgetary acquisitions and joint ventures to enhancecostomer base, geographic
penetration, scale and technology. Consolidati@nigwdustry trend and is encouraged by the OEMsire for fewer supplier relationships.
believe we have a strong platform for growth thitoagquisitions based on our past integration sgeseexperienced management team,
global presence and operational excellence. Intiadgiwe believe joint ventures allow us to pentetr@ew markets with less risk and capital
investment than acquisitions. We currently opetiateugh several successful joint ventures, inclgditose with Nishikawa Rubber Company,
Zhejiang Saiyang Seal Products Co., Ltd., Guyouachhology Co. Ltd. (“Guyoung”), Hubei Jingda PrémisSteel Tube Industry Co., Ltd.
(“Jingda”), Huayu-Cooper Standard Sealing SystemsL@l. (“Huayu”) an affiliate of Shanghai Automed Industry Corporation, Toyoda
Gosei Co., Ltd. (“Toyoda Gosei”) and FMEA.

Developing business in nc-automotive markets

While the automotive industry will continue to ber@ore business, our performance products bussgxsies other industries with
products using our expertise and material compagndapabilities. For example, we supply parts ta@mers for a variety of industry
applications, including aircraft flooring, commeakflooring, insulating sheets for power statiomsn-slip step coverings and rubber for
appliances and construction applications. We abddate products from a wide variety of elastoos@npounds and can custom fit many
applications.
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Products

We supply a diverse range of products on a gloasistto a broad group of customers across a widgeraf vehicles. Our principal
product lines are body and chassis products aidi Hilandling products. For the years ended Dece@®be?2009, 2010, and 2011, body and
chassis products accounted for 65%, 66% and 68%ectively, of our sales, and fluid handling pradwccounted for 35%, 34% and 32%,
respectively, of our sales. The top ten vehicléfpteans we supply accounted for approximately 32%uf sales in 2009, 33% of our sales in
2010 and 32% of our sales in 2011. Our principatpct lines are described below.

Product Lines Solutions Products & Modules Market Position*
Sealing System Protect vehicle interiors from Extruded rubber and Lead position globally
weather, dust and noise intrus  thermoplastic body sealing
for improved driving experience assemblies and modules, exte
and interior trim

Anti-Vibration System: Control and isolate noise al Engine (elastomeric Top 5 globally
vibration in the vehicle to conventional hydraulic & multi-
improve ride and handling state), body mounts

(conventional & hydraulic);
dampers, isolators and sprir

Thermal Management Systems Manage and control vapors and Electromechanical devices, hoseProminent position in Thermal
Emissions coolant systems to increase lines and connection technolo¢ in North America and
powertrain performance & electronic coolant pumps, Emissions in Europe

passenger comfort and emissic  electronic valves, waste gate
systems for peak performance actuator, EGR valves, coolers
and decreased emissions to meeand modules and throttle body

increasing regulatior modules
Fuel Brake Control, sense and deliver fluids Chassis and tank lines, direct  Top 2 globally
to fuel and brake systems injection fuel rails, quick

connects (conventional &
sensing) and sensc

* Market position study conducted by IRN, Inc. 2

Body & chassis product

We are a leading global supplier of automotive bselgling and AVS products. Body sealing productégat vehicle interiors from
water, dust and noise intrusion. AVS products igotand reduce noise and vibration to improve rittk lzandling. Body sealing and AVS
products lead to a better driving experience fboetupants. For the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2011, we generated
approximately 65%, 66% and 68%, respectively, tdltoorporate revenue from the sale of body andsibgroducts (before corporate
eliminations).



Table of Contents

Body sealing

Based on third party analysis, we are the leadiobad supplier of body sealing products to the engtive industry. We are known
throughout the industry to be a leader in providimgpvative design and manufacturing solutionscfamplex automotive designs.

Our body sealing products are comprised of ethyfgopylene diene M-class rubber, (“EPDM-synthetilchier”) and thermoplastic
elastomers, or TPE. The typical production pro@@sslves mixing of rubber compounds, extrusion (suped with metal and woven wire
carriers or unsupported), cutting, notching, forgnimjection molding and assembly. Below is a digsion of our primary sealing products:

Product Category Description

Dynamic seals Designed and used for areas of the vehicle in waighp exists between the vehicle body and moy
closures. The seals function to isolate cockpiupanits and engine components from exterior climate
conditions such as wind noise and water, providiregoccupants with an improved vehicle experience.

Door seals: Sectional seal design that fits the door strecaurd body cabin to seal rain, dust, and noise from
the occupants of vehicles.

Body seal:: Secondary seal used to provide further noiseamsthetic coverage of welt flanges on the vehicle
body.

Hood seals Located on body flanges in the engine compartmestecting against water and dust penetration
while also reducing engine and road noise in thecle cabin during high speed travel.

Trunk lid and lift gate sealsLocated on body flanges in the trunk or lift gatenpartment offering protection
against water and dust penetration.

Lower door seals/rocker see: Offers protection in the “rocker” area againstevaand dust penetration.
Reduces road noise from entering the cabin durigly $peed driving.

Sunroof seals Creates a narrow sealing space and minimizetaesis for the sunroof.

Dynamic Tactile Obstacle Detection Sensor/Proxir@ibstacle Detection Sens: Located in a trim panel or
in a body seal, this product offers a dual modetjdal or proximity, of controlling pinching forcder a
moving panel (e.g. sliding door or lift gat

Static seals Designed for stationary areas of the vehicle bathe seals function to isolate cockpit occupantmfexterior
climate conditions such as wind noise and watemfgroved vehicle experience.

Belt line sea: Provides protection against water, dust and rfoisdriver and passenger door movable glass.

Glass run assembtyEnables the movable door glass and door to farensmirface, improving glass movement
and sealing the vehicle cabin from the exteriolirmment.

Quarter window trim/glass encapsulatiomtegral pillar moldings and decorative plastiawetal corner trims
seal fixed quarter side glass windows.

Appliqués: Also referred to as greenhouse moldings, thesks set as an aesthetic covering for A, B and C
pillars.

Static Tactile Obstacle Detection Sensor/Proxir@ibstacle Detection Sensptocated in a glass run channel
or other static seal, this product offers the cugtioa dual mode; tactical or proximity, of contiredi pinching
forces of a moving window

Convertible seals Sealing materials that combine compressibility veitiperior design for use on a convertible vehiofé tep
weather sealing applicatio
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Anti-Vibration Systems

Based on third party analysis, we are one of thditey suppliers of AVS products in North Americald&urope. We are known in North
America for utilizing our advanced development #&ting of AVS products and subsystems to providevative solutions.

Our AVS products include components manufacturet warious types of rubber—natural rubber, butyfe®DM in combination with
stamped steel, aluminum or cast iron sub-componAdiditionally, we supply brackets that are mantifead from stamped steel, aluminum or
cast iron as individual final products. The typipabduction process for a rubber and metal proohwatives mixing of rubber compounds, me
preparation (cleaning and primer application),dtign molding of the rubber and metals, final asisignand testing as required based on
specific products. Below is a description of ounmary chassis products:

Product Category Description
Body/Cradle mounts Enable isolation of the interior cabin from the it body reducing noise, vibration and harshn

Hydro body mount: A body mount filled with fluid providing springate and damping performance that ve
according to frequency and displacement of vibrat@onventional (non-hydro) mounts provide fixed
response. Hydromounts can provide a more comfeatadbé in a vehicle during idling or travelir

Powertrain mounts Secures and isolates vehicle powertrain noiseatidor, and harshness from the uni-body or frame.

Transmission mountsEnables mounting of transmission to vehicle bodtyleweducing vibration and
harshness from the powertrain.

Torque strut: Controls the fore and aft movement of transvereanted engines within their compartment
while isolating engine noise and vibration from t&hicle body.

Hydro engine mount: This technology applies the same principles agbwye mentioned hydro body mou
specific for an engine application.

Multi-State Engine Mount&his new innovative technology responds up to tiseggarate inputs from the on-
board vehicle computer and utilizing vacuum actuatirhe Multi State Mount is designed to improwaasion
and ride control for Wide Open Throttle (WOT) arattFOpen Throttle (POT), as well as provide incegias
rigidity during highway cruising

Suspensior Provides for needed flexibility in suspension comgrats and eliminates noise vibration from entetirg
interior cabin.

Hydrobushing: Similar benefits to hydromounts; however, thasedesigned to be installed in a link or cor
versus a bracket attached to a vehicle.

Mass dampe: Developed to counteract a specific resonancespeaeific frequency to eliminate undesirable
vibration.

Fluid handling products

We are one of the leading global integrators afifeubsystems and components that control, sersddiver fluids and vapors in motor
vehicles. We believe we are the second largestglmiovider of fluid handling system products mamatfired in our industry. We offer an
extensive product portfolio and are positionedeve our diverse customer base around the woritiziogy our core competencies in thermal
management, emissions management and fuel and $yatens, we strive to create the highest valuedoglobal customers by engineering
unigue solutions that anticipate and exceed thesida through Design for

9
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Six Sigma, seamless launches, lean enterpriseipiesand key strategic alliances. For the yeadediecember 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, we
generated approximately 35%, 34% and 32% of tatglarate revenue from the sale of fluid handlingducts (before corporate eliminations).

We support the green technology trend as our ciestexpand towards hybrids and alternative powegn@quired to meet future fuel
efficiency regulation. We provide thermal managensatutions that enhance hybrid and electric vehpdwertrain cooling systems and offer
bio-fuel compatible materials for alternative fuehicles. Our products support improved fuel ecopnantiatives with light weight, high
performance plastic and aluminum materials thatcedveight and offer an improved value equation.s¥ecialize in complete fuel system
integration encompassing products from the fuéltoathe fuel tank lines. We support reduced eroissithrough the control of the flow and
temperature of exhaust gas.

Our fluid handling products are principally foundfour major vehicle systems: thermal managemest;dnd brake; emissions
management; and power management. Below is a géeordf our primary fluid handling products:

Product Category Description

Thermal Management Direct, control and transport oil, coolant, watend other fluids throughout the vehic
Engine (_)iI cooling subsystems with over-molded Transmission oil cooling subsystems
connections
Engine oil cooler tube and hose assemt Transmission oil cooler tube and hose assem
Engine oil cooling quick connec Engine oil level indicator tube assembl
Electro/mechanical water valves and pumps Integrated thermostats and plastic

housings

Coolant subsysten Bypass valve
Radiator and heater hos Aucxiliary oil coolers

Fuel & Brake Direct, control and transport fuel, brake fluid andpors throughout the vehic
Fuel supply and return line Flexible brake line:
Fuel/Vapor quick connec Vacuum brake hose
Fuel/Vapor lines Fuel Rails (Port and D

Emissions Managemen Direct, control and transmit emission vapors andd$ throughout the vehic
Fully integrated exhaust gas recirculation (“EGR”) Exhaust gas recirculation valves
modules
EGR coolers and bypass cool Diesel Particulate Filte*DPF”") lines
EGR tube assembli¢ Secondary air tube
Waste gate actuat Throttle body

Power Management Direct, control and transmit power management fiuidroughout the vehic
High pressure roof line Power steering pressure and return li
Hydraulic clutch lines Air bag tubes

10
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Supplies and Raw Materials

Raw material prices have fluctuated greatly in négears. We have implemented strategies with battsuppliers and our customers to
help manage increases in raw material prices. Taetsens include material substitutions and leviexggur global purchases. Global
optimization also includes using benchmarks anecsige sourcing from low cost regions. We have afsale process improvements to ensure
the efficient use of materials through scrap reiducias well as standardization of material speaifons to maximize leverage over higher
volume purchases. With some customers on certaimraterials we have implemented indexes that afidee changes as underlying material
costs move.

The primary raw materials for our business inclagethetic rubber, fabricated metal-based componptastic components, carbon
black, process oil and natural rubber.

Patents and Trademarks

We believe one of our competitive advantages isapptication of technological innovation to custerokallenges. We hold over 350
patents in key product technologies, such as Dat{iipening Modules, Engineered Stretched Pladtms, Fuel Permeation Nylon Tubing and
Quick Connect Fluid Couplings, as well as core pssanethods, such as molding, joining, and coafng.patents are grouped into two major
categories: (1) products, which relate to spegfduct invention claims for products which carpbbeduced, and (2) processes, which relate to
specific manufacturing processes that are usegrémucing products. The vast majority of our padatl within the products category. We
consider these patents to be of value and seeloteqgb our rights throughout the world againstimjement. While in the aggregate these
patents are important to our business, we do ri@Veethat the loss or termination of any one pevesuld materially affect our company. We
continue to seek patent protection for our new pot&l Additionally, we develop significant techngies that we treat as trade secrets and
choose not to disclose to the public through therggrocess, but which nonetheless provide sicaniti competitive advantages and contribute
to our global leadership position in various masket

We also have technology sharing and licensing ageaés with various third parties, including NishikeaRubber Company, one of our
joint venture partners in body sealing products.hee mutual agreements with Nishikawa Rubber Comfar sales, marketing at
engineering services on certain body sealing prisduie sell. Under those agreements, each partyfpagervices provided by the other and
royalties on certain products for which the othaity provides design or development services.

We own or have licensed several trademarks thaiegiistered in many countries, enabling us to jptaed market our products
worldwide. Key trademarks include StanPraftérmarket trim seals), SafeSeal™ (obstacle detesensors), and Stratlink™ (proprietary T
polymer).

Seasonality

Historically, sales to automotive customers aredsiwuring the months prior to model changeovedsdaming assembly plant
shutdowns. However, economic conditions and consal@®mand may change the traditional seasonalitgeindustry and lower production
may prevail without the impact of seasonality. Biigtally, model changeover periods have typicadisulted in lower sales volumes during
July, August and December. During these periodeswér sales volumes, profit performance is redumgidworking capital often improves due
to the continued collection of accounts receivable.

Competition

We believe that the principal competitive factarour industry are price, quality, service, perfanoe, design and engineering
capabilities, innovation and timely delivery. Wdibee that our capabilities in these core
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competencies are integral to our position as a etdelader in each of our product lines. Our body @massis products compete with Toyoda
Gosei, Trelleborg/ Vibracoustic, Tokai, Paulstraitéhinson, Henniges and Standard Profil, amongrstt@ur fluid handling products compete
with TI Automotive, Martinrea, Hutchinson, Conti-dle Pierburg and Gustav Wahler, along with numeswnaller companies in this
competitive market.

Industry Structure

The automotive industry is one of the world’s laigend most competitive. Consumer demand for nevicles largely determines sales
and production volumes of global OEMs.

The automotive supplier industry is generally cherzed by high barriers to entry, significantrstap costs and long-standing customer
relationships. The criteria by which OEMs judgecembtive suppliers include price, quality, servigerformance, design and engineering
capabilities, innovation, timely delivery and, moeeently, financial stability. Over the last deeaduppliers that have been able to achieve
manufacturing scale, reduce structural costs, difyetheir customer base and establish a globalufisaturing footprint have been successful.

The severe decline in vehicle sales and produai@®09 led to major restructuring activity in timelustry, particularly in North
America. GM and Chrysler reorganized through Chaptebankruptcy proceedings and the Detroit 3 uledérother strategic actions,
including the divestiture or discontinuance of remme businesses and brands and the acceleratimoatening of operational and financial
restructuring activities. A number of significanttamotive suppliers, including us, restructureatigh Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings or
through other means.

Several significant trends and developments are gaributing to improvement in the automotive digapndustry. These
include increased light vehicle sales of approxetya®% and light vehicle production increase ofragpmately 10% in North America in 2011
compared to 2010, a more positive credit envirortirtee continued growth of new markets in Asiatipafarly China, and increased emphasis
on “green” and other innovative technologies.

Customers

We are a leading supplier to the Detroit 3 in eafchur product categories and are increasing cesgce with European and Asian
OEMSs. During the year ended December 31, 2011 oxppately 26%, 14%, 7%, 6% and 6% of our sales weefeord, GM, PSA Peugeot
Citroén, Volkswagen/Audi and Chrysler, respectiyely compared to 28%, 16%, 3%, 6% and 6%, respégtior the year ended
December 31, 2010. Our other major customers ieclDEMS such as Fiat, Renault/Nissan, BMW, Daimfel@arious Indian and Chinese
OEMs. We also sell products to Visteon/ACH, Toy®arsche, and through Nishikawa Standard Compa¥hsCQO”), Honda. Our business
with any given customer is typically split amongeel contracts for different parts on a numbeplatforms.

Backlog

Our OEM sales are generally based upon purchasesissued by the OEMs, with updated releasesdioime adjustments, and as such
we do not have a backlog of orders at any poititile. Once selected to supply products for a paetigplatform, we typically supply those
products for the platform life, which is normallyrée to five years, although there is no guarathaiethis will occur. In addition, when we are
the incumbent supplier to a given platform, we dogdi we have a competitive advantage in winningé¢design or replacement platform.
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Research and Development

We operate nine design, engineering, and admitimstréacilities throughout the world and employ eppmately 590 research and
development personnel, some of whom reside atuatomers’ facilities. We utilize Design for Six 8ig and other methodologies that
emphasize manufacturability and quality. We arer@sgjvely pursuing innovations which assist in uese conservation with particular
attention to developing materials that are lighteight and made of recyclable materials. Our dgyalent teams are also working closely with
our customers to design and deliver thermal managésolutions for cooling electric motors and hatefor new hybrids. We also devote
considerable research and development resour@eA ¥, resulting in high value, state-of-the-artusimns for our customers. These activities
are applied not only in our AVS product lines, bigo in vehicle sealing (noise transmission isotatind abatement via vehicle windows and
doors), fuel delivery systems (isolation of fugkittors on fuel rails) and thermal management éaisd vibration free coolant pumps and
valves). We spend significantly each year to mairaad enhance our technical centers, enabling gsitkly and effectively respond to
customer demands. We spent $62.9 million, $68.8amjland $83.9 million in 2009, 2010, and 201kprctively, on engineering, research
development.

Joint Ventures and Strategic Alliances

Joint ventures represent an important part of agirtess, both operationally and strategically. \&eehused joint ventures to enter into
new geographic markets such as China, Korea, Batiarhailand, to acquire new customers and to dpvatw technologies. In entering new
geographic markets, teaming with a local partnarreduce capital investment by leveraging pre-ggsnfrastructure. In addition, local
partners in these markets can provide knowledgeresight into local practices and access to loopptiers of raw materials and components.
In North America, our longstanding Nisco joint verg with Nishikawa Rubber Company in which we owA08&b6 equity interest, has been
valuable in enhancing our relationships with cusgtmrsuch as Honda. In 2005, we acquired a 20%yeigtérest in and expanded our techn
alliance with Guyoung, a Korean supplier of metahgings, which built a manufacturing facility inaddama that services Hyundai. As part of
the acquisition of the MAPS business in 2007, wguaed a 47.5% equity interest in Huayu-Cooper G&ad Sealing Systems Co. Ltd., a joint
venture with Huayu Automotive Systems Co., Ltd.affiliate of Shanghai Automotive Industry Corpaoat which also owns a 47.5% equity
interest, and Shanghai Qinpu Zhaotun Collectiveefbanagement Company, which owns the remaininge§@tty interest. This joint venture
business is the leading manufacturer of automat@ading products in China. Also, in 2007, we aceplia 74% equity interest in MAP India, a
joint venture with Toyoda Gosei Co., Ltd., whichmmsthe remaining 26% equity interest. MAP India isading manufacturer of automot
sealing products in India. In 2011, we acquired %®quity interest in SPBT, a joint venture with EM which owns the remaining 49%
equity interest. Also, in 2011 we acquired a 20%itygnterest in Nishikawa Tachaplalert Cooper Lt a joint venture with Nishikawa
Rubber, which owns 77.7%, and the Tachplalert faauild Marubeni Thailand, which own the remainingfa.

Geographic Information

In 2011, we generated approximately 50% of ourssaléorth America, 38% in Europe, 5% in South Aiceeland 7% in Asia/Pacific.
Approximately 26% of our sales were generated foamUnited States operations and approximately @8%ur sales were generated from our
operations in all other countries, including 13%%, 10% and 10% generated from our Mexican, Fre@elnman and Canadian operations,
respectively.

In 2010, we generated approximately 52% of ourssaléorth America, 34% in Europe, 6% in South Aiceeland 8% in Asia/Pacific.
Approximately 27% of our sales were generated foamUnited States operations and approximately @8%ur sales were generated from our
operations in all other countries, including 14%%land 10% generated from our Mexican, German amadian operations, respectively.
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In 2009, we generated approximately 47% of ourssaléorth America, 40% in Europe, 6% in South Aiceeland 7% in Asia/Pacific.
Approximately 27% of our sales were generated foamUnited States operations and approximately @8%ur sales were generated from our
operations in all other countries, including 14%%land 9% generated from our German, Mexican améd¢an operations, respectively.

See Note 21 to our consolidated financial statesnfemtadditional geographic information.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately ZLf&0-time and temporary employees. We maintaiondycelations with both our
union and non-union employees and, in the pasyears, have not experienced any major work stoppatfe renegotiated some of our
domestic and international union agreements in 20flhave several contracts set to expire in tketnelve months. As of December 31,
2011, approximately 33% of our employees were sapreed by unions and approximately 10% of the umémhemployees were located in the
United States.

Environmental

We are subject to a broad range of federal, stated|ocal environmental and occupational safetytagalth laws and regulations in the
United States and other countries, including reguia governing: emissions to air, discharges ttewaoise and odor emissions; the
generation, handling, storage, transportationfriteat, and disposal of waste materials; the cleafigentaminated properties; and human
health and safety. We may incur substantial casgea@ated with hazardous substance contaminatierpwsure, including cleanup costs, fir
and civil or criminal sanctions, third party profyeor natural resource damage, personal injuryr@air costs to upgrade or replace existing
equipment as a result of violations of or liabd@iunder environmental laws or the failure to namoér comply with environmental permits
required at our locations. In addition, many of ourrent and former facilities are located on prtips with long histories of industrial or
commercial operations and some of these propdréies been subject to certain environmental invastigs and remediation activities. We
maintain environmental reserves for certain of ¢éhgtes. As of December 31, 2011, we have $10anilieserved in other liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet on an undiscounted basish we believe is adequate. Because some emagatal laws (such as the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidihiability Act and analogous state laws) canaswgliability retroactively and
regardless of fault on potentially responsibleipartor the entire cost of cleanup at currentlyoomerly owned or operated facilities, as well as
sites at which such parties disposed or arrangedi$posal of hazardous waste, we could becomélfab investigating or remediating
contamination at our current or former propertiestber properties (including offsite waste dispdsaations). We may not always be in
complete compliance with all applicable requiremsesftenvironmental laws or regulations, and we meggive notices of violation or become
subject to enforcement actions or incur materiatsor liabilities in connection with such requiremts. In addition, new environmental
requirements or changes to interpretations of iegjsequirements, or in their enforcement, couldeha material adverse effect on our
businesses, results of operations, and financraditon. For example, while we are not large emstaf greenhouse gases, laws, regulations
and certain regional initiatives under consideratiy the U.S. Congress, the U.S. Environmentaldetmn Agency, and various states, and in
effect in certain foreign jurisdictions, could résn increased operating costs to control and toorsuch emissions. We have made and will
continue to make expenditures to comply with enwinental requirements. While our costs to defendsatile claims arising under
environmental laws in the past have not been natetich costs may be material in the future.

Market Data

Some market data and other statistical informatiged throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-Kased on data available from IHS
Automotive, an independent market research firnne®tlata is based on good faith estimates, whigldarived from our review of internal
surveys, as well as third party sources. Althoughbelieve these third party sources are reliabdehave not independently verified the
information and cannot
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guarantee its accuracy and completeness. To tkatakiat we have been unable to obtain informdtiam third party sources, we have
expressed our belief on the basis of our own istesnalyses of our products and capabilities infanison to our competitors.

Available Information

We make available free of charge on or throughlot@rnet website (http://www.cooperstandard.conr)Aanual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$orm 8-K and amendments to those reports filediori$hed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedn(the “Exchange Act”gs soon as reasonably practicable after we elecalbnfile suct
material with, or furnish it to, the U.S. Secusstiend Exchange Commission (“SEC").

Executive Officers
Set forth below is certain information with resptxthe current executive officers of the Company.

Name Age Position

James S. McEly 64 Chairman, Director and Chief Executive Offic
Allen J. Campbel 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Keith D. Stephenso 51 Chief Operating Office

D. William Pumphrey, Ji 53 President, North Americ

Michael C. Verwilst 58 Vice President, Mergers & Acquisitiol

Timothy W. Hefferor 58 Vice President, General Counsel and Secre
Kimberly L. Dickens 50 Vice President, Human Resour

Helen T. Yant: 51 Vice President and Corporate Contro

James S. McElyas the Chairman of our board of directors and©hief Executive Officer, a position he has heldsiMarch 2009 and
previously held from September 2006 to July 2008 sirved as executive Chairman from July 2008 tccMa009. Mr. McElya served as
President and Chief Executive Officer from the dztéhe 2004 Acquisition to September 2006. Helvesen a member of our board of direc
since the 2004 Acquisition. He was President, Co&@tandard Automotive and a corporate Vice Preside@ooper Tire & Rubber Company
from June 2000 until the 2004 Acquisition. Mr. Mg&lhas over 34 years of automotive experience. &epreviously President of Siebe
Automotive Worldwide, a division of Invensys, PL@daspent 22 years with Handy & Harman in variouscexive management positions,
including President, Handy & Harman Automotive, &atporate Vice President of the parent company NWbElya is the past Chairman and
current member of the board of directors of thed@& Equipment Manufacturers Association. He isaatgChairman and current member of
the board of directors of the Original Equipmenpflier Association, and he is an advisor to therth@d directors of the National Alliance for
Accessible Golf. Mr. McElya is a member of the labaf directors of Affinia Group.

Allen J. Campbellis our Executive Vice President and Chief Finaln@ificer, a position he has held since March 1712, previously
having served as Vice President and Chief Fina@ifiter since the 2004 Acquisition. He was Vices$tdent, Asian Operations of the Cooper-
Standard Automotive division of Cooper Tire & Rubl@®mpany from 2003 until the 2004 Acquisition aseiived as Vice President, Finance
of the division from 1999 to 2003. Prior to joini@gpoper Tire, Mr. Campbell was with The Dow Cherhicampany for 18 years and held
executive finance positions for both U.S. and Caradperations. Mr. Campbell is a certified pulslacountant and received his MBA in
Finance from Xavier University and a Bachelor ofsAfrom Ball State University.
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Keith D. Stephensois our Chief Operating Officer, a position he hatd since December 2010. He served as Presid¢atnational
from March 2009 to December 2010. He served addemts Global Body & Chassis Systems from June 26@March 2009. Mr. Stephenson
was Chief Development Officer at Boler Company fréamuary 2004 until October 2006. From 1985 to dgnR004, he held various senior
positions at Hendrickson, a division of Boler Comypancluding President of International OperatidBenior Vice President of Global
Business Operations and President of the TruclkeSysGroup.

D. William Pumphrey, Jiis our President, North America, a position heliald since August 2011. Mr. Pumphrey served asd&ets
Americas for Tower Automotive from 2008 through Aisy2011. From 2005 to 2008, he served as presiddrdwer’s North America
operations. From 1999 to 2004, Mr. Pumphrey hetibua positions at Lear Corp. in Southfield, Micliig most recently, serving as president
of the company’s Asia Pacific operations. Mr. Pungytearned an MBA from the University of Michigamdea Bachelor of Arts from Kenyon
College.

Michael C. Verwilstis our Vice President, Mergers & Acquisitions,asipion he has held since March 2009. Previously,\kérwilst
served as President, Global Fluid Systems from 200& to March 2009. Mr. Verwilst joined the Compam 2003 as the Vice President,
Strategic Planning and Business Development. Rrifmining the Company, Mr. Verwilst was a prindipdath Corporate Improvement Partn
from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Verwilst held many executpasitions with Federal-Mogul Corporation from 1988001, including Senior Vice
President of Powertrain Systems and Vice Presi@léaéneral Manager of Powertrain Systems—Americas.

Timothy W. Hefferoris our Vice President, General Counsel and Segredgosition he has held since 2004. Prior toifg the
Company, Mr. Hefferon was with ThyssenKrupp USA. lirom 1999 to 2004, where he served as Deputy ae@®unsel and with Federal-
Mogul Corporation from 1994 to 1999, where he sér@g Associate General Counsel. He was a parimar 085 to 1994 of Hill Lewis, a
Detroit-based law firm, where he served on the etiee committee. Mr. Hefferon received his law degfrom the University of Michigan
Law School.

Kimberly L. Dickensis our Vice President, Human Resources, a possienhas held since March of 2008. Prior to joirihrggCompany,
Ms. Dickens served as Vice President, Human ResswatFederal Signal Corporation from 2004 to 2608viously, Ms. Dickens held
numerous plant and divisional human resource positat Borg Warner Corporation beginning in 1988mnately serving as Vice President,
Human Resources from 2002 to 2004. Ms. DickensatBS in Industrial Health and Safety from Oaklamivérsity and an MBA from Lewis
University.

Helen T. Yantzs our Vice President and Corporate Controllgrosition she has held since January 2005. PreyioMs. Yantz held the
position of Director of Accounting and Assistant¥iPresident from 2001 to 2005. Prior to joining @ompany, Ms. Yantz was Manager of
Financial Reporting at Trinity Health Systems fr@f00 to 2001. Previously, Ms. Yantz held variousitions in finance at CMS Generations
Co., a subsidiary of CMS Energy, from 1990 to 2Q@6mately serving as the Director of Accountifds. Yantz is a certified public
accountant and has a BS from Arizona State Uniwyersi

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes “forwambking statements” within the meaning of U.S. fedlsecurities laws, and we
intend that such forward-looking statements beextlip the safe harbor created thereby. We makeaforlooking statements in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and may make such statemeritgtre filings with the SEC. We may also make fard+looking statements in our press
releases or other public or stockholder commurooati These forward-looking statements include statgs concerning our plans, objectives,
goals, strategies, future events, future revenyedobrmance, capital expenditures, financing negldsis or intentions relating to acquisitions,
business trends, and other information that is not
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historical information and, in particular, appeadar “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fa@nCondition and Results of
Operations,” “Risk Factors” and “Business.” Whemdisn this report, the words “estimates,” “exp€ctanticipates,” “projects,” “plans,”
“intends,” “believes,” “forecasts,” or future orwditional verbs, such as “will,” “should,” “could@r “may,” and variations of such words or
similar expressions are intended to identify fomvlroking statements. All forward-looking stateneenihcluding, without limitation,
management’s examination of historical operatiegds and data are based upon our current expestatnm various assumptions. Our
expectations, beliefs, and projections are expcegsgood faith and we believe there is a reasenbasis for them. However, no assurances
can be made that these expectations, beliefs ajelctions will be achieved. Forward-looking statetseare not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to significant risks @mcertainties that may cause actual resultstieaements to be materially different from
the future results or achievements expressed didthpy the forward-looking statements.

There are a number of risks and uncertaintiesaiald cause our actual results to differ materifiityn the forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Intpat factors that could cause our actual resultsfter materially from the forward-
looking statements we make in this report areah fin this Annual Report on Form 10-K, includingder Item 1A. “Risk FactorsSuch risk
and uncertainties and other important factors he]ut are not limited to:

. cyclicality of the automotive industry and the gbggy of further material contractions in automa sales and productio
. our ability to generate sufficient cash to serndce indebtedness and meet dividend obligationsusry® preferred stocl
. viability of our supply base

. escalating pricing pressure

. our ability to meet a significant increase in dedh¢

. our ability to compete in the highly competitivet@motive parts industry

. our significant no-U.S. operations

. our dependence on certain major custon

. labor conditions

. our ability to meet our custom¢ needs for new and improved products in a timely meay

. our legal rights to our intellectual property potid;

. our underfunded pension plai

. environmental and other regulatiol

. the possibility that our acquisition strategy witit be successfu

. the lack of comparability of our financial conditi@nd results of operations following our emergenoe bankruptcy to those
reflected in our historical financial statemet

. availability and increasing volatility in cost afw materials
. the possibility of future impairment charges to goodwill and lon-lived assets; an

. global sovereign fiscal matters and creditworthénéscluding potential defaults and the relatedantp on economic activity,
including the possible effects on credit marketsrency values, monetary union, international tesaand fiscal policies
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There may be other factors that may cause our laetsialts to differ materially from the forward-lking statements. All forward-looking
statements attributable to us or persons actinguofehalf apply only as of the date of this Annkaport on Form 10-K and other reports we
file with the SEC, and are expressly qualifiedhgit entirety by the cautionary statements incluldectin and therein. We undertake no
obligation to update or revise forward-looking staents to reflect events or circumstances that afier the date made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Our business and financial condition can be impddig a number of factors, including the risks diéssdt below and elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form -K. Any of these risks could cause our actual sl vary materially from recent or anticipatedsudts and could
materially and adversely affect our business, rissofl operations and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on the automotive industkyprolonged or further material contraction in awmotive sales and production
volumes could materially adversely affect our liglity, the viability of our supply base and the fineial conditions of our customers and
could have a material adverse affect on our busisgesults of operations and financial condition.

The great majority of our customers are OEMs aeit Buppliers. In recent years, the automotive stiquhas been severely affected by
the turmoil in the global credit markets and theremnic recession. These conditions have had a diamgact on consumer vehicle demand,
which has not returned to 2007/2008 levels.

Automotive sales and production are highly cyclimadl depend, among other things, on general ecenmonditions and consumer
spending and preferences (which can be affectedrymber of issues, including fuel costs, employnt@rels and the availability of consun
financing). As the volume of automotive productfarctuates, the demand for our products also flakets. Further or future material
contraction in automotive sales and productionddave a material adverse effect on our resultgpefations and liquidity. Production levels
in Europe and North America, most notably, affecgiven our concentration of sales in those regiahsch accounted for approximately 38%
and 50%, respectively, of our 2011 sales. In adldjtif lower levels of sales and production areeéaisted, non-cash impairment charges could
result as the value of certain long-lived assetsdsiced. As a result, our financial condition aesllts of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

Our supply base has also been adversely affectéaebyurrent industry environment. Lower globalcambtive production, turmoil in the
credit markets and extreme volatility over the steral years in raw material, energy and commaaists have resulted in financial distress
within our supply base and an increase in theafskupply disruption. In addition, several autometsuppliers filed for bankruptcy protection
or have ceased operations. If a significant suppligability was to become impaired, it could ingbghe supplier’s ability to perform as we
expect and consequently our ability to meet our oammitments. While we have developed and implestentrategies to mitigate the
negative effects of these factors, these stratdgies offset only a portion of the adverse imp@be continuation or worsening of these
industry conditions could adversely affect our fioel condition, operating results and cash flotwereby making it more difficult for us to
make payments under our indebtedness and our 7%lative participating convertible preferred stotk% preferred stock”).

In addition, if our suppliers were to reduce nortnatle credit terms, our liquidity could be advérsepacted. Likewise, our liquidity
could be adversely impacted if our customers weextend their normal payment terms, whether opeomitted under our contracts. If either
of these situations occurs, we may need to relgtbar sources of funding to bridge the additiorsgd getween the time we pay our suppliers
and the time we receive corresponding payments froncustomers.
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Any further restructuring of our customers, partidarly the Detroit 3, may adversely affect our resbf operations and financial conditior

Significantly lower global production levels, tigimted liquidity and increased costs of capital lemorabined to cause severe financial
distress among many of our customers and haveddhmse companies to implement various forms dfuetiring actions. In some cases,
these actions have involved significant capacituotions, the discontinuation of entire vehiclermisior even reorganization under bankruptcy
laws. Discontinuation of a brand can result in oy a loss of sales associated with any systeresmponents we supplied for such brand,
also customer disputes regarding capital we expktwsupport production of such systems or compisnfen the discontinued brand, and s|
disputes could potentially be resolved adverselysto

We could be adversely affected by any shortageuppties.

In the event of a rapid increase in production deasaeither we or our customers or other supplieag experience supply shortages of
raw materials or components. This could be caugediumber of factors, including a lack of prodatline capacity or manpower or working
capital constraints. In order to manage and retheeost of purchased goods and services, we &edsowvithin our industry have been
rationalizing and consolidating our supply baseaddition, due to the turbulence in the automoitgistry, several suppliers have restructured
or ceased operations. As a result, there is grdemEndence on fewer sources of supply for cectmimponents and materials, which could
increase the possibility of a supply shortage gf particular component. If any of our customersezignce a material supply shortage, either
directly or as a result of a supply shortage att@rosupplier, that customer may halt or limit fuechase of our products. Similarly, if we or
one of our own suppliers experience a supply sgertaee may become unable to produce the affectatlpts if we cannot procure the
components from another source. Such producti@mnrimtions could impede a ranop-in vehicle production and could have a matexiers:
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

Escalating pricing pressures and decline of volumegjuirements from our customers may adversely affear business

Pricing pressure in the automotive supply indubttg been substantial and is likely to continuetidity all vehicle manufacturers seek
price reductions in both the initial bidding prosesd during the term of the contract. Price rddosthave adversely impacted our sales and
profit margins and are expected to do so in theréutlf we are not able to offset continued prieguctions through improved operating
efficiencies and reduced expenditures, those peidactions may have a material adverse effect omesults of operations. Our agreements
with our customers are generally requirements estgrand a decline in volume for our customersccadiersely impact our revenues and
profitability.

We may be at risk of not being able to meet sigrdfit increases in demand.

If demand increases significantly from what hasbedistorical low for production over the last fgears, we may have difficulty
meeting such demand, particularly if such increastemand occurs rapidly. This difficulty may indeinot having sufficient manpower or
relying on suppliers who may not be able to respguidkly to a changed environment when demand Sagmitly increases. Our inability to
meet significant increases in demand could requsr® delay delivery dates and could result inaustrs cancelling their orders, requesting
discounts or ceasing to do business with us. litiaddas demand and volumes increase, we will negairchase more inventory, which will
increase our working capital needs. If our workigital needs exceed our cash flows from operatisaswill be required to use our cash
balances and available borrowings, as well as piatesources of additional capital, which may netadvailable on satisfactory terms and in
adequate amounts, if at all, to satisfy those needs
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Increasing costs for, or reduced availability of,anufactured components and raw materials may adetysaffect our profitability.

The principal raw materials we purchase includdtsstic rubber, fabricated metal-based componeftdstip components, carbon black,
process oil and natural rubber. Raw materials c@ephe largest component of our costs, repreggagproximately 51% of our total cost of
products in 2011. A significant increase in themf these items could materially increase ouratpey costs and materially and adversely
affect our profit margins because it is generaiffialt to pass through these increased costairocastomers. Raw material costs remain
volatile and could have an adverse impact on oafitpbility in the foreseeable future.

Because we purchase various types of raw matemalsnanufactured components, we may be materiatlyadversely affected by the
failure of our suppliers of those materials to parf as expected. This non-performance may consdglivery delays or failures caused by
production issues or delivery of non-conformingdarots. The risk of non-performance may also rdsoith the insolvency or bankruptcy of
one or more of our suppliers. Our suppliers’ apild supply products to us is also subject to alemof risks to such suppliers, including
availability of raw materials, such as steel antlired rubber, destruction of their facilities or skastoppages. In addition, our failure to
promptly pay, or order sufficient quantities of @mtory from, our suppliers may increase the cogtroflucts we purchase or may lead to
suppliers refusing to sell products to us at allr €fforts to protect against and to minimize theslkes may not always be effective.

We consider the production capacities and finarematition of suppliers in our selection process expect that they will meet our
delivery requirements. However, there can be norasse that strong demand, capacity limitationsrtslges of raw materials or other
problems will not result in any shortages or delaythe supply of components to us.

Some of our raw materials and other supplies usedii operations are not normally available frowagdety of suppliers, therefore
leaving our business vulnerable to increasing castaddition, our need to maintain a continuinggdy of raw materials and components has
made it difficult, in some cases, to resist priseréases and surcharges imposed by our suppliers.

As the industry recovers our costs will increasdyigh may negatively impact our profitabilit.

In an effort to mitigate the impact of the declingoroduction volumes in 2008, we undertook varimisatives to cut our costs and
restructure our business. Some of these initiativag not be sustainable as the industry improvessekample, in response to the volume
declines we cut pay, did not provide merit increagmze our 401K matching program and limited élawdgets. In 2010, we resumed
providing merit increases and relaxed some spemdistgictions. In addition, we have been increasiaghiring as production increases anc
look to future growth. These actions may negatiwelgact our profitability.

We could be materially adversely affected if we areble to continue to compete successfully in tlighly competitive automotive parts
industry.

The automotive parts industry is highly competitivée face numerous competitors in each of the prolihes we serve. In general, there
are three or more significant competitors and nemesmaller competitors for most of the productoffier. We also face increased
competition for certain of our products from suppdi producing in lower-cost countries such as KarehChina, especially for certain lower-
technology noise, vibration and harshness contadyects that have physical characteristics thatevaikg-distance shipping more feasible and
economical. We may not be able to continue to cdenfavorably with such competitors, and increaswdetition in our markets may have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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We are subject to other risks associated with oonAJ.S. operations.

We have significant manufacturing operations oet$ite United States, including joint ventures atigtoalliances. Our operations are
located in 19 countries, and we export to sevetarocountries. In 2011, approximately 74% of ales were attributable to products
manufactured outside the United States. Risksrdaerént in international operations, including:

. exchange controls and currency restrictic
. currency fluctuations and devaluatio
. changes in local economic conditiol

. repatriation restrictions (including the impositionincrease of withholding and other taxes on temces and other payments
foreign subsidiaries

. global sovereign uncertainty and hyperinflatiorcé@ntain foreign countrie:

. changes in laws and regulations, including expodt ianport restrictions and the imposition of em e
. exposure to possible expropriation or other govemnactions; an

. exposure to local political or social unrest inéhgdresultant acts of war, terrorism or similar retge

These and other factors may have a material adeéfieset on our international operations and onlmsiness, results of operations and
financial condition. For example, we are faced vpititential difficulties in staffing and managing&d operations and we have to design local
solutions to manage credit risks of local custona@d distributors. Also, the cost and complexitywéamlining operations in certain Europ:
countries is greater than would be the case ittited States, due primarily to labor laws in thosantries that can make reducing
employment levels more timessnsuming and expensive than in the United St&asflexibility in our foreign operations can albe somewhs
limited by agreements we have entered into withforeign joint venture partners.

Our overall success as a global business depengart, upon our ability to succeed in differinggpomic, social and political conditions.
We may not continue to succeed in developing arpleémenting policies and strategies that are effedti each location where we do busin
and failure to do so could adversely affect ouriess, results of operations and financial conditio

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations couldaterially impact our results from operations

Our sales outside the United States expose ugtermy risks. Our sales and earnings denominatéaréign currencies are translated
into U.S. dollars for our consolidated financiatetments. This translation is calculated based/erage exchange rates during the reporting
period. Our reported international sales and egmaould be adversely impacted in periods of angtreening U.S. dollar.

We generally produce in the same geographic reggoour products are sold. Some of our commoditieparchased in or pegged to the
U.S. dollar therefore, our earnings could be adgrsnpacted during the periods of a strengthetir§. dollar to other foreign currencies. We
employ financial instruments to hedge certain poriof our foreign currency exposures howeventlilisnot completely insulate us from the
effects of currency fluctuation.

A significant portion of our operations are conduad by joint ventures that cannot be operated for gole benefit.

Many of our operations are carried on by joint wees. In joint ventures we share the managemetieaompany with one or more
owners who may not have the same goals, resourgegodties as we do.
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Joint ventures require attention to be paid torétationships with our co-owners which influencasteowner’s decisions. Joint ventures are
intended to operate for the benefit of all ownerd therefore we do not receive all the benefitefiaur joint ventures.

We conduct significant operations in Mexico, whicould be materially and adversely affected as autesf the increased levels of violence
and political disruption.

Recently, drug related violence has risen to urgatested levels along the U.S.-Mexico border despiteeased law-enforcement efforts
by the Mexican and the U.S. governments. This s@ngresents several risks to our operations ixibte including, among others, that our
employees may be directly affected by the violetitat, our employees may elect to relocate out@fdigion in order to avoid the risk of
violent crime to themselves or their families ahdttour customers may become increasingly reluttavisit our Mexican facilities, which
could delay new business opportunities and othpoitant aspects of our business. If any of thesdes nnaterialize, our business may be
materially and adversely affected.

Our lean manufacturing and other cost savings planmgy not be effective.

Our operations strategy includes cutting costseoljucing production errors, inventory levels, oparatotion, overproduction and
operator waiting while fostering the increased flofamaterial, information and communication. Thetcgavings that we anticipate from these
initiatives may not be achieved on schedule ohatével anticipated by management. If we are untiblealize these anticipated savings, our
operating results and financial condition may beemally adversely affected. Moreover, the implemation of cost saving plans and facilities
integration may disrupt our operations and perfarcea

Our business could be materially adversely affectiede lost any of our largest customers or sige#int platforms.

While we provide parts to virtually every major gid OEM for use on a multitude of different platfms, sales to our three largest
customers, Ford, GM and PSA Peugeot Citroén, oorldwide basis represented approximately 47% ofsales. Although business with each
customer is typically split among numerous congaiftwe lost a major customer, that customer $icgnitly reduced its purchases of our
products, or the customer discontinues or resowrgeatform that is significant to our businessettier as a result of a decline in such
customer’s market share due to increased compefition Asian or other OEMs’ successful verticakigitation at the customer level or
otherwise, there could be a material adverse affedur business, results of operations and firhmoindition.

We may incur material losses and costs as a resfiffroduct liability and warranty and recall claimthat may be brought against us.

We may be exposed to product liability and warrari&ms in the event that our products actuallgltegedly fail to perform as expected
or the use of our products results, or is allegecdsult, in bodily injury and/or property damagecordingly, we could experience material
warranty or product liability expenses in the fiet@nd incur significant costs to defend againgelaaims. In addition, if any of our products
are, or are alleged to be, defective, we may beired,to participate in a recall of that producthié defect or the alleged defect relates to
automotive safety. Product recalls could caus® urscur material costs and could harm our reputatiocause us to lose customers, particu
if any such recall causes customers to questiosafety or reliability of our products. As supptidrecome more integrally involved in the
vehicle design process and assume more of thelgetggsembly functions, customers are increasirggkiag to change contract terms and
conditions concerning warranty and recall partitigga Also, while we possess considerable histbrearanty and recall data with respect to
the products we currently produce, we do not haweh slata relating to new products, assembly progm@echnologies, including any new
fuel and emissions technology and systems beingghitanto production to allow us to accurately mstie future warranty or recall costs. In
addition, the
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increased focus on systems integration platforntizing fuel and emissions technology with more Bisgicated components from multiple
sources could result in an increased risk of compbwarranty costs over which we have little orcoatrol and for which we may be subjec
an increasing share of liability to the extent afiyhe other component suppliers are in financistress or are otherwise incapable of fulfilling
their warranty or product recall obligations. Oosts associated with providing product warranties$ @sponding to product recall claims
could be material and we do not have insurancergayeroduct recalls. Product liability, warrantydarecall costs may have a material adv
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

Work stoppages or similar difficulties could disrtpur operations.

We may be subject to work stoppages and may betaéfdy other labor disputes. A number of our @biNe bargaining agreements
expire in any given year, including several in 20LhAere is no certainty that we will be successfuiegotiating new agreements with these
unions that extend beyond the current expiratidesjar that these new agreements will be on tasriavorable to us as past labor agreem
Failure to renew these agreements when they eapi@establish new collective bargaining agreesentterms acceptable to us and the
unions could result in work stoppages or other daisruptions which may have a material adversece®n customer relationships and our
business and results of operations. Additionallywosk stoppage at one or more of our supplierscostomers or our customers’ suppliers
could materially adversely affect our operationarifalternative source of supply were not readibilable. Work stoppages by employees of
our customers also could result in reduced demandur products and could have a material advdfseten our business. As of
December 31, 2011, approximately 33% of our emmeyweere represented by unions, approximately 10#teofinionized employees were
located in the United States. It is possible thatworkforce will become more unionized in the f’tuA work stoppage at one or more of our
plants may have a material adverse effect on osinbgs. Unionization activities could also increasecosts, which could have a material
adverse effect on our profitability.

Our ability to operate our company effectively cdube impaired if we fail to attract and retain kgersonnel.

Our ability to operate our business and implememntstrategies depends, in part, on the effortauofexecutive officers and other key
employees. In addition, our future success willetgpbon, among other factors, our ability to atteaa retain other qualified personnel,
particularly research and development engineerdexithical sales professionals. The loss of thaces of any of our key employees or the
failure to attract or retain other qualified pemehcould have a material adverse effect on ouinless or business prospects.

Our success depends in part on our developmentugiroved products, and our efforts may fail to méle¢ needs of customers on a timely
cost-effective basis.

Our continued success depends on our ability totaiai advanced technological capabilities, maclyiaed knowledge necessary to
adapt to changing market demands as well as tdafeaad commercialize innovative products. We mayhbable to develop new products as
successfully as in the past or to keep pace withrtelogical developments by our competitors andrilastry generally. In addition, we may
develop specific technologies and capabilitiesnticipation of customers’ demands for new innovadiand technologies. If such demand does
not materialize, we may be unable to recover tistscimcurred in such programs. If we are unabletover these costs or if any such progr
do not progress as expected, our business, resutserations and financial condition could be matly adversely affected.

If our acquisition strategy is not successful, weagnnot achieve our growth and profit objective

We may selectively pursue complementary acquistiarthe future as part of our growth strategy. M/hie will evaluate business
opportunities on a regular basis, we may not beessful in identifying any attractive acquisitiodge may not have, or be able to raise on
acceptable terms, sufficient financial resourcemade acquisitions. Our ability to make investmengs also be limited by the terms of our
existing or future financing
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arrangements. In addition, any acquisitions we nveikébe subject to all of the risks inherent in arqguisition strategy, including integrating
financial and operational reporting systems, eghinlg satisfactory budgetary and other finanogaitools, funding increased capital needs and
overhead expenses, obtaining management persameated for expanded operations and funding cast $hortages that may occur if
anticipated sales are not realized or are delaybdther by general economic or market conditiongrdoreseen internal difficulties.

Our intellectual property portfolio is subject te@gal challenges and considerable uncertainty.

We have developed and actively pursue the developoigroprietary technology in the automotive istty and rely on intellectual
property laws and a number of patents in manydici®ns to protect such technology. There candassurances that the protections we have
available for our proprietary technology in the tédi States and other countries will be availablestin many places we sell our products.
Therefore, we may be unable to prevent third paftiem using our intellectual property without aarilzation. Any infringement or
misappropriation of our technology that we canmmttmol could have a material adverse effect onbusiness and results of operations. If we
had to litigate to protect our intellectual progeiights, any proceedings could be costly, and vag not prevail. We also face increasing
exposure to the claims of others for infringemdrintellectual property rights. We may have materitellectual property claims asserted
against us in the future and could incur signiftaarsts or losses related to such claims. Thesmslaegardless of their merit or resolution, are
frequently costly to prosecute, defend or settid @dimert the efforts and attention of our managenaad employees. Claims of this sort also
could harm our reputation and our relationshipswiir customers and might deter future customers ftoing business with us. If any such
claim were to result in an adverse outcome, wedcbalrequired to take actions which may includaseehe manufacture, use or sale of the
infringing products; pay substantial damages taltparties, including to customers to compensatmtfor the discontinued use of a product or
to replace infringing technology with non-infringinechnology; or expend significant resources teettp or license non-infringing products.

We are subject to a broad range of environmentatakth and safety laws and regulations, which coaldversely affect our business and
results of operations.

We are subject to a broad range of federal, staddaral environmental and occupational safetylaalth laws and regulations in the
United States and other countries, including thggseerning: emissions to air; discharges to wateisenand odor emissions; the generation,
handling, storage, transportation, treatment asgdas$ial of waste materials; the cleanup of contamihproperties; and human health and
safety. We may incur substantial costs associattdh&zardous substance contamination or exposwleding cleanup costs, fines and civil
or criminal sanctions, third party property or matuesource damage, personal injury claims orscstipgrade or replace existing equipment
as a result of violations of or liabilities undewv&onmental laws or the failure to maintain or q@ynwith environmental permits required at
locations. In addition, many of our current anchier facilities are located on properties with Idmigtories of industrial or commercial
operations and some of these properties have hdxgecs to certain environmental investigations eerdediation activities. We maintain
environmental reserves for certain of these sithi;h we believe are adequate. Because some emématal laws (such as the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Lialldtyand analogous state laws) can impose liabiétyoactively and regardless of fault on
potentially responsible parties for the entire ajstleanup at currently or formerly owned or opedsfacilities, as well as sites at which such
parties disposed or arranged for disposal of hazartvaste, we could become liable for investigatingemediating contamination at our
current or former properties or other propertiesl(iding offsite waste disposal locations). We mayalways be in complete compliance with
all applicable requirements of environmental lawegulation, and we may receive notices of violatio become subject to enforcement
actions or incur material costs or liabilities mnoection with such requirements. In addition, mewironmental requirements or changes to
interpretations of existing requirements, or initle@forcement, could have a material adverse effeour business, results of operations and
financial condition. For example, while we are lesge emitters of greenhouse gases, laws, regnfatind certain regional initiatives under
consideration by
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the U.S. Congress, the U.S. Environmental Protedigency and various states, and in effect in aeftaeign jurisdictions, could result in
increased operating costs to control and monitoh &missions. We have made and will continue toaredpenditures to comply with
environmental requirements. While our costs to wefend settle claims arising under environmentasla the past have not been material,
such costs may be material in the future.

We are involved in legal proceedings as well as owencial and contractual disputes, from time to timehich may have an adverse impact
on our profitability.

We are involved in legal proceedings, commercia emntractual disputes which may, at times, beiggmt. These claims include
warranty, commercial disputes, intellectual propéisputes, employment matters, tax and adminiggabatters and personal injury claims.
We believe our reserves are adequate, howeveiintddiability could differ materially from our ésnates and our results from operations
could be affected.

The Company’s expected annual effective tax rateldabe volatile and could materially change as astét of changes in many items
including mix of earnings, debt and capital struatet and other factors.

Many items could impact the Company’s effective tabe including changes in the Company’s debt apital structure, mix of earnings
and many other factors. The Company’s overall &ffedax rate is based upon the consolidated taemse as a percentage of consolidated
earnings before tax. However, tax expenses andibeare not recognized on a consolidated or glbbais, but rather on a jurisdictional, legal
entity basis. Further, certain jurisdictions in afhthe Company operates generate losses whereammicfinancial statement benefit is realiz
In addition, certain jurisdictions have statutoayess greater than or less than the United Steaggaty rate. As such, changes in the mix and
source of earnings between jurisdictions could resgnificant impact on the Company’s overall efffiee tax rate in future years. Changes in
rules related to accounting for income taxes, charnig tax laws and rates or adverse outcomes fa@raudits that occur regularly in any of the
Company'’s jurisdictions could also have a signiftcanpact on the Company’s overall effective tateria future periods.

Our capital structure includes a substantial amouat indebtedness and preferred stock, which impdsenands on our liquidity that could
have a material adverse effect on our financial atition or on our ability to obtain financing in thduture.

We have a substantial amount of debt outstandirdiiding our Senior Notes and the debt of certaigifn subsidiaries, aggregating
approximately $488.7 million that requires sigraifint principal and interest payments, and prefesteck outstanding that may require
significant preferred dividend payments. We arenpited by the terms of the Senior Notes and SehRir facility to incur substantial
additional indebtedness, subject to the restristibierein, which could:

. make it more difficult for us to satisfy our oblifns under the Senior Notes, the ABL facility and preferred stoct

. increase our vulnerability to adverse economicgemkeral industry conditions, including intereserfitictuations, since a portion of
our borrowings are at variable rates of inter

. require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofcash flow from operations to principal and intémsyments on our debt and, if we
so elect, cash dividend payments on our prefeteak swhich would reduce the availability of ousbaflow from operations to
service additional debt or to fund working capitapital expenditures or other general corporatpgaes; ani

. increase our cost of borrowin
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We may not be able to generate sufficient cashdovie all of our indebtedness and to meet any diérid obligations of our preferred stock.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on our dabtmeet the potential cash dividend obligationsusfpreferred stock or to refinance
these obligations depends on our financial condligind operating performance. If our cash flows @aqgital resources are insufficient to fund
our debt service obligations and any cash dividahiifjations on our preferred stock, we may be foitwereduce or delay investments and
capital expenditures, sell material assets, seditiadal capital or restructure or refinance owtébtedness or our preferred stock, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businessltsesf operations and financial condition.

Our pension plans are currently underfunded and wey have to make cash payments to the plans, resyithe cash available for our
business.

We sponsor various pension plans worldwide thauaderfunded and will require cash payments. Adddlly, if the performance of the
assets in our pension plans does not meet our &tjpers, or if other actuarial assumptions are ffidlj our required contributions may be
higher than we expect. If our cash flow from opiera is insufficient to fund our worldwide pensikebilities, we may be forced to reduce or
delay capital expenditures, seek additional capitaleek to restructure or refinance our indebtesloe sell assets.

As of December 31, 2011, our $308.1 million progeicbenefit obligation, or (“PBO”), for U.S. pensibanefit obligations exceeded the
fair value of the relevant plans’ assets, whichled $213.9 million, by $94.2 million. Additionallthe international employees’ plans’ PBO
exceeded plan assets by approximately $100.1 miifoof December 31, 2011. The PBO for other piirgneent benefits, or OPEB, was $6
million as of December 31, 2011. Our estimated fagdequirement for pensions and OPEB during 281&pproximately $22.3 million. Net
periodic benefit costs for U.S. and internatiorlahg, including pension benefits and OPEB, weré $llion, $5.2 million and $12.7 million
for the five months ended May 31, 2010, the sevenths ended December 31, 2010 and the year endesiviber 31, 2011, respectively. For
more information, see notes 10 and 11 to the adidib@solidated financial statements.

Significant changes in discount rates, the actuaturn on pension assets and other factors could exdely affect our liquidity, results ¢
operations and financial condition.

Our earnings may be positively or negatively impddby the amount of income or expense recordetkrkta our qualified pension
plans. Accounting principles generally acceptethawUnited States (“GAAP”) require that income rpense related to the pension plans be
calculated at the annual measurement date usiogréadtcalculations, which reflect certain assumpti The most significant of these
assumptions relate to interest rates, the capiakets and other economic conditions. Changesyirekenomic indicators can change these
assumptions. These assumptions, as well as thal aetlue of pension assets at the measurementwiditanpact the calculation of pension
expense for the year. Although GAAP expense andipercontributions are not directly related, thg Eeonomic indicators that affect GAAP
expense also affect the amount of cash that wecwiitribute to our pension plans. Because the gadfithese pension assets have fluctuated
and will continue to fluctuate in response to chaggnarket conditions, the amount of gains or legbkat will be recognized in subsequent
periods, the impact on the funded status of theiperplans and the future minimum required contidnms, if any, could adversely affect our
liquidity, results of operations and financial cafwh.

Impairment charges relating to our goodwill and lg-lived assets could adversely affect our result®pérations.

We regularly monitor our goodwill and long-livedsass for impairment indicators. In conducting oaodwill impairment testing, we
compare the fair value of each of our reportingauto the related net book value. In conductingioyrairment analysis of lonkized assets, w
compare the undiscounted cash flows
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expected to be generated from the long-lived assdte related net book values. Changes in ecanoniperating conditions impacting our
estimates and assumptions could result in the irmeait of our goodwill or long-lived assets. In theent that we determine that our goodwill
or long-lived assets are impaired, we may be reguio record a significant charge to earnings, Wwhimuld adversely affect our results of
operations.

Certain shareholders with nomination agreements nimated a majority of the board of directors and thénterests in the Company may
conflict with your interests.

In accordance with our Plan of Reorganization &edEquity Commitment Agreement, our board of doects comprised of seven
directors, one of whom is our chief executive a@fiand two who are independent directors from oergmergence board of directors. In
addition, each of Barclays Capital Inc., and theugrof parties comprised of Capital Research andadgament Company, Lord, Abbett & Co.
LLC, TCW Asset Management Company and TD Asset iangent Inc. nominated one non-management memtmerr dfoard of directors in
reasonable consultation with (but without the nisedhe approval of) our chief executive officerdaan executive search firm, Korn/Ferry
International, mutually acceptable to such padied us. With respect to the non-management membengated as described above, such
nominations were made in consultation with the itoesf committee appointed in the Chapter 11 caselely to determine whether such
nominee had a prior relationship with any partyt fravided for the backstop of our rights offeric@nducted pursuant to the Plan of
Reorganization (“Backstop Partythat would reasonably be expected to influenceestezcise of his or her business judgment. Fin@gk Hill
Advisors, L.P. nominated one member of our boardifctors and Silver Point Capital, L.P. nominat@@ member.

The Backstop Parties will have the right to nomenaembers to our board of directors until the eadf (i) termination of the applicable
Nomination Agreement (as defined below) at thetelamf the applicable Backstop Party by writtertio® to us, (ii) immediately prior to tt
annual meeting of stockholders held during therzde year 2013 and (iii) if the applicable BacksRasty together with its affiliates ceases to
beneficially own at least 7.5% of our outstandingity (on an as converted basis).

As long as the Backstop Parties (whether or nét@ah a coordinated manner) and any other suliatastbckholder own, directly or
indirectly, a substantial portion of our outstarglghares, they will be able to exert significaffiui@nce over us, including:

. the composition of our board of directors and, tigtoit, any determination with respect to our bass;

. direction and policies, including the appointmemd aemoval of officers

. the determination of incentive compensation, whiwy affect our ability to retain key employe

. any determinations with respect to mergers or dilieiness combination

. our acquisition or disposition of asse

. our financing decisions and our capital raisingvites;

. the payment of dividend

. conduct in regulatory and legal proceedings;

. amendments to our certificate of incorporati

The concentration of ownership of our outstandiggity in the Backstop Parties may make some trdimsecmore difficult or impossib
without the support of the Backstop Parties or nli&edy with the support of the Backstop PartiebeTinterests of any of the Backstop Parties,
any other substantial stockholder or any of thespective affiliates could conflict with or diffeflom our interests or the interests of holders of

the Senior Notes. For example, the concentratiawafership held by the Backstop Parties could delafer or prevent a change of control of
our company or impede a merger, takeover or othsinkess combination which
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may otherwise be favorable for our stockholder&akkstop Party, substantial stockholder or afflititereof may also pursue acquisition
opportunities that may be complementary to ourrmss, and as a result, those acquisition oppaeanitay not be available to us.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes and thedit agreement governing our Senior ABL Facility pose significant operating and
financial restrictions on us and our subsidiariesshich may prevent us from capitalizing on businegsportunities.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes and tbdittagreement governing our Senior ABL Facilitypimse significant operating and
financial restrictions on us. These restrictionsitiour ability, among other things, to:

. incur additional indebtedness or issue certainugibfied stock and preferred stoc

. pay dividends or certain other distributions on capital stock or repurchase our capital st

. make certain investments or other restricted paysn

. place restrictions on the ability of our restricedbsidiaries to pay dividends or make other paysienus;
. engage in transactions with affiliate

. sell certain assets or merge with or into other ganes;

. guarantee indebtedness; ¢

. create liens

There are limitations on our ability to incur thél 125 million of commitments under our Senior IABacility. Borrowings under our
Senior ABL Facility are limited by a specified bawing base consisting of a percentage of eligibants receivable and eligible inventory,
less customary reserves imposed by the agent emudé&enior ABL Facility. In addition, under our $enABL Facility, a monthly fixed char¢
maintenance covenant would become applicable #gxavailability under our Senior ABL Facility isaay time less than a specified
percentage (or amount) of the total revolving loammitments. If the covenant trigger were to oc@goper-Standard Holdings Inc. would be
required to satisfy and maintain, on a consolidaizsls, on the last day of each month a fixed ehaoyerage ratio of at least 1.1 to 1.0. Our
ability to meet the required fixed charge coveragj® can be affected by events beyond our cordral, we cannot assure that we will meet
ratio. A breach of any of these covenants couldltés a default under our Senior ABL Facility.

Moreover, our Senior ABL Facility provides the lemsl considerable discretion to impose reserves;wdould materially reduce the
amount of borrowings that would otherwise be awdédo us. There can be no assurance that therkendder our Senior ABL Facility will ne
impose such reserves during the term of our S&dr Facility and further, were they to do so, tlesulting impact of this action could
materially and adversely impair our ability to makgerest payments on the Senior Notes. Also, whad for as long as) the availability under
our Senior ABL Facility is less than a specifiedoamt for a certain period of time, the agent uraerSenior ABL Facility would exercise c:
dominion.

As a result of these covenants and restrictionsanedimited in how we conduct our business andnag be unable to raise additional
debt or equity financing to compete effectivelyt@take advantage of new business opportunities.t&ims of any future indebtedness we |
incur could include more restrictive covenants. tanot assure that we will be able to maintain d@npe with these covenants in the future
and, if we fail to do so, that we will be able tfot@in waivers from the lenders or holders of thei@eNotes and/or amend the covenants.
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Certain natural disasters may adversely affect duursiness.

Natural disasters such as earthquakes, tsunamisoasthl flooding or other adverse climate condg&jovhether occurring in the U.S. or
abroad, and the consequences and effects thamehfding energy shortages and public health issuag,adversely affect our business. Such
natural disasters could cause damage or disruftionr business operations or the operations otostomers, suppliers or joint venture
affiliates or result in economic instability.

The significant earthquake, tsunami and relatedagdgmto a nuclear plant in Japan in early 2011 chdiseuptions in the distribution and
supply chain in the automotive industry includingrertage of certain materials and components g @EM and supplier plant shutdowns
and adversely affecting global vehicle productiotumes.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

ltem 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2011, our operations were caiedutirough 80 facilities in 19 countries, of whith are manufacturing facilities e
nine are used for multiple purposes, including gleseéngineering and administration. Our corpora&diquarters is located in Novi, Michigan.
Our manufacturing facilities are located in Norttmérica, Europe, Asia, South America and Australia. believe that substantially all of our
properties are in good condition and that we haNkcient capacity to meet our current and projdateanufacturing and design needs. The
following table summarizes our key property holdiry geographic region:

Total Owned

Region Type Facilities Facilities

North America Manufacturing 28 24
Other(a) 3 —

Asia Manufacturing 18 8
Other(a) 2 —

Europe Manufacturing 21 16
Other(a) 3 —

South Americe Manufacturing 3 1
Other(a) 1 —

Australia Manufacturing 1 1

(@) Includes design, engineering or administrative tiocs.
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Our principal owned and leased properties, andhtimeber of facilities in each location with morertane facility are set forth below.

Location Principal Products Owned/Lease(
North America
United States

30

Auburn, Indiane Anti-Vibration System: Owned
Auburn Hills, Michigan(a Design, engineering and administrat Leasec
Bowling Green, Ohio(2)(1c Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Owned
Bremen, Indiana(k Body Sealinc Owned
East Tawas, Michiga Fluid Handling Owned
Fairview, Michigan Fluid Handling Owned
Farmington Hills, Michigan(a Design, engineering and administrat Leasec
Gaylord, Michigar Body Sealing Owned
Goldsboro, North Carolina(: Body Sealing Owned
Leonard, Michigar Fluid Handling Owned
Mt. Sterling, Kentucky Fluid Handling Owned
New Lexington, Ohic Fluid Handling Owned
Novi, Michigan(a) Design, engineering and administrat Leasec
Oscoda, Michigal Fluid Handling Owned
Rockford, Tennesse Body Sealing Owned
Spartanburg, South Carolil Body Sealinc Owned
Surgoinsville, Tennesst Fluid Handling Leasec
Topeka, Indiana(kt Body Sealing Owned

Canada
Georgetown, Ontari Body Sealinc Owned
Glencoe, Ontari Fluid Handling Owned
Mitchell, Ontario Anti-Vibration System: Owned
Stratford, Ontario(2 Body Sealinc Owned

Mexico
Aguacaliente: Body Sealing Leasec
Atlacomulco Fluid Handling Owned
Guaymas Fluid Handling Leasec
Juare: Fluid Handling Owned
Saltillo Fluid Handling Leasec
Torreon Fluid Handling Owned

South America

Brazil
Camacar Fluid Handling Leasec
Sao Bernardo(e Sales & Administratiot Leasec
Sao Paulc Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Leasec
Varginha Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Owned

Europe

Belgium
Gent Body Sealinc Leasec

Czech Republic
Zdar Fluid Handling Owned

France
Argenteuil(a)(b) Design, engineering and administrat Leasec
Baclair(b)(c) Body Sealing Leasec
Creutzwalc Fluid Handling Owned
Lillebonne(b) Body Sealing Owned
Rennes(b Body Sealing Owned
Vitré(b) Body Sealing Owned
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(@) Denotes no-manufacturing locations, including design, engiimegor administrative location

(b) Denotes a joint venture facilit
(c) Denotes a location will be closed in 20
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Location Principal Products Owned/Lease(

Germany

Griinberg Fluid Handling Leasec

Hockenheinr Fluid Handling Owned

Lindau Body Sealinc Owned

Mannheim Body Sealing Owned

Schelklinger Fluid Handling Owned
Italy

Battipaglia Body Sealing Owned

Cirie Body Sealing Owned
Netherlands

Amsterdam(a Administration Leasec
Poland

Bielskc-Biala Body Sealinc Owned

Czestochowi Anti-Vibration and Body Sealin Owned

Dzierzoniow(2) Body Sealing Owned

Myslenice Body Sealinc Leasec

Piotrkow Body Sealing Owned
Romania

Craiova Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Leasec
United Kingdom

Coventry(a) Design, engineering and administrat Leasec

Asia Pacific

Australia

Adelaide Industrial Product Owned
China

Chongqing Fluid Handling Owned

Huak-an(b) Body Sealing Leasec

Jingzhou(b’ Fluid Handling Owned

Kunshan Anti-Vibration, Body Sealing and Fluid Handlil Owned

Panyu(b) Body Sealing Leasec

Shanghai(b Body Sealing Owned

Wuhu Body Sealinc Owned
India

Chenna Fluid Handling Leasec

Dharuhera(b Body Sealinc Leasec

Mumbai(b) Anti-Vibration Leasec

Sahibabad(b Body Sealing Leasec

Manesar(b Body Sealinc Leasec

Pune Fluid Handling Leasec
Japan

Hiroshima(a) Design, engineering and administrat Leasec

Nagoya(a Design, engineering and administrat Leasec
Korea

Cheon¢-Ju Body Sealinc Owned

Gimhue Body Sealinc Leasec

Gunsar Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Leasec

Sec«-Cheon Gur Body Sealing and Fluid Handlir Owned
Thailand

Nakon Ratchasma(l Body Sealing Owned
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ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

We are periodically involved in claims, litigati@md various legal matters that arise in the ordicaurse of business. In addition, we
conduct and monitor environmental investigationd emmedial actions at certain locations. Each e§¢hmatters is subject to various
uncertainties, and some of these matters may bé/egsunfavorably for us. If appropriate we estsibla reserve estimate for each matter and
update our estimate as additional information bexpavailable. We do not believe that the ultimasslution of any of these matters will have
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, anddsuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Market Information

Our common stock has been quoted on the OTC BulRdiard since May 27, 2010 under the symbol “COS.and our warrants have
been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board since Jurg920 under the symbol “COSHW.OB.” No prior estslid public trading market existed
for our common stock or warrants prior to thesesat

There currently is a limited trading market for @ammon stock and warrants. The following chatsltie high and low sale prices for
shares of our common stock and warrants for thendalr quarters indicated through December 31, 286@idDecember 31, 2011. These prices
are between dealers and do not include retail npasrkmarkdowns or other fees and commissions andnmitaepresent actual transactions:

Common Stock Warrants
2010 High Low High Low
June 30, 201 $ 35.7¢ $ 31.5C $ 17.0C $ 14.0C
September 30, 201 $ 37.0C $ 27.4t $ 20.0( $ 13.0(
December 31, 201 $ 495¢ $ 36.0C $ 28.0( $ 15.0C
Common Stock Warrants
2011 High Low High Low
March 31, 201: $ 52.0( $ 43.7¢ $ 35.0( $ 24.0(
June 30, 201 $ 51.5(C $ 41.4¢ $ 30.0( $ 23.0(
September 30, 201 $ 49.7¢ $ 37.0( $ 26.9¢ $ 22.0C
December 31, 201 $ 41.5C $ 33.2 $ 20.0( $  14.2

Holders of Common Stock

As of the date hereof, an aggregate of 7,543,88Feshof our common stock may be purchased upoexiéreise of outstanding options,
issued upon the exercise of our outstanding wasramdl issued upon the conversion of our outstarshiages of 7% preferred stock.

As of February 1, 2012 we had approximately 358léid of record of our common stock, based on inédion provided by our transfer
agent.

Dividends

CooperStandard Holdings Inc. has never paid or declamdigidend on its common stock. The declarationrof prospective dividends
at the discretion of the Board of Directors and lddae dependent upon sufficient earnings, capialiirements, financial position, general
economic conditions, state law requirements, ahdraielevant factors. Additionally, our credit agmeent governing our Senior ABL Facility
and the Senior Notes indenture contain covenaatsatinong other things restrict our ability to paytain dividends and distributions subject to
certain qualifications and limitations. We do notieipate paying any dividends on our common stadke forseeable future.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return from May 27, 2010, the date af @mergence from Chapter 11
bankruptcy proceedings, through December 31, 2@t Zooper-Standard Holdings Inc. existing commtarls, the Standard & Poor’s 500
Index and the Standard & Poor’s Supercomposite Raiits & Equipment Index based on currently avédlaata. The graph assumes an initial
investment of $100 on May 27, 2010 and reflectsctivaulative total return on that investment, indhgdthe reinvestment of all dividends
where applicable, through December 31, 2011.

Comparison of Cumulative Return

5150.00
$125.00 —_-
— === (popar Standard Holdings Inc
\ —8— S&P 500
$100.00 & Supercomposite Auto
%7500
542772010 12/31/2010 12/30/2011 (1}
Ticker 5/27/2010 12/31/2010 12/30/2011 (1

Coope-Standard Holdings In¢ COSH.OE $ 100.01 $ 130.4. $ 100.0
S&P 500 SPX $ 100.0( $ 115.2¢ $ 117.6%
S&P Supercomposite Auto Parts & Equipment In S15AUTP $ 100.0¢ $ 142.4¢ % 124.2;

(1) Represents last trading day of the year.

Item 6. Selected Financial Date

The selected financial data for the years endegiber 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, the five months endag 34, 2010, the seven months
ended December 31, 2010 and the year ended Dec&hpb2011 have been derived from our consolidadtexhtial statements, which have
been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our Independegistered Public Accounting Firm.

The audited consolidated statements of operatgiatements of changes in equity (deficit) and statds of cash flows for the year en
December 31, 2009, the five months ended May 310 2fhe seven months ended December 31, 2010 aneén ended December 31, 2011
are included elsewhere in this Annual Report omFd0-K. The audited consolidated balance sheeat$ Rscember 31, 2010 and 2011 are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on ForrKl@ee Item 8. “Financial Statements and Suppl¢angrata.”

In connection with our emergence from bankruptdgaive May 31, 2010, we implemented “fresh-staittounting. As required by
“fresh-start” accounting, assets and liabilitiegeveecorded at fair value, based on values detedriimconnection with the implementation of
the Debtors’ Joint Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganizadioour Plan of Reorganization. Accordingly, omahcial condition and results of
operations from and after our emergence from ban&yare not comparable to the financial condittomesults of operations reflected in our
historical financial statements for periods primour emergence from bankruptcy.
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You should read the following data in conjunctioithaitem 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analydigioancial Condition and
Results of Operations” and our consolidated finalnsiatements and the notes thereto included etsewh this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Predecesso Successol
Seven Months
Year Ended December 31 Five Months Ended
Ended December 31, Year Ended
2007 2008 2009 May 31, 2010 2010 December 31, 201

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amouts)
Statement of operations:

Sales $ 2,511 $ 2,594.( $ 1,945 ¢ 1,009. ¢ 1,405 $ 2,853
Cost of products sol 2,114.; 2,260.. 1,679.( 832.2 1,172.¢ 2,402.¢
Gross profit 397.1 334.t 266.: 176.¢ 232.¢ 450.¢
Selling, administration, & engineering expen 222.1 231.7 199.t 92.1 159.t 257.¢
Amortization of intangible: 31.¢ 31.C 15.C 0.2 9.C 15.¢
Impairment charge 146.< 334 363.t - - -
Restructuring 26.4 38.% 324 5.8 0.5 52.2
Operating profit (loss (29.7) 0.1 (344.7) 78.€ 63.€ 125.2
Interest expense, net of interest incc (89.5) (92.9) (64.%) (44.5) (25.0 (40.5)
Equity earnings 2.2 0.¢ 4.0 ELE 34 5.4
Reorganization items and fre-start accounting adjustments, - - (17.4) 303.¢ - -
Other income (expense), r (0.5) (1.4) 9.9 (21.2) 4.2 7.2
Income (loss) before income tax (117.5) (93.9) (411.9 319.¢ 46.2 97.2
Provision (benefit) for income tax: 32.¢ 29.5 (55.7) 39.¢ 5.1 20.€
Consolidated net income (los (150.9 (122.¢) (356.2) 280.( 41.1 76.5
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrollinggi@sts (0.6) 1.1 0.1 (0.3) (0.5) 26.2
Net income (loss) attributable to Coo-Standard Holdings Inc $ (151.0 § (1215 $ (356.)) $ 2795 $ 40.€ $ 102.¢
Net income available to Cooj-Standard Holdings Inc. common

stockholder: ¢ 28.7 $ 158
Basic net income per share attributable to Coopeneaird Holdings

Inc. $ 1.64 $ 4.21
Diluted net income per share attributable to Codftandard

Holdings Inc. ¢ ik $ 3.93

Balance sheet data (at end of period

Cash and cash equivale $ 40¢ $ 111t ¢ 380.2 ¢ 294.t $ 361.7
Net working capital (1 249.¢ 154.t 240.¢ 175.2 193.¢
Total asset 2,162.: 1,818. 1,737 1,853.¢ 2,003.¢
Total nor-current liabilities 1,351.¢ 1,346.¢ 263.¢ 745.7 779.%
Total debt (2] 1,140. 1,144.: 204.: 476.1 488.7
Liabilities subject to compromis - - 1,261.¢ - -
Preferred stoc - - - 130.: 125.¢
Total equity/(deficit) 276.¢ 19.7 (306.5) 563.1 601.2
Statement of cash flows data
Net cash provided (used) k
Operating activitie: $ 185. $ 136.f ¢ 130.C ¢ (75.9) ¢ 170.¢ $ 172.%
Investing activities (260.0) (73.9) (45.5) (19.7) (51.¢) (73.¢)
Financing activitie: 55.C 14.1 166.1 (112.¢) (2.4 (24.¢)
Other financial data:
Capital expenditure $ 107.c ¢ 921 ¢ 461 ¢ 22.¢ $ 54.4 $ 108.%

(1) Net working capital is defined as current assetsl@gling cash and cash equivalents) less currabiliies (excluding debt payable within one ye
(2) Includes $450.0 million of our Senior Notes, $0.8iom in capital leases, and $38.2 million of othkird-party debt at December 31, 20
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

This management’s discussion and analysis of fiahoondition and results of operations is intendedssist in understanding and
assessing the trends and significant changes imesults of operations and financial condition. Quistorical results may not indicate, and
should not be relied upon as an indication of, future performance. Our forward-looking statemenmeffect our current views about future
events, are based on assumptions and are subj&obten and unknown risks and uncertainties thatccoause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by these stattsnS&ee Iltem 1. “Business—Forward-Looking Statésiiéor a discussion of risks
associated with reliance on forward-looking statetse Factors that may cause differences betwearabitsults and those contemplated by
forward-looking statements include, but are not limitedthmse discussed below and elsewhere in this Afeort on Form 10-K,
particularly in Item 1A“Risk Factors.” Management’s discussion and anaysi financial condition and results of operati@i®uld be read
in conjunction with Item 6.” Selected Financial Ratand our consolidated financial statements and tiotes to those statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Basis of Presentation

The financial information included in this Annuagport on Form 10-K represents our consolidatechfiied position as of December 31,
2010 and 2011 and our consolidated results of tipasaand cash flows for the year ended Decembge?2@19, the five months ended May 31,
2010, the seven months ended December 31, 201tharyear ended December 31, 2011. On May 31, 2@l@depted “fresh-start”
accounting and became a new entity for financiabrééng purposes. See Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accagiitio the consolidated financial
statements

Company Overview

We design, manufacture and sell body sealing, Anbfluid handling components, systems, subsystemsradules for use in passer
vehicles and light trucks manufactured by globaM3EIn 2011, approximately 81% of our sales coesigif original equipment sold directly
to OEMs for installation on new vehicles. The renivag 19% of our sales were primarily to Tier | aridr 1l suppliers and non-automotive
manufacturers. Accordingly, sales of our productsdirectly affected by the annual vehicle produttdf OEMs and, in particular, the
production levels of the vehicles for which we gdevspecific parts. Most of our products are custtasigned and engineered for a specific
vehicle platform. Our sales and product developrpensonnel frequently work directly with the OEMsigineering departments in the design
and development of our various products.

Although each OEM may emphasize different requireias the primary criteria for judging its supgdienve believe success as an
automotive supplier generally requires outstangiegjormance with respect to price, quality, serverformance, design and engineering
capabilities, innovation and timely delivery. Imgontly, we believe our continued commitment to stweent in our design and engineering
capability, including enhanced computerized sofendesign capabilities, is important to our futurecess, and many of our present initiatives
are designed to enhance these capabilities. Iniaddin order to remain competitive we must alsasistently achieve and sustain cost sav
In an effort to continuously reduce our cost stioet we seek to identify and implement “lean” itives, which focus on optimizing
manufacturing by eliminating waste, controlling tsognd enhancing productivity. We evaluate oppatigsito consolidate facilities and to
relocate certain operations to lower cost countiés believe we will continue to be successfulum efforts to improve our design and
engineering capability and manufacturing procesggke achieving cost savings, including through man initiatives.

Our OEM sales are principally generated from puseharders issued by OEMs and as a result we hawedeo backlog. Once selected
by an OEM to supply products for a particular mati, we typically supply those products for the liff the platform, which is normally three
to five years; although there is no guaranteetthiatwill occur. In addition, when we are the induent supplier to a given platform, we believe
we have a competitive advantage in winning thesiggheor replacement platform.
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In the year ended December 31, 2011, approximat@ly of our sales were generated in North Americéevapproximately 50% of our
sales were generated outside of North America. Bsaf our significant international operations,ave subject to the risks associated with
doing business in other countries. Historically; operations in Canada and Western Europe haverasénted materially different risks or
problems from those we have encountered in theedr8tates, although the cost and complexity oésthi@ing operations in certain European
countries is greater than would be the case itthited States. This is due primarily to labor lawshose countries that can make reducing
employment levels more time-consuming and expertbiae in the United States. We believe the risksoofducting business in less developed
markets, including Brazil, Mexico, Poland, CzeclpRaic, China, Korea and India are sometimes grehtm in the U.S., Canadian and
Western European markets. This is due to the gatdat currency volatility, high interest and iaflon rates, and the general political and
economic instability that are associated with saftiese markets.

Reorganization

On May 27, 2010, we emerged from bankruptcy proogsdunder Chapter 11 of the United States Banky@bde. In accordance with
the provisions of FASB ASC 852 Reorganizations’ we adopted fresh-start accounting upon our esrerg from Chapter 11 bankruptcy
proceedings and became a new entity for finanejabrting purposes as of June 1, 2010. Accordirig/consolidated financial statements for
the reporting entity subsequent to emergence froiap@r 11 bankruptcy proceedings (the “Successo€’hot comparable to the consolidated
financial statements for the reporting entity ptmemergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedig “Predecessor”). The “Company,”
when used in reference to the period subsequearh&rgence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceediefexsrto the Successor, and when used
in reference to periods prior to emergence fromp@drall bankruptcy proceedings, refers to the Resimr. For further information, see Note
3. “Reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Banlay@ode,” and Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accounting,the consolidated financial statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Business Environment and Outlook

Our business is directly affected by the automotiviéd rates in North America and Europe. It isodieecoming increasingly impacted by
build rates in Brazil and Asia Pacific. New vehidiemand is driven by macro-economic and other facguch as interest rates, manufacturer
and dealer sales incentives, fuel prices, conswoidence, employment levels, income growth tregmits government and tax incentives. The
expected annualized light vehicle production volarfae 2012 are 13.9 million units in North Amerigad 18.5 million units in Europe,
according to IHS Automotive in December 2011.

According to IHS Automotive, actual North Americlght vehicle production volumes for 2011 were 1@illion units compared to
11.9 million units in 2010, an increase of approxtety 10%, and European light vehicle productiolurres were 20.1 million units for 2011
compared to 19.1 million units in 2010, an increasapproximately 5%.

Competition in the automotive supplier industrynense and has increased in recent years as OBMsdemonstrated a preference for
stronger relationships with fewer suppliers. Theme typically three or more significant competitarsl numerous smaller competitors for most
of the products we produce. Globalization and thedrtance to service customers around the worldcwaiitinue to shape the success of
suppliers going forward.

OEMs have shifted some research and developmesigrdand testing responsibility to suppliers, whitéhe same time shortening new
product cycle times. To remain competitive, supplimust have state-of-the-art engineering and desigabilities and must be able to
continuously improve their engineering, design arahufacturing processes to effectively servicectiomer. Suppliers are increasingly
expected to collaborate on, or assume the prodsityd and development of, key automotive comporemdsto provide innovative solutions
meet evolving technologies aimed at improved emissand fuel economy.
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Pricing pressure has continued as competition famket share has reduced the overall profitabilitthe industry and resulted in
continued pressure on suppliers for price concassiGonsolidations and market share shifts amohgleemanufacturers continues to put
additional pressures on the supply chain. Thesgngrand market pressures, along with the reducediugtion volumes, will continue to drive
our focus on reducing our overall cost structureudgh lean initiatives, capital redeployment, nesturing and other cost management
processes.

Our business has also been impacted by our adquoisit USi and the joint venture agreement with FPMBur sales have increased as a
result of these two acquisitions, but we contirugntur additional costs as we integrate and resira these businesses. In evaluating these
businesses, management considers EBITDA and AdjiEBETDA as key indicators of operating performantie following table shows
combined gross margin for the acquisitions andmeites EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the acquisitis to their net loss, which is the
most directly comparable financial measure in agance with GAAP (dollars in millions):

Year Ended

December 31, 201

Sales $ 157
Cost of products sol 153.
Gross margir $ 4.5
Net loss $ (25.9)
Provision for income tax expen 0.t
Interest expens 0.t
Depreciation and amortizatic 5.2
EBITDA $ (19.1)
Restructuring 40.2
Noncontrolling interest restructurir (19.9
Acquisition cost: 0.t
Inventory write-up 0.7
Adjusted EBITDA $ 2.4
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Results of Operations

As a result of our emergence from Chapter 11 bamkyproceedings on May 27, 2010, and the adomtidresh-start accounting on
May 31, 2010, in accordance with ASC 85R¢&organizations, Cooper Standard Holdings Inc. is considered a aptity for financial
reporting purposes. Accordingly, our financial staénts for the year ended December 31, 2010 sefjapaesent the 2010 Predecessor Period
and the 2010 Successor Period. Although the 20&8eRessor Period and the 2010 Successor Peridistinet reporting periods, the effects
emergence and fresh-start accounting did not hawatarial impact on the comparability of our resuft operations between the periods,
except as discussed below (dollar amounts in thalssaxcept per share amounts).

Predecessol Successo
Five Months Endec Seven Months Ende
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 20C May 31, 2010 December 31, 201! December 31, 201
Sales $ 1,9452t % 1,009,172 $ 1,405,001 $ 2,853,5C
Cost of products sol 1,678,95. 832,20: 1,172,35! 2,402,921
Gross profi 266,30¢ 176,92 232,66 450,58
Selling, administration & engineering
expense: 199,55:; 92,16¢ 159,57¢ 257,55¢
Amortization of intangible: 14,97¢ 31¢ 8,98: 15,60:
Impairment charge 363,49¢ - - -
Restructuring 32,41 5,89: 48€ 52,20¢
Operating profit (loss (344,129 78,54¢ 63,62¢ 125,22:
Interest expense, net of interest incc (64,339 (44,504 (25,017 (40,559
Equity earningt 4,03¢ 3,61 3,391 5,42¢
Reorganization items and fre-start
accounting adjustments, r (17,36 303,45! - -
Other income (expense), r 9,91¢ (21,156 4,214 7,174
Income (loss) before income tax (411,879 319,95¢ 46,22( 97,26:
Provision (benefit) for income tax exper (55,686 39,94( 5,09¢ 20,76¢
Consolidated net income (los (356,18%) 280,01« 41,12¢ 76,49¢
Net (income) loss attributable
noncontrolling interest 12€ (322) (549) 26,34¢
Net income (loss) attributable to Coo-
Standard Holdings In $ (356,06 $ 279,69. $ 40,57¢ $ 102,84
Net income available to Cooj-Standarc
Holdings Inc. common stockholde $ 28,72. % 75,26(
Basic net income per share attributable t
Coope-Standard Holdings In¢ $ 164 $ 4.2
Diluted net income per share attributable to
Coope-Standard Holdings In $ 158 % 3.9¢
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Year ended December 31, 2011, Seven Months Endextber 31, 2010 and Five Months Ended May 31, 2010.

SalesSales for the year ended December 31, 2011 we8533, million. Sales were favorably impacted byirammease in volumes in
most regions and favorable foreign exchange of$dllion. In addition, the USi acquisition and tjeént venture with FMEA provided $157
million of sales. Sales for the seven months erdiescember 31, 2010 were $1,405 million. Sales waverbbly impacted by a significant
increase in volume, partially offset by unfavorafaeeign exchange of $29.3 million. Sales were 82,0 million for the five months ended
May 31, 2010. Sales were favorably impacted byaificant increase in volume and favorable foreggehange of $52.5 million.

Cost of Products Soldost of products sold is primarily comprised of en&l, labor, manufacturing overhead, depreciasiod
amortization and other direct operating expensest 6f products sold was $2,402.9 million for tleayended December 31, 2011 and raw
materials represented 51% of total cost of prodscis. The period was impacted by higher matenatsand other variable costs as a result of
increases in production volumes, increases in coditynoosts and higher labor costs due to the amtilihires to support the increase in
volumes. In addition, the period was impacted yWsi acquisition, the joint venture with FMEA agielpreciation and amortization expense
of $99.1 million. Cost of products sold was $1,#7aillion for the seven month Successor period dridlecember 31, 2010 and $832.2 mill
for the five month Predecessor period ended MayB10. Raw materials comprise the largest compowofemdir cost of products sold and
represented approximately 49% of total cost of pot&isold for both the Successor and Predecessodsén 2010. Cost of products sold for
the seven months ended December 31, 2010 was ietphgthigher material costs and other variablescasta result of increases in production
volumes, increases in commodity costs and highoarlaosts due to the additional hires to supparsignificant increase in volumes in most
regions as well as the restoration of certain eygd@ay and benefits. In addition, the period wgsaicted by depreciation and amortization
expense of $52.2 million and by an inventory caftistment resulting from fresh-start accounting®f1l million. Cost of products sold for the
five months ended May 31, 2010 was impacted bydrighaterial costs and other variable costs asudt i&sincreases in volumes, increases in
commodity costs and higher labor costs due to daitianal hires to support the significant increasgolumes in most regions as well as the
restoration of certain employee pay and benefitglionally, the period was impacted by depreciatimd amortization expense of $32.1
million.

Gross Profit.Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2044 $450.6 million or 15.8% of sales. Gross prafd gross profit
margin for the period were favorably impacted byirammease in volumes in most regions and the fdlerenpact of our lean savings. These
positive items were partially offset by higher ravaterial costs and costs associated with the FMii# yenture and the USi acquisition as we
continue to integrate and restructure these buséise$sross profit for the seven months ended Deeeffih) 2010 and the five months ended
May 31, 2010 were $232.7 million and $176.9 milliogspectively. Gross profit as a percentage @ssaks 16.6% for the seven months ended
December 31, 2010 and 17.5% for the five monthedmday 31, 2010. Gross profit and gross profit rrafgr these two periods were
favorably impacted by a significant increase inwoés in most regions and our lean savings, pariditet by the restoration of certain
employee pay and benefits and slightly higher raatemal costs. The seven months ended Decemb@030,was also impacted by the
liguidation of the fair value adjustment to invertof $8.1 million, which was recognized in costsafles as the inventory was sold.

Selling, Administration and Engineeringelling, administration and engineering expenseHheryear ended December 31, 2011 was
$257.6 million or 9% of sales and was favorably atied by certain lower compensation expensesng8elidministration and engineering
expense for the seven months ended December 30 a2@lthe five months ended May 31, 2010 was $1Bdlidn and $92.2 million or
11.4% and 9.1% of sales, respectively. Both peneele primarily impacted by the restoration of agrtemployee pay and benefits.
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RestructuringRestructuring charges were $52.2 million for tharyended December 31, 2011, primarily related éar#organization of
our French body sealing operations in relationshithe joint venture with FMEA, the closure of &ifdly in North America, the establishment
of a centralized shared services function in Eummet the transfer of certain sealing business fsomof our German facilities to other sealing
operations in Europe. Restructuring charges wer® $lion for the seven months ended Decembe810, which were favorably impacted
by a curtailment gain relating to pension benefft$3.4 million. Restructuring expense for the frmenths ended May 31, 2010 were $5.9
million, primarily representing the continuationpreviously announced actions.

Interest Expense, ndlet interest expense of $40.6 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 resulted primarily frorerggt and del
issue amortization recorded on the Senior Notesintierest expense for the seven months ended Dmre®d, 2010 consisted primarily of
interest on our Senior Notes. The net interest es@éor the five months ended May 31, 2010 inclub2® million of interest on certain
prepetition debt obligations from the period AugBs2009 through May 27, 2010 and interest on thefBcility. The interest on the prepetit
debt obligation was recorded when our Plan of Ramization was approved by the claimholders.

Reorganization Items and Fresh-Start Accountingusisiients, netn the five months ended May 31, 2010, we recogh&egain of
$163.6 million for reorganization items as a resiithe bankruptcy proceedings. This gain refléistscancellation of certain prepetition
obligations, partially offset by the recognitiongbfessional fees incurred as a direct resulbhefitankruptcy proceedings. In addition, we
recognized a gain of $139.9 million related towhéuation of our net assets upon emergence fronpi€ha1 bankruptcy proceedings pursuant
to the provisions of fresh-start accounting.

Other Income (Expenseépther income for the for the year ended Decembge2311 was $7.2 million, which primarily relatesa@ain
on the partial sale of ownership in our NISCO jaiahture of $11.4 million and foreign currency gaof $2.8 million, partially offset by
unrealized losses related to forward contractd $illion and loss on factoring of receivables amiscellaneous expense of $1.7 million.
Other income for the seven months ended Decemhe&(3D was $4.2 million, which consisted of $3.4lion of foreign currency gains and
$1.5 million other income, partially offset by $ariillion of losses on factoring of receivables. €tlkexpense of $21.2 million for the five
months ended May 31, 2010, consisted primarilyooéifjn currency losses.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benektr the year ended December 31, 2011, we recomi@tame tax provision of $20.8 millic
on earnings before income taxes of $97.3 millidnisTtompares to an income tax provision of $5.1lionilon earnings before income taxes of
$46.2 million for the seven months ended Decemite2B810 and an income tax provision of $39.9 millam earnings before income taxes of
$319.9 million for the five months ended May 311@0Income tax expense for the twelve months el mber 31, 2011 differs from the
statutory rate primarily as a result of incomeurigdictions with valuation allowances offset bgri@mental valuation allowance recorded or
losses and credits generated in certain foreigediations; the distribution of income between th&. and foreign sources; tax credits and
incentives; and other non-recurring discrete items.

Seven Months Ended December 31, 2010, Five Monthsléd May 31, 2010 and Twelve Months ended Decerlie200¢

Sales Sales for the seven months ended December 31,8d0$1,405 million. Sales were favorably impadiga significant increase
in volume, partially offset by unfavorable foreigrchange of $29.3 million. Sales were $1,009.1lionilfor the five months ended May 31,
2010. Sales were favorably impacted by a signifitaerease in volume and favorable foreign exchasfdgb2.5 million. Sales for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2009 were $1,945.3 millio

Cost of Products Soldost of products sold is primarily comprised of en&l, labor, manufacturing overhead, depreciasiod
amortization and other direct operating expensest 6f products sold was

41



Table of Contents

$1,172.4 million for the seven month Successorgoeended December 31, 2010 and $832.2 millionHerfive month Predecessor period
ended May 31, 2010. Raw materials comprise thetdrgomponent of our cost of products sold andessrted approximately 49% of total
cost of products sold for both the Successor arddessor periods in 2010. Cost of products solthéoseven months ended December 31,
2010 was impacted by higher material costs and etlrgable costs as a result of increases in praglugolumes, increases in commodity cc
and higher labor costs due to the additional himesupport the significant increase in volumes wshregions as well as the restoration of
certain employee pay and benefits. In addition piréod was impacted by depreciation and amortinagixpense of $52.2 million and by an
inventory cost adjustment resulting from freshiséacounting of $8.1 million. Cost of products sfidd the five months ended May 31, 2010
was impacted by higher material costs and othealbkr costs as a result of increases in volumesg@ses in commodity costs and higher I
costs due to the additional hires to support theiicant increase in volumes in most regions al agethe restoration of certain employee pay
and benefits. Additionally, the period was impadigdiepreciation and amortization expense of $88Hlllon. Cost of products sold was
$1,679.0 million for the year ended December 3D928nd raw materials represented 45% of totalafgstoducts sold. The period was
impacted by depreciation and amortization expefi§9@.4 million.

Gross Profit.Gross profit for the seven months ended Decembe2@!l0 and the five months ended May 31, 2010 $282.7 million
and $176.9 million, respectively. Gross profit gseacentage of sales was 16.6% for the seven mentfed December 31, 2010 and 17.5% for
the five months ended May 31, 2010. Gross profit gross profit margin for these two periods wermfably impacted by a significant
increase in volumes in most regions and our legimga, partially offset by the restoration of cémtamployee pay and benefits and slightly
higher raw material costs. The seven months endegber 31, 2010 was also impacted by the liquidaif the fair value adjustment to
inventory of $8.1 million, which was recognizedcost of sales as the inventory was sold. Grosst@nodl gross profit as a percentage of sales
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 %266.3 million and 13.7%, respectively.

Selling, Administration and Engineeringelling, administration and engineering expense#i® seven months ended December 31,
were $159.6 million and $92.2 million for the fimeonths ended May 31, 2010. Both periods were priynanpacted by the restoration of
certain employee pay and benefits. Selling, adrnatisn and engineering expenses were $199.6 mifbo the twelve months ended
December 31, 2009.

Impairment Chargedn 2009, we recorded a goodwill impairment charg$1b7.2 million and impairment charges of $202 iliom
related to certain intangible assets and $3.8anilielated to certain fixed assets within our Ndéstherica and International segments. During
the second quarter of 2009, several events occthiegdndicated potential impairment of our goodwdther intangible assets and certain fixed
assets. Such events included: (a) the Chapterdlrigatcy of both Chrysler and GM and unplanned p&uut-downs by both Chrysler and
GM; (b) continued product volume risk and negapiveduct mix changes; (c) commencement of negotiatwith our former shareholders,
senior secured lenders and bondholders to recapitalir long term debt and equity; (d) recognitianthe second quarter progressed that there
was an increasing likelihood that we would breaghfmancial covenants under our prepetition cradittement; (e) our decision to defer our
June 15, 2009 interest payment on our prepetitoios and senior subordinated notes pending theome of our quarterly financial results;
(f) an analysis of whether we would meet our firahcovenants for the past quarter; and (g) netjotia with our various constituencies. As a
result of the combination of the above factors sigmificantly reduced our second quarter projection

RestructuringRestructuring charges were $0.5 million for theesemonths ended December 31, 2010, $5.9 millioth@ifive months
ended May 31, 2010, primarily representing the ioomattion of previously announced actions, and $82lHon for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2009. Restructuring expense for thenseonths ended December 31, 2010 was favoralggdted by a curtailment gain
relating to pension benefits of $3.4 million. Teetve months ended December 31, 2009 was affegtéioebfinal phase of our global product
line operating divisions restructurings that wemigated in the first quarter of 2009. Restructgrzharges of $18.8 million of this phase were
recognized for the twelve months ended Decembe?®@19.
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Restructuring charges of $10.2 million were alsmgnized for the twelve months ended December @A9 2or facility closures in South
America, Europe and Asia Pacific that were alstated in 2009.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense for the seven months ended Decethp2010 consisted primarily of interest on oanidr Notes.
Interest expense for the five months ended May2010 includes $28 million of interest from the periAugust 3, 2009 through May 27, 2010
and interest on the DIP credit agreement. Theastesn the prepetition debt obligations was reabrdieen our Plan of Reorganization was
approved by the claimholders. Interest expenséhtwelve months ended December 31, 2009 inclinderest prior to August 3, 2009 on all
of our prepetition debt obligations and debtor-osgession financing.

Reorganization Items and Fresh-Start Accountinguisiients, netn the five months ended May 31, 2010, we recoghaegain of
$163.6 million for reorganization items as a resdithe bankruptcy proceedings. This gain refléistscancellation of certain prepetition
obligations, partially offset by the recognitionmbfessional fees incurred as a direct resulhefdankruptcy proceedings. In addition, we
recognized a gain of $139.9 million related towhéuation of our net assets upon emergence fronpi€ha1 bankruptcy proceedings pursuant
to the provisions of fresh-start accounting. Farykar ended December 31, 2009 we recognized maaeg@n expenses of $17.4 million.

Other Income (Expensé)ther income for the seven months ended Decemh&03D was $4.2 million, which consisted of $3.4liom
of foreign currency gains and $1.5 million othezdme, partially offset by $0.7 million of losses factoring of receivables. Other expense of
$21.2 million for the five months ended May 31, @pé&onsisted primarily of foreign currency losdesr the twelve months ended
December 31, 2009, other income consisted of a@fe®.1 million on the repurchase of debt, $4.8iom of foreign currency gains, and $3.6
million of losses on interest rate swaps and shieaeivables.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (BeneFt)r the seven months ended December 31, 2010 arfivéhmonths ended May 31, 2010,
recorded income tax provisions of $5.1 million &&9.9 million, respectively, on earnings beforeome taxes of $46.2 million and $319.9
million, respectively. This compares to an income tenefit of $(55.7) million on losses before imeptaxes of $(411.9) million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2009. Income tax exgent®e five months ended May 31, 2010 and the sevenths ended December 31, 2
differ from statutory rates primarily as a resultiee reorganizational items and fresh start actingradjustments; valuation allowances
recorded on tax losses and credits generated id.®eand certain foreign jurisdictions; the benedlated to the settlement of a bi-lateral
advanced pricing agreement; the distribution obine between the U.S. and foreign sources; and ntirerecurring discrete items.
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Segment Results of Operations

The following table presents sales and segmenit§logs) for each of our reportable segmentsfieryear ended December 31, 2009, the
five months ended May 31, 2010, the seven montdesgDecember 31, 2010 and the year ended Decerhp20B1:

Predecessol Successo
Year Ended Five Months Endec Seven Months Ende Year Ended
December 31, 20C May 31, 2010 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands)
Sales to external custome
North America $ 910,3C $ 508,73t $ 739,41¢ $ 1,417,28
Internationa 1,034,95: 500,39( 665,60( 1,436,22!
Consolidatec $ 1,945,25! $ 1,009,1Z $ 1,405,01 $ 2,853,5(
Segment profit (loss
North America $ (246,01 $ 233,52t $ 58,000 % 158,17!
Internationa (165,859 86,42¢ (11,784) (60,919
Income (loss) before income tax $ (411,879 $ 319,95: $ 46,22(  $ 97,26

Year ended December 31, 2011, Seven Months Endextber 31, 2010 and Five Months Ended May 31, 2010.

North AmericaSales for the year ended December 31, 2011 wedd BB million. Sales were favorably impacted byiraease in sales
volume and favorable foreign exchange of $13 milliBegment profit for the year ended December 811 2vas $158.2 million, which was
favorably impacted by the increase in volumes &eddvorable impact of our lean savings, partiaffget by higher raw material costs and
increased staffing.

Sales for the seven months ended December 31,26H$739.4 million. Sales were favorably impadigd significant increase in
volume and favorable foreign exchange of $10 milliales for the five months ended May 31, 201@w&08.7 million. Sales were favora
impacted by a significant increase in volume anaifable foreign exchange of $19.3 million. Segnpofit for the seven months ended
December 31, 2010 was $58 million, which was fallyréampacted by the improved volumes and our leanrgys, partially offset by the
restoration of certain employee pay and benefitssdightly higher raw material costs. Segment pifofi the five months ended May 31, 2010
was $233.5 million. As a result of the reorganimatand fresh-start accounting adjustments, a g&2@8.6 million was recognized in the
North America segment. Segment profit also incréakes to improved volumes and the favorable imp&our lean savings, partially offset
the restoration of certain employee pay and beg)ediightly higher raw material costs and recognitbf interest on certain prepetition debt
obligations for the period of August 3, 2009 thrbiday 27, 2010, which was recorded when our PlaReaxfrganization was approved by the
claimholders.

International.Sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 wed@&2, million. Sales were favorably impacted byramrease in sales
volume in most regions, the joint venture agreemstit FMEA and foreign exchange of $57.9 millioregBnent loss for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was $60.9 million, which was tiegly impacted by the restructuring and integrnatimsts associated with the joint ven
agreement with FMEA, increased staffing, higher raaterial costs and higher depreciation and anaiitiz resulting from the adoption of
fresh-start accounting in the Successor periodigtigroffset by improved volumes and our lean sag.
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Sales for the seven months ended December 31,26H$665.6 million. Sales were favorably impadigd significant increase in
volume partially offset by unfavorable foreign eadge of $39.3 million. Sales for the five monthdexhMay 31, 2010 were $500.4 million.
Sales were favorably impacted by a significantéase in volume and favorable foreign exchange 8f2s@illion. Segment loss for the seven
months ended December 31, 2010 was $11.8 millitictwwas negatively impacted by higher raw materigits, restoration of certain
employee pay and benefits and unfavorable forexghange partially offset by the improved volumed anr lean savings. Segment profit for
the five months ended May 31, 2010 was $86.4 millies a result of the reorganization and freshtsterounting adjustments, a gain of $94.9
million was recognized in the International segm&agment profit was unfavorably impacted by tleam@tion of certain employee pay and
benefits and slightly higher raw material costgipfly offset by improved volumes and the favoraiohgpact of our lean savings.

Seven Months Ended December 31, 2010, Five Monthsléd May 31, 2010 and Twelve Months ended Decerlie200¢

North AmericaSales for the seven months ended December 31,280$739.4 million. Sales were favorably impadigd significant
increase in volume and favorable foreign excharfgg 6 million. Sales for the five months ended Mdy 2010 were $508.7 million. Sales
were favorably impacted by a significant increasealume and favorable foreign exchange of $1918ani Sales for the twelve months enc
December 31, 2009 were $910.3 million. Segmentitpiafthe seven months ended December 31, 2010&&snillion, which was favorably
impacted by the improved volumes and our lean g@yipartially offset by the restoration of certamployee pay and benefits and slightly
higher raw material costs. Segment profit for ikre months ended May 31, 2010 was $233.5 millios a&esult of the reorganization and
fresh-start accounting adjustments, a gain of $68llion was recognized in the North America segin&egment profit also increased due to
improved volumes and the favorable impact of oanlsavings, partially offset by the restoratiomeftain employee pay and benefits, slightly
higher raw material costs and recognition of irde certain prepetition debt obligations for pleeiod of August 3, 2009 through May 27,
2010, which was recorded when our Plan of Reorgdioiz was approved by the claimholders. Segmestftosthe twelve months ended
December 31, 2009 was $246 million, which inclu@egairment charges of $234.9 million for goodwiitifangibles and fixed assets.

International.Sales for the seven months ended December 31,26H%$665.6 million. Sales were favorably impadigdh significant
increase in volume partially offset by unfavorafaeeign exchange of $39.3 million. Sales for theefmonths ended May 31, 2010 were $5(
million. Sales were favorably impacted by a sigrdfit increase in volume and favorable foreign emghaof $33.2 million. Sales for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2009 were $1,035 milBegment loss for the seven months ended Decerib2030 was $11.8 million, which
was negatively impacted by higher raw material s;agtstoration of certain employee pay and benafitsunfavorable foreign exchange
partially offset by the improved volumes and owarneavings. Segment profit for the five months enday 31, 2010 was $86.4 million. As a
result of the reorganization and fresfart accounting adjustments, a gain of $94.9 omilivas recognized in the International segmentirget
profit was unfavorably impacted by the restoratidicertain employee pay and benefits and slightihér raw material costs partially offset by
improved volumes and the favorable impact of oanlsavings. Segment loss for the twelve monthsceb@eember 31, 2009 was $165.9
million, which included impairment charges of $9#lion for goodwill, intangibles and fixed assets

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As a part of our working capital management, wecatain receivables through third party finanéfedtitutions without recourse. The
amount sold varies each month based on the améunderlying receivables and cash flow needs. Atdbeber 31, 2010 and 2011, we had
$38.3 million and $59.6 million, respectively, efceivables outstanding under receivable transfereagents entered into by various locations.
For the five months ended May 31, 2010, the seventihs ended December 31, 2010 and the year endzshiber 31,
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2011, total accounts receivables factored wereGbfllion, $70.3 million, and $157.5 million, resgively. Losses incurred on the sale of
receivables were $0.4 million, $0.7 million and@thnillion for the five months ended May 31, 201k seven months ended December 31,
2010 and the year ended December 31, 2011, regplgciThese amounts are recorded in other incomefese) and interest expense in the
consolidated statements of operations. These aneitpexd transactions under our credit agreemeneguorg our Senior ABL Facility.

As part of the FMEA joint venture, SPBT had certf@iatoring arrangements without recourse. At Decam®d, 2011, the Company had
$31.3 million outstanding under receivable transigreements without recourse. The total amountadants receivable factored was $100
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Then@any incurred a loss on the sale of receivalfi&® d million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. These amounts are recordetién iocome (expense) and interest expense in totidated statements of operations.

As of December 31, 2011, we had no other matefiddadance sheet arrangements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Short and Lon¢-Term Liquidity Considerations and Risks

We intend to fund our ongoing capital and workiagital requirements through a combination of céslvd from operations and
borrowings under our Senior ABL Facility in additito factoring facilities. We anticipate that furgEnerated by operations and funds
available under our Senior ABL Facility will be §iafent to meet working capital requirements foe thext 12 months. For additional
information, see Note 9. “Debt” to the consolidatie@dncial statements.

Based on our current and anticipated levels ofatjers and the condition in our markets and inguste believe that our cash on hand,
cash flow from operations, factoring arrangements availability under our Senior ABL Facility widnable us to meet our working capital,
capital expenditures, debt service and other fund@guirements for the foreseeable future. Howemar ability to fund our working capital
needs, debt payments and other obligations, andrtply with the financial covenants, including lmwing base limitations, under our Senior
ABL Facility, depends on our future operating periance and cash flow and many factors outside o€ontrol, including the costs of raw
materials, the state of the overall automotive stuand financial and economic conditions and iotaetors. Any future acquisitions, joint
ventures or other similar transactions will likegquire additional capital and there can be norasse that any such capital will be available to
us on acceptable terms, if at all.

Cash Flows

Operating activitiesNet cash provided by operations was $172.3 millmrthe year ended December 31, 2011, which incl &89
million of use of operating assets and liabiliti€he use of operating assets and liabilities wananily a result of increased accounts
receivables and inventories, partially offset bgr@ased accounts payable due to increased voliNeesash provided by operations was
$170.6 million for the seven months ended Decer8tteR010, which included $63 million of change®perating assets and liabilities. Net
cash used in operations was $75.4 million for the fnonths ended May 31, 2010, which was a regwhancrease in our working capital
requirements due to the significant increase inmas and $37.2 million of interest payments ongapetition debt obligations and DIP
facility.

Investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activities was $73.8ionilfor the year ended December 31, 2011, whictsisted
primarily of $108.3 million of capital spending a#di0.5 million for an investment in affiliate, paity offset by $28.4 million of cash acquired
as part of the joint venture with FMEA, net of thequisitions of USi Inc. and Sigit S.p.A, and prede of $16 million from the partial sale of a
joint venture. Net cash used in investing actigitieas $51.8 million for the seven months ended Bxes 31, 2010, whic
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consisted of $54.4 million of capital spending,tjadlly offset by proceeds from sale of assets ahérmof $2.6 million. Net cash used in
investing activities was $19.1 million for the fimeonths ended May 31, 2010, which consisted of@&#&llion of capital spending offset by
proceeds from sale of assets of $3.9 million. Wecgrate that we will spend approximately $110 roill on capital expenditures in 2012.

Financing activitiesNet cash used in financing activities totaled $24illion for the year ended December 31, 2011, Whicnsisted
primarily of a decrease in short-term debt and paytsion long-term debt of $9.9 million, paymentash dividends of $7.1 million and
repurchase of preferred stock and other of $7.6amilNet cash used in financing activities totakdd4 million for the seven months ended
December 31, 2010, which consisted primarily ofreonease in short term debt, partially offset byidiends paid and payments on long-term
debt. Net cash used in financing activities totéig@d2.6 million for the five months ended May 3@1Q, which primarily resulted from
activities related to our emergence from bankrup®ayments for settlement on our prepetition det®, facility, debt issuance costs and
backstop fees totaled $914.6 million. These paymemtre offset by cash proceeds from the rightgioffeconducted pursuant to our Plan of
Reorganization of $355 million and our Senior Naiéfering of $450 million.

Financing Arrangements

As part of our Plan of Reorganization, we issuesiObaillion of our Senior Notes and entered into $1i25 million Senior ABL Facility.
Proceeds from our Senior Notes offering, togethién proceeds of the rights offering and cash ordharere used to pay claims under the
prepetition credit agreement, our DIP credit agreeinand the portion of the prepetition senior ngi@gable in cash, in full, together with
related fees and expenses. We intend to fund ayoing capital and working capital requirements tigto a combination of cash flows from
operations and borrowings under our Senior ABL ligicWe anticipate that funds generated by operetiand funds available under our
Senior ABL Facility will be sufficient to meet warlg capital requirements for the next 12 months. Senior Notes and Senior ABL Facility
are described below. For additional informatiorg Bote 9. “Debt” to the consolidated financial staents.

Senior ABL Facility

On the date of our emergence from bankruptcy, Ge8pendard Holdings Inc. (“Parent”), CSA U.S. (thesuer” or the “U.S.
Borrower”), CSA Canada (the “Canadian Borrower” aogiether with the U.S. Borrower, the “Borrowersiid certain subsidiaries of the L
Borrower entered into the Senior ABL Facility, withrtain lenders, Bank of America, N.A., as agém (Agent”) for such lenders, Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as syndication agerd,Banc of America Securities LLC, Deutsche Bae&usities Inc., UBS Securities LL
and Barclays Capital, as joint lead arrangers aukiunners. A summary of our Senior ABL Facilitysist forth below. This description is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the cteaireement governing our Senior ABL Facility.

General. Our Senior ABL Facility provides for an aggregeggolving loan availability of up to $125 milliosubject to borrowing base
availability, including a $45 million letter of alé sub-facility and a $20 million swing line suéeility. Our Senior ABL Facility also provides
for an uncommitted $25 million incremental loanifiag for a potential total Senior ABL Facility ¢§150 million (if requested by the
Borrowers and agreed to by the lenders). No cortdfesnty lender (other than those participatingha increase) is required to effect any such
increase. On December 31, 2011, subject to borigphése availability, the Company had $125 milliomvailability less outstanding letters of
credit of $29.8 million.

Maturity . Any borrowings under our Senior ABL Facility witiature, and the commitments of the lenders unaleBenior ABL Facility
will terminate, on May 27, 2014.

Borrowing base Loan (and letter of credit) availability underdenior ABL Facility is subject to a borrowing leasvhich at any time is
limited to the lesser of: (A) the maximum faciléynount (subject to certain
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adjustments) and (B) (i) up to 85% of eligible amts receivable; plus (ii) up to the lesser of 7@Réligible inventory or 85% of the appraised
net orderly liquidation value of eligible inventomyinus reserves established by the Agent. Thelardsaeceivable portion of the borrowing
base is subject to certain formulaic limitationgc{uding concentration limits). The inventory portiof the borrowing base is limited to eligible
inventory, as determined by an independent apprdiba borrowing base is also subject to certagemnees, which are established by the Agent
(which may include changes to the advance ratésdtet above). Loan availability under our Seni@LAFacility is apportioned, as follows:
$100 million to the U.S. Borrower and $25 milliamthe Canadian Borrower.

Guarantees; securityThe obligations of the U.S. Borrower under ouni8eABL Facility and cash management arrangemants
interest rate, foreign currency or commodity swaptered into by us, in each case with the lendsilstzeir affiliates, or, collectively,
additional ABL secured obligations, are guarantee@ senior secured basis by Parent and all ohPaseholly-owned U.S. subsidiaries (ott
than CS Automotive LLC), and the obligations of @@nadian Borrower under our Senior ABL Facilitglauditional ABL secured obligatic
of the Canadian Borrower and its Canadian subsidiare guaranteed on a senior secured basis bgtPall of the Canadian subsidiaries of
the Canadian Borrower and all of Parent’s whollysedl U.S. subsidiaries. The U.S. Borrower guarartte=additional ABL secured
obligations of its subsidiaries and the Canadiarr@®eer guarantees the additional ABL secured okiiga of its Canadian subsidiaries. The
obligations under our Senior ABL Facility and reldiguarantees are secured by a first prioritydieall of each Borrower’s and each
guarantor’s existing and future personal propeotysisting of accounts receivable, payment intaegibhventory, documents, instruments,
chattel paper and investment property, certain moaeposit accounts, securities accounts, lettiecsedlit, commercial tort claims and certain
related assets and proceeds of the foregoing.

Interest. Borrowings under our Senior ABL Facility beardrgst at a rate equal to, at the Borrowers’ option:
. in the case of borrowings by the U.S. Borrower, QB or the base rate plus, in each case, an aplgioargin; ot

. in the case of borrowings by the Canadian Borrolankers’ acceptance (“BA”) rate, Canadian printe cad Canadian base rate
plus, in each case, an applicable mar

The applicable margin may vary between 3.25% an8%.with respect to the LIBOR or BA-based borroveiraend between 2.25% and
2.75% with respect to base rate, Canadian prinecarad Canadian base rate borrowings. The applicadtgin is subject, in each case, to
quarterly pricing adjustments based on usage dveimimediately preceding quarter.

Covenants; Events of Defaul®Our Senior ABL Facility includes affirmative anégative covenants that will impose substantial
restrictions on our financial and business openatitncluding our ability to incur and secure debake investments, sell assets, pay dividends
or make acquisitions. Our Senior ABL Facility aisoludes a requirement to maintain a monthly figbdrge coverage ratio of no less than 1.1
to 1.0 when availability under our Senior ABL Féwils less than specified levels. Our Senior ABicHity also contains various events of
default that are customary for comparable facditie

Our current revenue forecast for 2012 is determfr@a specific platform volume projections consigtevith a North American and
European light vehicle production estimate of 18ifion units and 18.5 million units, respectiveAdverse changes to the vehicle production
levels could have a negative impact on our futatess liquidity, results of operations and abititlycomply with our debt covenants under our
Senior ABL Facility or any future financing arramgents we enter into. We took significant actiongrdyithe second half of 2008 and first
guarter of 2009 to reduce our cost base and imppovigability. While we believe the vehicle prodion and other assumptions within our
forecast are reasonable, we have also consideequbssibility of even weaker demand. In additiothi potential impact of changes on our
sales, our current operating performance and futonepliance with the covenants under our Senior ARLility or any future financing
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arrangements we enter into are dependent upon barwhother external and internal factors, sucbhesges in raw material costs, change
foreign currency rates, our ability to execute cost savings initiatives, our ability to implememid achieve the savings expected by the
changes in our operating structure and other fadieyond our control.

8 1/2% Senior Notes due 2018

On May 11, 2010, CSA Escrow Corporation (the “egcigsuer”), an indirect wholly-owned nddebtor subsidiary of the Issuer closec
offering of $450 million aggregate principal amowiits Senior Notes. The Senior Notes were issnedprivate placement exempt from
registration under the Securities Act. A summargcdiption of the Senior Notes is set forth belowisTdescription is qualified in its entirety
reference to the Senior Notes indenture.

General. The Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an todedated May 11, 2010 by and between the es@suer and the trustee
thereunder. On the effective date of our Plan afrB&nization, the escrow issuer was merged withitotthe Issuer, with the Issuer as the
surviving entity, and upon the consummation ofrtterger, the Issuer assumed the obligations undeB¢imior Notes and the Senior Notes
indenture and the guarantees by the guarantorsildbegdelow became effective.

Guarantees The Senior Notes are unconditionally guarantgedtly and severally, on a senior unsecured bésif?arent and all of the
Issuer’s wholly-owned domestic restricted subsidmfcollectively, the “guarantors” and, togethéthvihe Issuer, the “obligors”). If the Issuer
or any of its domestic restricted subsidiaries &egwr creates another wholbywned domestic restricted subsidiary that guaranteetain dek
of the Issuer or a guarantor, such newly acquiredeated subsidiary is also required to guarathteé&enior Notes.

Ranking. The Senior Notes and each guarantee constitniers#ebt of the Issuer and each guarantor, resedet The Senior Notes and
each guarantee (1) rank equally in right of paymétit all of the applicable obligor's existing afidure senior debt, (2) rank senior in right of
payment to all of the applicable obligor’'s existiagd future subordinated debt, (3) are effectigelgordinated in right of payment to all of the
applicable obligor’s existing and future securedkintedness and secured obligations to the exteheofalue of the collateral securing such
indebtedness and obligations and (4) are strut¢yusabordinated to all existing and future indelntess and other liabilities of the Issuer’s non-
guarantor subsidiaries (other than indebtednesdiaitities owed to the Issuer or one of the gudwss).

Optional redemptionThe Issuer has the right to redeem the Senior Nutdee redemption prices set forth below:

. on and after May 1, 2014, all or a portion of tleni®r Notes may be redeemed at a redemption pfit84250% of the principal
amount thereof if redeemed during the twelve-matiod beginning on May 1, 2014, 102.125% of thiagipal amount thereof if
redeemed during the twelve-month period beginnim/lay 1, 2015, and 100% of the principal amounteébéif redeemed on or
after May 1, 2016, in each case plus any accruddiapaid interest to the redemption di

. prior to May 1, 2013, up to 35% of the Senior Nagssied under the Senior Notes indenture may beeredd with the proceeds
from certain equity offerings at a redemption piaée.08.50% of the principal amount thereof, plag accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date; a

. prior to May 1, 2014, all or a portion of the Seridptes may be redeemed at a price equal to 10a¥egdrincipal amount there
plus a mak-whole premium

Change of controllf a change of control occurs with respect to Paoerthe Issuer, unless the Issuer has exercisefit to redeem all
of the outstanding Senior Notes, each notehold&t Bhave the right to require
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that the Issuer repurchase such noteholder’s Sbiutas at a purchase price in cash equal to 101#teqgérincipal amount thereof plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purehasbject to the right of the noteholders of rdaor the relevant record date to receive interest
due on the relevant interest payment date.

CovenantsThe Senior Notes indenture limits, among otherggjithe ability of the Issuer and its restrictedssdiaries, (currently, all
majority owned subsidiaries) to pay dividends okendistributions, repurchase equity, prepay sulmated debt or make certain investments,
incur additional debt or issue certain disqualifolck or preferred stock, sell assets, incur |ienger into transactions with affiliates and allow
to exist certain restrictions on the ability ofestricted subsidiary to pay dividends or to makkeeopayments or loans to or transfer assets to th
Issuer; in each case, subject to certain exclusiadsother customary exceptions. The Senior Nowsnture also limits the ability of the Isst
Parent and a subsidiary guarantor to merge or tidas®with another entity or sell all or substalii all of its assets. In addition, certain of
these covenants will not be applicable during agyoal of time when the Senior Notes have an investrgrade rating. The Senior Notes
indenture contains customary events of default.

The Senior Notes were initially issued in a priviak@cement which was exempt from registration uriderSecurities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”). Pursuant to thenteof the registration rights agreement betweeristheer, the guarantors and the initial
purchasers of the Senior Notes, we consummategistaeed exchange offer in February 2011, pursteawhich we exchanged all $450
million principal amount of the outstanding privigtplaced Senior Notes, or “old notes,” for $450limmn principal amount of new 8 /2%
Senior Notes due 2018, or “exchange notes.” Theaxge notes were issued under the same indenttiie akl notes and are identical to the
old notes, except that the new notes have beesteegil under the Securities Act. References hewdlme “Senior Notes” refer to the old notes
prior to the consummation of the exchange offertartthe exchange notes thereafter.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In evaluating our business, management considefsEBand Adjusted EBITDA as key indicators of oypeyating performance. Our
management also uses EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA:

. because similar measures are utilized in the cation of the financial covenants and ratios comdiim our financing arrangemer
. in developing our internal budgets and forece

. as a significant factor in evaluating our managenf@ncompensation purpose

. in evaluating potential acquisitior

. in comparing our current operating results withresponding historical periods and with the operatigerformance of oths
companies in our industry; al

. in presentations to the members of our board efctlirs to enable our board of directors to haveséme measurement basis
operating performance as is used by managemen¢inassessments of performance and in forecaatiddudgeting for our
company

In addition, we believe EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDehd similar measures are widely used by invessejrities analysts and other
interested parties in evaluating our performance.dafine Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) glusvision for income tax expense
(benefit), interest expense, net of interest incotlepreciation and amortization or EBITDA, as atjdgor items that management does not
consider to be reflective of our core operatingqrenance. These adjustments include restructurisgs¢impairment charges, non-cash fair
value adjustments, acquisition related costs, peidmal fees and expenses associated with ourareiaedion, non-cash stock based
compensation and non-cash gains and losses fraaircéreign currency transactions and translation.
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We calculate EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by adjugfinet income (loss) to eliminate the impact of enhar of items we do not
consider indicative of our ongoing operating perfance. You are encouraged to evaluate each adjuiséme the reasons we consider it
appropriate for supplemental analysis. EBITDA ardjusted EBITDA are not financial measurements rectggl under GAAP, and when
analyzing our operating performance, investors khose EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in addition tqyéinot as alternatives for, net incc
(loss), operating income, or any other performaneasure derived in accordance with GAAP, or adtemative to cash flow from operating
activities as a measure of our liquidity. EBITDAdafdjusted EBITDA have limitations as analyticab® and they should not be considere
isolation or as substitutes for analysis of ounltssof operations as reported under GAAP. Thesgdtions include:

. they do not reflect our cash expenditures or futaggiirements for capital expenditure or contrdatoenmitments

. they do not reflect changes in, or cash requiresnimt our working capital need

. they do not reflect interest expense or cash rements necessary to service interest or princigainents under our Senior No

and Senior ABL Facility

. they do not reflect certain tax payments that negyesent a reduction in cash available tc

. although depreciation and amortization are-cash charges, the assets being depreciated orizedlamay have to be replaced

the future, and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do neflect cash requirements for such replacements

. other companies, including companies in our ingustray calculate these measures differently antheaumber of differences in
the way companies calculate these measures instgheadegree of their usefulness as a companaasure correspondingly

decreases

In addition, in evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, it sHdwe noted that in the future we may incur expsrssailar to the adjustments in the
below presentation. Our presentation of AdjustedTEB\ should not be construed as an inference thafwature results will be unaffected by

unusual or non-recurring items.

The following table provides a reconciliation of HBA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income, which istmost directly comparable
financial measure in accordance with GAAP (dollarmillions):

Predecesso Successol
Five Months Endec Seven Months Ende
Year Ended
May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 201
Net income $ 279 $ 40.€ $ 102.¢
Provision for income tax expen 39.¢ 5.1 20.¢
Interest expense, net of interest incc 44.F 25.C 40.5
Depreciation and amortizatic 35.7 66.7 124.]
EBITDA $ 399.¢ $ 137.¢ $ 288.2
Reorganization and fre-start accounting adjustmen® (303.9) - -
Restructuring® 5.9 0.5 52.2
Noncontrolling interest restructurin® - - (19.9
Foreign exchange gains/los{ 17.2 (0.2) -
Inventory write-up ® - 8.1 0.7
Net gain on partial sale of joint ventu® - - (11.9)
Stoclk-based compensatid” 0.2 6.4 10.¢
Acquisition cost«®) - - 2.2
Severanc(®) - 5.8 -
Other0) 0.3 (1.6) 1.3
Adjusted EBITDA $ 120.( $ 156 $ 324

(1) Reorganization and bankrup-related expense, including professional fi
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(2) Includes cash and n-cash restructuring

(3) Proportionate share of restructuring costs relaideMEA joint venture

(4) Foreign exchange gains and losses on prepetitiohadel various intercompany loal

(5) Write-up of inventory to fair value at the Effective Datied at the date of acquisition of USi Inc. andRMEA joint venture, net c
noncontrolling interes

(6) Net gain on partial sale of ownership percentageiirt venture.

(7) Non-cash stock amortization expense and-cash stock option expense for grants issued atgamee from bankruptc

(8) Costs incurred in relationship to the FMEA jointhiere agreemen

(9) Severance costs associated with the right sizimmuofGerman facilities

(10) Costs related to corporate development activi

Working capital

Historically, we have not generally experiencediclifities in collecting our accounts receivablet the dynamics associated with the
recent economic downturn have impacted both theuaitnaf our receivables and somewhat the stresséty & our customers to pay within
normal terms. We believe that we currently havie@ng working capital position. As of December 3011, we had net cash of $361.7 milli

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual cash obligations consist of legahmitments requiring us to make fixed or determieaash payments, regardless of the
contractual requirements of the vendor to providare goods or services. Except as otherwise disdlahis table does not include informa
on our recurring purchase of materials for useradpction because our raw materials purchase agsttgpically do not require fixed or
minimum quantities.

The following table summarizes the total amounts dsi of December 31, 2011 under all debt agreepmmtsnitments and other
contractual obligations.

Payment due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 years 5 Years
(dollars in millions)
Debt obligations $ 450.( $ - $ - $ - $ 450.(
Interest on debt obligatiot 248.€ 38.2 76.5 76.5 57.4
Operating lease obligatiol 72.¢ 20.7 24.¢ 16.€ 10.7
Other obligation«® 66.£ 60.¢ 5.C 0.4 0.1
Total $ 837. $ 119. $ 106. $ 93.t $ 518..

(1) Noncancellable purchase order commitments for abpipenditures, other borrowings and capital leddigations.

In addition to our contractual obligations and coitnments set forth in the table above, we have eypént arrangements with certain
key executives that provide for continuity of maeagnt. These arrangements include payments ofpladtof annual salary, certain
incentives, and continuation of benefits upon tbeuorence of specified events in a manner thagligved to be consistent with comparable
companies.

We also have minimum funding requirements with eespo our pension obligations. We expect to makenal cash contributions of
approximately $19.2 million to our domestic andeign pension plan asset portfolios in 2012. In tadiwe may choose to make further
discretionary contributions. Our minimum fundingju@ements after 2012 will depend on several fa;toicluding the investment performai
of our retirement
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plans and prevailing interest rates. Our fundinigaltions may also be affected by changes in agblelegal requirements. We also have
payments due with respect to our postretiremengfitesbligations. We do not prefund our postretiegmbenefit obligations. Rather, payments
are made as costs are incurred by covered retMée&xpect other postretirement benefit net paysenbe approximately $3.1 million in
2012.

We may be required to make significant cash outthyesto our unrecognized tax benefits. However,tduke uncertainty of the timing
of future cash flows associated with our unrecogghitax benefits, we are unable to make reasonelifibte estimates of the period of cash
settlement, if any, with the respective taxing auities. Accordingly, unrecognized tax benefitsb8f3 million as of December 31, 2011 have
been excluded from the contractual obligationsetaiove. For further information related to unretogd tax benefits, see Note 12. “Income
Taxes” to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, excluded from the contractual obligatiable are open purchase orders at Decembef31,far raw materials and supplies
used in the normal course of business, supply aotstmwith customers, distribution agreements, joémture agreements and other contracts
without express funding requirements.

Raw Materials and Manufactured Components

The principal raw materials for our business inelsgnthetic rubber, fabricated metal-based comgsnplastic components, carbon
black, process oil and natural rubber. We manag@tbcurement of our raw materials to assure sugpdlyto obtain the most favorable prici
For natural rubber, procurement is managed by lyuyiradvance of production requirements and by iy the spot market. For other
principal materials, procurement arrangements dgeelshort-term supply agreements that may contamuia-based pricing based on
commodity indices. These arrangements provide dfiesheeded to satisfy normal manufacturing dereand

We believe we have adequate sources for the swbpsywwv materials and components for our producth aiippliers located around the
world. We often use offshore suppliers for machinechponents, metal stampings, castings and other-iatensive, economically freighted
products.

Extreme fluctuations in material pricing have ocedrin recent years adding challenges in forecgstinpply costs. The inability to
recover higher than anticipated material costs foomcustomers would impact our profitability.

Seasonal Trends

Sales to automotive customers are lowest duringnibieths prior to model changeovers and during aslseptant shutdowns. These
typically result in lower sales volumes during Julyigust, and December. However, economic condit@an change normal seasonality
trends, resulting in reduced demand throughouyéae. The impact of model changeovers and plarttsinns is considerably less in years of
reduced demand overall.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies are more fully describeflote 2. “Significant Accounting Policies,” to tisensolidated financial statements.
Application of these accounting principles requimesnagement to make estimates and assumptionafthett the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities, and the reported amounts of nexes and expenses during the reporting period.
Management bases its estimates and judgments tonites experience and on other factors that atievwed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfmsisnaking judgments about the carrying value ckts and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results mdgifom these estimates under different assumgtirrconditions. We believe that of our
significant accounting policies, the following miayolve a higher degree of judgment or estimatiamtother accounting policies.
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Adoption of Fresh-Start Accounting/e emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedingday 27, 2010. As a result, we adopted
fresh-start accounting as (i) the reorganizatidne/af the Predecessor’s assets immediately prithve confirmation of the Plan of
Reorganization was less than the total of all pesition liabilities and allowed claims and (iietinolders of the Predecessor’s existing voting
shares immediately prior to the confirmation of EHan of Reorganization received less than 50%®f/bting shares of the emerging entity.
GAAP requires the adoption of fresh-start accounéis of the Plan of Reorganization’s confirmatiated or as of a later date when all material
conditions precedent to the Plan of ReorganizaiEroming effective are resolved, which occurrediary 27, 2010. We elected to adopt fresh-
start accounting as of May 31, 2010 to coincidénlie timing of our normal May accounting periodsd. There were no transactions that
occurred from May 28, 2010 through May 31, 201@f thiould materially impact our consolidated finagosition, results of operations or
cash flows for the 2010 Successor or 2010 Predecpssiods.

Fresh-start accounting results in a new basis @atting and reflects the allocation of our esteddair value to our underlying assets
and liabilities. Our estimates of fair value arearently subject to significant uncertainties andtmgencies beyond our reasonable control.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that thematgs, assumptions, valuations, appraisals amaddial projections will be realized, and
actual results could vary materially.

Our reorganization value was allocated to our assetonformity with the procedures specified byQA&05, “Business Combination$
The excess of reorganization value over the fdiresaf tangible and identifiable intangible asse#s recorded as goodwill. Liabilities existing
as of the effective date of the Plan of Reorgaitinabther than deferred taxes, were recordedeaptésent value of amounts expected to be
paid using appropriate risk adjusted interest rddeferred taxes were determined in conformity waitiplicable income tax accounting
standards. Predecessor accumulated depreciatmmatated amortization, retained deficit, commatktand accumulated other
comprehensive loss were eliminated.

For further information on fresh-start accountisge Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accounting’the consolidated financial statements inclua
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ReorganizationAs a result of filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy, adopted ASC 852 on August 3, 2009. ASC 852 isiegiple to
companies in Chapter 11 and generally does notgehtire manner in which financial statements arpgyesl. However, among other
disclosures, it does require that the financigkstents for periods subsequent to the filing ofGhapter 11 petition distinguish transactions
and events that are directly associated with thegemization from the ongoing operations of theimess. Revenues, expenses, realized gains
and losses and provisions for losses that canrbetlyi associated with the reorganization and westring of the business must be reported
separately as reorganization items in the statesr@rdperations. The balance sheet must distingurispetition liabilities subject to
compromise from both those prepetition liabilittbat are not subject to compromise and from postige liabilities. Liabilities that may be
affected by a plan of reorganization must be regubat the amounts expected to be allowed, evéeyf inay be settled for lesser amounts. In
addition, reorganization items must be disclosgrhssely in the statement of cash flows. We hageegmted those items as outlined above for
all reporting periods subsequent to such date.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long Term SupphagementsCosts for molds, dies, and other tools owned bipysoduce products
under long-term supply arrangements are recordedsatin property, plant, and equipment and ameditiaver the lesser of three years or the
term of the related supply agreement. We expehgeeaproduction tooling costs related to customened tools for which reimbursement is
not contractually guaranteed by the customer.

Goodwill. As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, we had recagdedwill of approximately $137 million and $136wllion, respectively.
Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impaémt, either annually or when events or circumstaidicate that impairment may exist. We
evaluate each reporting unit’s fair value versssérrying value annually or more frequently if etgeor changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying
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value may exceed the fair value of the reportinig. Estimated fair values are based on the castsflorojected in the reporting units’ strategic
plans and long-range planning forecasts discousitadrisk-adjusted rate of return. We assess tmormbleness of these estimated fair values
using market based multiples of comparable comgalfi¢he carrying value exceeds the fair valueingpairment loss is measured and
recognized. Goodwill fair value measurements aassified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarghyhich are generally determined using
unobservable inputs. We conduct our annual goodwpairment as of Octobersl of each year.

Our 2010 annual goodwill impairment analysis, costgdl as of the first day of the fourth quarterules in no impairment. The fair
value of our Europe, South America and Asia Pacdjmorting units did not substantially exceed tleeiresponding carrying amount. We
emerged from Chapter 11 on May 27, 2010 and owrtieg units were fair valued at that time, therefwe would not expect the fair values of
the reporting units to substantially exceed theiresponding carrying amounts. If different assuomst were used in our cash flow projections
the fair values could be different and impairmeing@odwill might be required to be recorded.

Our 2011 annual goodwill impairment analysis, costgad as of the first day of the fourth quarteruttesl in no impairment. As a result
our 2010 emergence, the fair value of our EuropejfSAmerica and Asia Pacific reporting units dat substantially exceed their
corresponding carrying amount.

Long-Lived AssetsWe monitor our long-lived assets for impairmemticators on an ongoing basis in accordance wit@ ASpic 360, “
Property, Plant, and Equipme.” If impairment indicators exist, we perform thequired analysis by comparing the undiscounted fiagls
expected to be generated from the long-lived assdte related net book values. If the net bodkesaxceeds the undiscounted cash flows, an
impairment loss is measured and recognized. Aniimmesat loss is measured as the difference betweenet book value and the fair value of
the long-lived assets. Fair value is estimateddagpen either discounted cash flow analyses omastid salvage values. Cash flows are
estimated using internal budgets based on reck# data, independent automotive production volastenates and customer commitmentt
well as assumptions related to discount rates. @hameconomic or operating conditions impactingsthestimates and assumptions could
result in the impairment of long-lived assets.

In connection with the adoption of fresh-start ao@ting in 2010 an adjustment of $40.7 million wasd® to re-measure our property,
plant, and equipment to their estimated fair vafiee Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accounting,” to the cdidsted financial statements.

Restructuring-Related ReserveSpecific accruals have been recorded in conneetith restructuring initiatives, as well as the
integration of acquired businesses. These accinglsde estimates principally related to employegasation costs, the closure and/or
consolidation of facilities, contractual obligatgmrand the valuation of certain assets. Actual ansotecognized could differ from the original
estimates. Restructuring-related reserves arewed®n a quarterly basis and changes to plansparegriately recognized when identified.
Changes to plans associated with the restructufiregisting businesses are generally recognizeshrgdoyee separation and plant phase-out
costs in the period the change occurs. For additidiscussion, please refer to Note 6. “Restrustirio the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Commitmemns generally enter into agreements with our gusts to produce products at the
beginning of a vehicle’s life. Although such agresms do not generally provide for minimum quargitience we enter into such agreements,
fulfillment of our customers’ purchasing requirerteecan be our obligation for an extended periotherentire production life of the vehicle.
These agreements generally may be terminated bgustomer at any time. Historically, terminatiorigheese agreements have been minimal.
In certain limited instances, we may be committedar existing agreements to supply products taccastomers at selling prices which are not
sufficient to cover the direct cost to produce sprdducts. In such situations, we recognize loasdbey are incurred.
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We receive blanket purchase orders from many otastomers on an annual basis. Generally, sucthasecorders and related
documents set forth the annual terms, includingimgi, related to a particular vehicle model. Suatchase orders generally do not specify
guantities. We recognize revenue based on thengrteirms included in our annual purchase ordeaiaproducts are shipped to our
customers. As part of certain agreements, we d&edae provide our customers with annual cost rédas. We accrue for such amounts as a
reduction of revenue as our products are shippedit@ustomers. In addition, we generally have amgjadjustments to our pricing
arrangements with our customers based on the detatetent and cost of our products. Such pricinguads are adjusted as they are settled
with our customers.

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping bhaddling are included in sales in our consolidatatements of operations. Shipping
and handling costs are included in cost of salesiimconsolidated statements of operations.

Income TaxesIn determining the provision for income taxesfioancial statement purposes, we make estimat§uaigments which
affect our evaluation of the carrying value of deferred tax assets as well as our calculatioridm tax liabilities. In accordance with ASC
Topic 740, “Accounting for Income Taxgswe evaluate the carrying value of our deferr@ddssets on a quarterly basis. In completing this
evaluation, we consider all available positive ardative evidence. Such evidence includes histarfmerating results, the existence of
cumulative losses in the most recent fiscal yeapectations for future pretax operating income,titme period over which our temporary
differences will reverse, and the implementatiofieafsible and prudent tax planning strategies. iDefictax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance if, based on the weight of this evidetitds, more likely than not that all or a portiohtbe recorded deferred tax assets will not be
realized in future periods.

We continue to maintain a valuation allowance ezlab our net deferred tax assets in the UnitettStnd several foreign jurisdictions.
As of December 31, 2011, we had valuation allowarsfes152.4 million related to tax loss and creditryforwards and other deferred tax
assets in the United States and several foreiggdjations. Our current and future provision focéme taxes is significantly impacted by the
initial recognition of and changes in valuatioroalinces in certain countries, particularly the EdiStates. We intend to maintain these
allowances until it is more likely than not thaetteferred tax assets will be realized. Our fuproision for income taxes will include no tax
benefit with respect to losses incurred and ncet@ense with respect to income generated in theasatiies until the respective valuation
allowance is eliminated.

In conjunction with the Company’s ongoing reviewitsfactual results and anticipated future earnitigs Company reassesses the
possibility of releasing the valuation allowancerently in place on its U.S. deferred tax assetsdsl upon this assessment, the Company has
concluded that a release of a significant portibthe U.S. valuation allowance could possibly oaduring the next 12 months. The required
accounting for the release will involve significaak amounts and will impact earnings in the qudrtevhich it is deemed appropriate to
release the reserve.

In addition, the calculation of our tax benefitsldiabilities includes uncertainties in the applioa of complex tax regulations in a
multitude of jurisdictions across our global opemas. We recognize tax benefits and liabilitiesdazhen our estimate of whether, and the extent
to which additional taxes will be due. We adjustsh liabilities based on changing facts and cirtantes; however, due to the complexity of
some of these uncertainties and the impact of axpatidits, the ultimate resolutions may be matgréifferent from our estimated liabilities.

For further information, related to income taxese dlote 12. “Income Taxes” to the consolidatedrfaia statements.

Pensions and Postretirement Benefits Other TharsiBes. Included in our results of operations are sigaifit pension and
postretirement benefit costs, which are measurid) @tuarial valuations. Inherent in these vabraiare key assumptions, including
assumptions about discount rates and expectedsaturplan assets. These assumptions are updatedtaginning of each fiscal year. We
required to consider current market conditionsluding changes in interest rates, in making thesemptions. Changes in pension and
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postretirement benefit costs may occur in the futlure to changes in these assumptions. Our nebpearsd postretirement benefit costs were
approximately $7.2 million and $5.5 million, respeely, for the year ended December 31, 2011.

To develop the discount rate for each plan, theeetgal cash flows underlying the plan’s benefitgdiions were discounted using a
December 31, 2011 pension index to determine desewuivalent rate. To develop our expected returplan assets, we considered historical
long-term asset return experience, the expectezstment portfolio mix of plan assets and an es@rmétong-term investment returns. To
develop our expected portfolio mix of plan assets considered the duration of the plan liabilitesl gave more weight to equity positions,
including both public and private equity investmrgerhan to fixed-income securities. Holding allethssumptions constant, a 1% increase or
decrease in the discount rate would have decreasedreased the fiscal 2012 net periodic beneft expense by approximately $0.5 million
or $1.2 million, respectively. Likewise, a 1% inase or decrease in the expected return on platsagseld have decreased or increased the
fiscal 2012 net periodic benefit cost by approxieha2.8 million. Decreasing or increasing the distt rate by 1% would have increased or
decreased the projected benefit obligations byagprately $53.5 million or $64 million, respectiyelAggregate pension net periodic benefit
cost is forecasted to be approximately $7.5 millim2012.

The rate of increase in medical costs assumedéonéxt five years was held constant with priorgéa reflect both actual experience
and projected expectations. The health care casd trate assumption has a significant effect oratheunts reported. Only certain employees
hired are eligible to participate in our subsidipadtretirement plan. A 1% change in the assumelitheare cost trend rate would have
increased or decreased the fiscal 2012 servicénégrest cost components by $0.4 million or $0.8iom, respectively and the projected
benefit obligations would have increased or de@edy $3.9 million or $3.1 million, respectivelyggregate other postretirement net periodic
benefit cost is forecasted to be approximately $dilBon in 2012.

The general funding policy is to contribute amouwgductible for U.S. federal income tax purposesamounts required by local statute.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsDerivative financial instruments are utilized Uy to reduce foreign currency exchange and inteagst
risk. We have established policies and proceduesdk assessment including the assessment otequanty credit risk and the approval,
reporting, and monitoring of derivative financiaktrument activities. On the date the derivativesigblished, we designate the derivative as
either a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge,metanvestment hedge in accordance with its estaddi policy. We do not enter into financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

By using derivative instruments to hedge expostoehanges in foreign currency exchange and irteaéss, we expose ourselves to
credit risk. Credit risk is the failure of the caerparty to perform under the terms of the denxationtract. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is positive, the counterparty owes usctvicreates credit risk for us. When the fair vadtia derivative contract is negative, we owe
the counterparty and we do not possess creditTisknitigate credit risk, it is our policy to exdewsuch instruments with creditworthy banks
and not enter into derivatives for speculative psgs.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financiatesteents in conformity with GAAP requires managentenhake
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexiints of assets and liabilities as of the dateetonsolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. During 2011, there were no matehanges in the methods or policies
used to establish estimates and assumptions. Glgneratters subject to estimation and judgmenlide amounts related to accounts
receivable realization, inventory obsolescencegtdsgpairments, useful lives of intangible and éxassets, unsettled pricing discussions with
customers and suppliers, restructuring accruafsridel tax asset valuation allowances and incoxestgpension and other post retirement
benefit plan assumptions, accruals related toalithg, warranty and environmental remediation casts self-insurance accruals. Actual results
may differ from estimates provided.
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Fair Value MeasurementsNe measure certain assets and liabilities atv/fdire on a non-recurring basis using unobseniablgs
(Level 3 input based on the GAAP fair value hiehgi)c For further information on these fair valueasgrements, see “—Goodwill,” “—Long-
Lived Assets,” “—Restructuring-Related Reservesd &—Derivative Financial Instruments” above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2. “Significant Accounting Policies,” letconsolidated financial statements.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rateseacy exchange rates and commaodity prices. Ryibling our bankruptcy filing under
Chapter 11 we entered into derivative financiatrimeents to monitor our exposure to these risksabua result of the bankruptcy filing all but
one of these instruments were dedesignated. WAehcthonitor our exposure to risk from changesoirefgn currency exchange rates and
interest rates through the use of derivative fifgrinstruments in accordance with management'dgiries. We do not enter into derivative
instruments for trading purposes. See Item 7. “Mangent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctadiand Results of Operations—
Critical Accounting Policies—Derivative Financiadtruments” and Item 8. “Financial Statements amgbfmentary Data,” especially Note
22. “Fair Value of Financial Instruments” to thensolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Ridke use forward foreign exchange contracts tocedhe effect of fluctuations in foreign excha
rates on a portion of forecasted material purchasdperating expenses. As of December 31, 2@t# there no forward foreign exchange
contracts outstanding.

As part of the FMEA joint venture, SPBT had undesigd derivative forward contracts to hedge cuyeisk of the Euro against the
Polish Zloty which is included in the Company'’s solidated financial statements. The forward contisiased to mitigate the potential
volatility of cash flows arising from changes im@ncy exchange rates that impact the Company&dnrcurrency transactions. These foreign
currency derivative contracts consist of hedgesiations up to April 2014. At December 31, 201#,ftir value before taxes of the Company’
undesignated derivative forward contracts was $@iBion.

In addition to transactional exposures, our opegatesults are impacted by the translation of oteifin operating income into U.S.
dollars (“translation exposure”). In 2011, net sabaitside of the United States accounted for 74%wuoftonsolidated net sales, although certain
non-U.S. sales are U.S. dollar denominated. Weadl@mter into foreign exchange contracts to miggats exposure.

Interest Rates We use interest rate swap contracts to mitigateegposure to variable interest rates on outstendariable rate debt
instruments. These contracts converted certaimbkrirate debt obligations to fixed rate. Thesdremts were accounted for as cash flow
hedges. At December 31, 2011 we had one interesswaap contract outstanding with $4.3 million ofianal amount pertaining to EURO
denominated debt fixed at 4.14%. At December 3112¢€he fair value before taxes of the Companytsrest rate swap is $(0.2) million.

Commodity Prices We have commodity price risk with respect to pases of certain raw materials, including natueal gnd carbon
black. Raw material, energy and commodity costehmeen extremely volatile over the past severaisyé#istorically, we used derivative
instruments to reduce our exposure to fluctuatioreertain commaodity prices. We did not enter iatty derivative instruments in 2011. We
will continue to evaluate, and may use, derivafimancial instruments to manage our exposure tbdrigaw material, energy and commodity
prices in the future.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cooper4@ndard Holdings Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. as oédéer 31, 2011 and 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of operat@ranges in equity (deficit) and cash flows for ylear ended December 31, 2011, the period
from June 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 (Succedberperiod from January 1, 2010 to May 31, 201, the year ended December 31, 2009
(Predecessor). Our audits also included the firdustatement schedule included in Item 8. Thesanfifal statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaesibility is to express an opinion on these friahstatements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial
position of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. as of@eber 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consetiddatements of operations, changes in
equity (deficit) and cash flows for the year en@etember 31, 2011, the period from June 1, 20Ietember 31, 2010 (Successor), the
period from January 1, 2010 to May 31, 2010, aedytar ended December 31, 2009 (Predecessor)piarotty with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, théated financial statement schedule, when considiereelation to the basic financial stateme
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mataeapects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 1, 3 and 4 to the consolidft@ncial statements, on May 12, 2010, the Un8tates Bankruptcy Court for the
District of Delaware entered an order confirming Blan of Reorganization, which became effectivd/ay 27, 2010. Accordingly, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements baea prepared in conformity with FASB Accountirtgrglards Codificatioiv 852,
“Reorganizations,” for the Successor as a newyewiih assets, liabilities and a capital structhie®ing carrying values that are not comparable
to prior periods.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Cooper-
Standard Holdings Inc.’s internal control over fio&l reporting as of December 31, 2011, basediteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiod, @ur report dated March 12,
2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s! Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
March 12, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Coopertandard Holdings Inc.

We have audited Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.&rivel control over financial reporting as of DecemB1, 2011, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiof the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s agment is responsible for maintaining effectivermal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting included irakbgement’'s Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting included in Ited. ©ur responsibility is to express an opinion ba Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancebelde that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordante WiS. generally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firtgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainy reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit the preparation of finhstaements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles and #hegipts and expenditures of the company are beadgranly in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance fiegguctevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition ofdbmpany’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. maimed, in all material respects, effective interitrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the 2011
consolidated financial statements of Cooper-Stahbimidings Inc., and our report dated March 12,2@&kpressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
March 12, 2012
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COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share atapun

Sales

Cost of products sol

Gross profit

Selling, administration & engineering expen

Amortization of intangible:

Impairment charge

Restructuring

Operating profit (loss

Interest expense, net of interest incc

Equity earnings

Reorganization items and fre-start accounting adjustments,
Other income (expense), r

Income (loss) before income tax

Provision (benefit) for income tax exper

Consolidated net income (los

Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrollingeir@sts

Net income (loss) attributable to Coo-Standard Holdings Inc.

Net income available to Coof-Standard Holdings Inc. common
stockholders

Basic net income per share attributable to Co&tandard Holding
Inc.

Diluted net income per share attributable to Co¢gtandard
Holdings Inc.

Predecesso Successol
Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended
Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
$ 1,945,25¢ 1,009,12¢ $ 1,405,01¢ $ 2,853,50¢
1,678,95¢ 832,201 1,172,35(C 2,402,92(
266,306 176,927 232,669 450,589
199,552 92,166 159,573 257,558
14,976 319 8,982 15,601

363,496 - - .
32,411 5,893 488 52,206
(344,129 78,549 63,626 125,223
(64,333 (44,505 (25,017 (40,559
4,036 3,613 3,397 5,425

(17,367 303,453 - -
9,919 (21,156 4,214 7,174
(411,874 319,954 46,220 97,263
(55,686 39,940 5,095 20,765
(356,188 280,014 41,125 76,498
126 (322 (549 26,346
$ (356,06 279,6¢ $ 40,576 $ 102,84
$ 28,723  $ 75,260
$ 1.64 $ 4.27
$ 1.55 $ 3.93

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2010 and 2011
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share amounts)

Successo
December 31, December 31,
2010 2011
Assets
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel $ 294,450 $ 361,745
Accounts receivable, n 380,915 433,947
Inventories, ne 122,043 139,726
Prepaid expense 20,056 26,295
Other 40,857 43,808
Total current asse 858,321 1,005,521
Property, plant and equipment, | 589,504 619,717
Goodwill 137,000 136,406
Intangibles, ne 149,642 131,691
Other asset 119,309 110,453
$ 1,853,77¢ $ 2,003,78¢
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Debt payable within one ye $ 19,965 $ 33,093
Accounts payabl 181,379 256,671
Payroll liabilities 98,722 84,591
Accrued liabilities 108,453 108,628
Total current liabilities 408,519 482,983
Long-term debt 456,758 455,559
Pension benefit 164,595 192,124
Postretirement benefits other than pens 80,053 68,242
Deferred tax liabilitie: 18,337 18,803
Other liabilities 25,907 44,614
Total liabilities 1,154,169 1,262,325
Redeemable noncontrolling inter 6,215 14,344
7% Cumulative participating convertible preferréaick, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authbaz®ecember 31, 2010,
and December 31, 2011; 1,052,444 shares issueduastéinding at December 31, 2010 and 1,007,444slssued and
1,003,108 shares outstanding at December 31, 130,339 125,916
Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 190,000,000 staar®rized at December 31, 2010 and December 31,; 28,376,112
and 18,323,443 shares issued and outstanding aniber 31, 2010 and December 31, 2011, respec 17 17
Additional paicin capital 478,706 485,637
Retained earninc 35,842 124,674
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 45,881 (12,469)
Total Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. equi 560,446 597,859
Noncontrolling interest 2,607 3,344
Total equity 563,053 601,203
Total liabilities and equit' $ 1,853,776 $ 2,003,788

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (DEFIC IT)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share amounts)

Total Equity
Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Other Cooper-
Noncontrolling Common Common Retained Comprehensive Standard Non-
Paid-In Earnings Holdings Inc. Controlling Total
Interests Shares Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss)  Equity (Deficit) Interest Equity (Deficit)
Balance at December 31,

2008- Predecessct $ 2,07 3,479,10C $ 35 $ 354,894 $ (280,21€ $ (59,536 $ 15,17 240 $ 17,58
Issuance of common sto 3,512 88 88 88
Stocl-based compensatic 1,334 1,334 1,334
Comprehensive income

(loss):

Net income (loss) for

2009 314 (356,062 (356,062 (440, (356,502

Other comprehensive

income (loss)
Benefit plan liability,
net of $1,120 tay
effect (3,499 (3,499 (3,499
Currency translation
adjustmen 10& 25,898 25,898 25,898
Fair value change o
derivatives, net
of ($3,843) tax
effect 6,100 6,100 6,100
Comprehensive income (lo: 41¢ (327,563 (440 (328,003
Balance at December 31,

2009- Predecessct 2,497 3,482,612 35 356,316 (636,278 (31,037 (310,964 1,967 (308,997
Stocl-based compensatic 244 244 244
Deconsolidation of non-

controlling interes (1,844 (1,844
Comprehensive income

(loss):

Net income five months

ended May 31, 201 264 279,692 279,692 58 279,750

Other comprehensive

income (loss)
Benefit plan liability,
net of $34 tax
effect 126 126 126
Currency translation
adjustmen 17 (31,091 (31,091 (31,091
Fair value change o
derivatives, net
of $194 tax effec (81) (81) (81)
Comprehensive incomr 281 248,646 58 248,704
Reorganization and fresh

start accounting

adjustment: 2,92; (3,482,612 (35) (356,560 356,586 62,083 62,074 2,182 64,256
Balance at May 31, 2010 -

Predecessc 5,70( - - - - - - 2,363 2,363
Issuance of common sto 17,489,69: 17 473,275 473,292 473,292
Initial grant award: 859,971
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COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (DEFIC IT)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share amounts)

Total Equity

Accumulated

Redeemable Additional Retained Other Cooper-
Noncontrolling Common Common Comprehensive Standard
Paid-In Earnings Holdings Inc.
Interests Shares Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss)  Equity (Deficit)

Non-
Controlling
Interest

Total
Equity (Deficit)

Balance at May 31, 2010
Successo $ 5,70C 18,349,66¢ $ 17 $ 473275 $ - $ - $ 473,292
Stocl-based compensatic 5,431 5,431
Initial grant award: 26,44¢
Dividends paic (4,734 (4,734
Comprehensive incom
Net income seven
months ended
December 31, 201 334 40,576 40,576
Other comprehensive
income:
Benefit plan
liability, net of
($489) tax
effect 4,962 4,962
Currency
translation
adjustmen 181 40,828 40,828
Fair value change
of derivatives,
net of ($36) tax
effect 91 91

$

2,363 $

215

29

475,655
5,431

(4,734

40,791

4,962

40,857

91

Comprehensive incorr 515 86,457

244

86,701

Balance at December 31,
2010- Successo 6,215 18,376,11: 17 478,706 35,842 45,881 560,446
Shares issued under stoc
option plans 14,945 (388, (388
Preferred stock redemption
premium (1,710 (1,710
Stock-based compensatic
net (67,614 8,975 (953; 8,022
Preferred stock dividenc (7,278 (7,278
FMEA joint venture
transactior 34,298 (1,656 (1,656
Accretion of redeemable
noncontrolling interes 4,071 (4,071 (4,071
Comprehensive income
(loss):
Net income (loss) for
2011 (27,045 102,844 102,844
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Benefit plan
liability, net of
$2,303 tax
effect (32,620 (32,620
Currency
translation
adjustmen (3,195 (25,810 (25,810
Fair value change
of derivatives,
net of ($34) tax
effect 80 80

2,607

699

38

563,053
(388)
(1,710

8,022
(7,278

(1,656

(4,071

103,543

(32,620

(25,772

80

Comprehensive income
(loss) (30,240 44,494

737

45,231

Balance at December 31,

2011- Successo $ 14,34 18,323,44: $ 1 485,637 $ 124,67/ $ (12,469 $ 597,85 $

334 $

601,20:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Predecesso Successol
Year Ended Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Operating Activities
Consolidated net income (los ¢ (356,188) $ 280,014 $ 41,125 $ 76,498
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net incoroses()
to net cash provided by (used in) operating aedis:
Depreciatior 98,801 35,333 57,687 108,473
Amortization of intangible: 14,976 319 8,982 15,601
Impairment charge 363,496 - - -
Reorganization items and fre-start adjustment 17,367 (303,453) - -
Non-cash restructuring charg 1,268 46 468 383
Gain on bond repurcha (9,096) - - -
Amortization of debt issuance cc 10,286 11,505 714 1,253
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,361 244 6,351 12,096
Gain on partial sale of joint ventu - - - (11,423)
Deferred income taxe (41,316) 31,049 (7,760) (525)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 14,886 (33,553) 47,665 (27,246)
Inventories 9,914 (11,824) 7,663 (4,641)
Prepaid expense¢ (974) (6,412) 6,904 (7,356)
Accounts payabl 50,081 (59,180) (3,856) 54,883
Accrued liabilities 27,117 29,561 15,105 (38,228)
Other (71,997) (49,044) (10,452) (7,429)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 129,982 (75,395) 170,596 172,339
Investing activities
Property, plant, and equipme (46,113) (22,935) (54,441) (108,339)
Acquisition of businesses, plus cash acqu - - - 28,487
Investment in affiliate - - - (10,500)
Proceeds from partial sale of joint vent - - - 16,000
Proceeds from sale of fixed ass 642 3,851 2,603 599
Net cash used in investing activiti (45,471) (19,084) (51,838) (73,753)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debtor-in-possession
financing 175,000 - - -
Payments on debt-in-possession financir (313) (175,000) - -
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi - 450,000 - -
Increase (decrease) in short term debt 24,104 (2,069) 3,879 (5,815)
Cash dividends pai - - (3,163) (7,116)
Principal payments on lo-term debi (11,646) (709,574) (2,123) (4,047)
Issuance of common sto- Predecessc 88 - - -
Proceeds from issuance of preferred and commok - 355,000 - -
Debt issuance co- Predecessc (20,592) - - -
Debt issuance cost and back stop - (30,991) - -
Repurchase of preferred stc - - - (7,470)
Repurchase of bont (737) - - -
Other 171 - 48 (136)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 166,075 (112,634 (1,359) (24,584)
Effects of exchange rate changes on « 18,147 5,528 (1,618) (6,707)
Changes in cash and cash equival 268,733 (201,585) 115,781 67,295
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 111,521 380,254 178,669 294,450
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe & 380,25 $ 178,66 $ 294,45 $ 361,74

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

1. Description of Business
Description of busines

Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. (together with itesmidated subsidiaries, the “Company,” “Coopem8tad,” “we” or “us”),through its
wholly-owned subsidiary CSA U.S., is a leading nfanturer of fluid handling, body sealing, and Axibration Systems (“AVS”)
components, systems, subsystems and modules. Thpa@g’s products are primarily for use in passengéicles and light trucks, that are
manufactured by global automotive original equiptmaanufacturers (“OEMs™and replacement markets. The Company conductsasulagly
all of its activities through its subsidiaries.

The Company believes that they are the largestgiimmducer of body sealing systems, the secogg$aiglobal producer of the types of
fluid handling products that they manufacture and of the largest North American producers of A\Sibess. They design and manufacture
their products in each major region of the worldtigh a disciplined and sustained approach to eegimg and operational excellence. The
Company operates in 71 manufacturing locationsrémel design, engineering, and administrative locetin 19 countries around the world.

On May 27, 2010, the Company and certain of its. drfsl Canadian subsidiaries emerged from undert€hap of the Bankruptcy Coc
In accordance with the provisions of Financial Aaating Standards board (“FASB”) Accounting Standa@adification (“ASC”) 852, “
Reorganization;,” the Company adopted fresh-start accounting uggo@mergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy procesdangl became a new
entity for financial reporting purposes as of Jan2010. Accordingly, the consolidated financialtetents for the reporting entity subsequent
to emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedthgs'Successor”) are not comparable to the catastgld financial statements for the
reporting entity prior to emergence from Chaptebahkruptcy proceedings (the “Predecessor”). Thari@any,”"when used in reference to
period subsequent to emergence from Chapter 11ripatick proceedings, refers to the Successor, amthwhked in reference to periods prio
emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceediefesrto the Predecessor. For further informasee, Note 3. “Reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code,” and Note 4e8RrStart Accounting,” to the consolidated finahstatements included in this report.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of combination and consolidatiernThe consolidated financial statements includeattewunts of the Company and the wholly
owned and less than wholly owned subsidiaries otlett by the Company. All material intercompany@aats and transactions have been
eliminated. Acquired businesses are included irctmesolidated financial statements from the datesquisition.

The equity method of accounting is followed foréstments in which the Company does not have cotubldoes have the ability to
exercise significant influence over operating andricial policies. Generally this occurs when oveh@y is between 20 to 50 percent. The cost
method is followed in those situations where thenPany’s ownership is less than 20 percent and tmepany does not have the ability to
exercise significant influence.

The Company'’s investment in Nishikawa Standard Caamg(“NISCQ”"), a 40 percent owned joint venturatie United States, is
accounted for under the equity method. This investntotaled $22,886 and $14,601 at December 31 20d 2011, respectively, and is
included in other assets in the accompanying cafeteld balance sheets. In 2011, the Company ret@iem NISCO a dividend of $4,750 all
of which was related to earnings. In March 201#&,@ompany sold a 10% ownership interest in NISQGh1®,000. As a result of this
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

transaction, the Company’s ownership percentagdSCO has decreased from 50% to 40%, and a g&la#23 was recognized in other
income in the consolidated financial statementsteryear ended December 31, 2011.

The Company'’s investment in Guyoung, a 20 percemted joint venture in Korea, is accounted for urttierequity method. This
investment totaled $1,633 and $2,060 at Decemhe2@®I0 and 2011, respectively, and is includedfirioassets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

The Company'’s investment in Huayu-Cooper Standaadi®y Systems Co. Ltd. (“Huayu”), a 47.5 percembed joint venture in China,
is accounted for under the equity method. Thisstwent totaled $24,344 and $24,602 at Decembe&2@®1 and 2011, respectively, and is
included in other assets in the accompanying cafeteld balance sheets. In 2011, the Company ret&iem Huayu a dividend of $1,790 all
of which was related to earnings.

During 2011, the company acquired a 20% ownerstigreést in NISCO Thailand, a joint venture in Thad. This investment, accounted
for under the equity method, totaled $11,296 atdbawzer 31, 2011 and is included in other assetsarmtcompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

Foreign currency- The financial statements of foreign subsidiagiestranslated to U.S. dollars at the end-of-peeichange rates for
assets and liabilities and at a weighted averagkamge rate for each period for revenues and egpefganslation adjustments for those
subsidiaries whose local currency is their funaiaurrency are recorded as a component of acctedutaher comprehensive income (loss) in
stockholders’ equity. Transaction related gainslasdes arising from fluctuations in currency exajerates on transactions denominated in
currencies other that the functional currency eoegnized in earnings as incurred, except for tideecompany balances which are desigr
as long-term.

Cash and cash equivalentd’he Company considers highly liquid investmentdaih original maturity of three months or less ¢éochst
equivalents.

Accounts receivable The Company records trade accounts receivable whenue is recorded in accordance with its reeenu
recognition policy and relieves accounts receivaiiien payments are received from customers. Gépndnal Company does not require
collateral for its accounts receivable.

Allowance for doubtful accountsThe allowance for doubtful accounts is estabtisteough charges to the provision for bad debte T
Company evaluates the adequacy of the allowancéofabtful accounts on a periodic basis. The evalnancludes historical trends in
collections and write-offs, management’s judgmdrhe probability of collecting accounts and marragat’s evaluation of business risk. This
evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requesmates that are susceptible to revision as méwemation becomes available. The allowa
for doubtful accounts was $993 and $3,028 at Deeer@b, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

Advertising expense Expenses incurred for advertising are generaihersed when incurred. Advertising expense was $34the year
ended December 31, 2009, $258 for the five montkde@ May 31, 2010, $426 for the seven months eBéegmber 31, 2010 and $1,463 for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Inventories- Inventories are valued at lower of cost or mar&eist is determined using the first-in, first-omtthod. Finished goods and
work-in-process inventories include material, labod manufacturing overhead costs. The Companydedaventory reserves for inventory in
excess of production and/or forecasted requiremamdgor obsolete inventory in production. As oftBmber 31, 2010 and 2011, inventories
are reflected net of reserves of $2,504 and $17 /28pectively.
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Successo
December 31 December 31
2010 2011
Finished goods $ 32,690 $ 34,446
Work in proces! 27,223 34,466
Raw materials and suppli 62,130 70,814
$ 122,043 $ 139,72¢

In connection with the adoption of fresh-start aoding, an $8,136 fair value write-up of inventevgs recorded at May 31, 2010 in the
Predecessor. Such inventory was liquidated as oéDéer 31, 2010 by the Successor and recordediasraase to cost of product sold. In
connection with the acquisition of FMEA a $1,238 falue write up of inventory was recorded in #ezond quarter of 2011. Such inventory
was liquidated as of December 31, 2011 and recaadeth increase to cost of product sold.

Derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments are utilizedthg Company to reduce foreign currency exchange and
interest rate risks. The Company has establishéciggand procedures for risk assessment andppewal, reporting, and monitoring of
derivative financial instrument activities. On tii@te the derivative is established, the Companigdates the derivative as either a fair value
hedge, a cash flow hedge, or a net investment hiadggcordance with its established policy. The @any does not enter into financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Income taxes- Income tax expense in the consolidated and caedtstatements of operations is accounted for iordemce with ASC
Topic 740, “Accounting for Income Taxeswhich requires the recognition of deferred incotakes using the liability method.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are determinasell on differences between financial reportingtardases of assets and liabilities and
are measured using enacted tax laws and rateduétiem allowance is provided on deferred tax asgehe Company determines that it is
more likely than not that the asset will not bdizeal.

Long-lived assets Property, plant, and equipment are recordedsttartd depreciated using primarily the straighe-limethod over their
estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvementsarertized over the expected life of the assetron t&f the lease, whichever is shorter.
Intangibles with finite lives, which include tecHogy and customer relationships, are amortized ther estimated useful lives. The Compi
evaluates the recoverability of long-lived asseltemevents and circumstances indicate that thésassg be impaired and the undiscounted
net cash flows estimated to be generated by tremstsaare less than their carrying value. If tHecagying value exceeds the fair value, an
impairment loss exists and is calculated baseddiacunted cash flow analysis or estimated salvagiee. Discounted cash flows are
estimated using internal budgets and assumptigssdiang discount rates and other factors.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long Term Supphagements- Costs for molds, dies, and other tools ownecheyGompany to
produce products under long-term supply arrangesremet recorded at cost in property, plant, andpeaent and amortized over the lesser of
three years or the term of the related supply ames¢. The amounts capitalized were $5,813 and $31 December 31, 2010 and 2011,
respectively. The Company expenses all pre-produidtioling costs related to customer-owned toalswaich reimbursement is not
contractually guaranteed by the customer. Reimblggdacling costs included in other assets in tmmpanying consolidated balance sheets
were $8,537 and $3,685 at December 31, 2010 antl 28dpectively. Reimbursable tooling costs arendsd in accounts receivable in the
accompanying consolidated
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balance sheets if considered a receivable in thetwelve months. At December 31, 2010 and 2014,4%7 and $90,345, respectively, were
included in accounts receivable for customer-owoeting of which $38,829 and $55,601, respectivelgs not yet invoiced to the customer.

Goodwill— Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impaent, either annually or when events or circuntstarindicate that
impairment may exist, by reporting unit which igetenined in accordance with ASC Topic 35htangibles-Goodwill and Othet.The
Company utilizes an income approach to estimatéainealue of each of its reporting units. Theante approach is based on projected debt-
free cash flow which is discounted to the presaifiter using discount factors that consider the tingind risk of cash flows. The Company
believes that this approach is appropriate beciapsevides a fair value estimate based upon thentang unit's expected long-term operating
cash flow performance. Fair value is estimatedgisatent automotive industry and specific platfgmoduction volume projections, which are
based on both third-party and internally-develofmedcasts, as well as commercial, wage and bei@&fation and discount rate assumptions.
Other significant assumptions include the weiglateerage cost of capital, terminal value growth,regeminal value margin rates, future cay
expenditures and changes in future working capégliirements. While there are inherent uncertaméated to the assumptions used and to
management’s application of these assumptionsgatialysis, the Company believes that the incoppecach provides a reasonable estimate
of the fair value of its reporting units. The Compaonducts its annual goodwill impairment analgsof October # of each year. The 2011
annual goodwill impairment analysis resulted inmpairment.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Commitmeiitee Company generally enters into agreements Wwéh tustomers to produce product
the beginning of a vehicle’s life. Although suchregments do not generally provide for minimum qitigst once they enter into such
agreements, fulfillment of their customepirchasing requirements can be their obligatiorafoextended period or the entire production Ift
the vehicle. These agreements generally may bertated by their customer at any time. Historical@rminations of these agreements have
been minimal. In certain limited instances, theyrha committed under existing agreements to supggucts to their customers at selling
prices which are not sufficient to cover the direms$t to produce such products. In such situatithrey, recognize losses as they are incurred.

The Company receives blanket purchase orders franyraf their customers on an annual basis. Gegerlth purchase orders and
related documents set forth the annual terms, direfupricing, related to a particular vehicle mod&ich purchase orders generally do not
specify quantities. They recognize revenue basdti@pricing terms included in their annual purehaslers as their products are shipped to
their customers. As part of certain agreementy, éine asked to provide their customers with annasat reductions. They accrue for such
amounts as a reduction of revenue as their produetshipped to their customers. In addition, theyerally have ongoing adjustments to their
pricing arrangements with their customers basethemelated content and cost of their productsh$uicing accruals are adjusted as they are
settled with their customers.

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping haddling are included in sales in their consokdattatements of operations. Shipping
and handling costs are included in cost of saléseir consolidated statements of operations.

Research and developmen€Costs are charged to selling, administrationengineering expense as incurred and totaled, $62¢88he
year ended December 31, 2009, $29,130 for theniiweths ended May 31, 2010, $39,662 for the sevantmended December 31, 2010 :
$83,906 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Stock-based compensatieThe Company measures stock-based compensatiensxgt fair value in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stdt@&AP”) and recognizes such
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expenses over the vesting period of the stock-basgiloyee awards. For further information relatethe Company’s stock-based
compensation programs, see Note 20. “Stock-Bas@tp€nsation.”

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in canfty with GAAP requires management to make estisiatel
assumptions that affect reported amounts of (1¢mags and expenses during the reporting period2rabsets and liabilities, as well as
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitieshatdate of the financial statements. Actual teszduld differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications- Certain amounts in prior periods’ financial stagats have been reclassified to conform to theeotigrear
presentation.

Recent accounting pronounceme

In December 2011, Accounting Standards Update (“A2011-05 was modified by the issuance of ASU 2021Comprehensive
Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Dade Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifieatof Items Out of Accumulated Otl
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Updat€011-05which defers certain paragraphs of ASU 2011-05whatld require
reclassifications of items from other comprehengia®me to net income by component of net incormetancomponent of other
comprehensive income. The impact of the adoptiahede ASU’s is not expected to have a materiahthpn the consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08tadnhgibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)This ASU will allow companies to
assess qualitative factors to determine whethiemitore likely than not that the fair value of @egting unit is less than its carrying amount
before performing the two-step impairment reviewagass. This ASU is effective for fiscal years amgiim periods beginning after
December 15, 2011 (early adoption is permitted} ifimpact of adoption is not expected to have a mahienpact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04&dir Value Measurement (Topic 820)This ASU amends the requirements for meast
fair value and disclosing information about faituea This ASU is effective for fiscal years andeiriin periods beginning after December 15,
2011 (early adoption is prohibited). The impactadbption is not expected to have a material impadhe consolidated financial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28tdngibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)This ASU modifies the first step of
the goodwill impairment test to include reportingjta with zero or negative carrying amounts. Festhreporting units, the second step of the
goodwill impairment test shall be performed to meaghe amount of impairment loss, if any; wheis inore likely than not that a goodwill
impairment exists. This ASU is effective for fisgaars and interim periods beginning after Decembe2010. The Company has evaluated
the ASU and does not believe it will have a maténgpact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Reorganization Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptg Code
Filing of Bankruptcy Cases

During the first half of 2009, the Company expecieth a substantial decrease in revenues causee Bgvkre decline in worldwide
automotive production that followed the global ficgl crisis that began in 2008. On August 3, 2@088,Company and each of its direct and
indirect wholly-owned U.S. subsidiaries (collectivevith the Company, the “Debtors”) filed voluntapegtitions for relief under Chapter 11 in
the United States Bankruptcy Court for the DistotDelaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”) (Consolidatgdse No. 09-
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12743(PJW)) (the “Chapter 11 Cases”). On Augug089, the Company’s Canadian subsidiary, Cogtandard Automotive Canada Limitt

a corporation incorporated under the laws of OatéiCSA Canada”), commenced proceedings seekingf febm its creditors under Canada’s
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (the “Canaditamceedings”) in the Ontario Superior Court oftidgsin Toronto, Canada (Commercial
List) (the “Canadian Court”), court file no. 09-8300CL. The Company'’s subsidiaries and operatiatside of the United States and Canada
were not subject to the requirements of the Bartksu@ode. On March 26, 2010, the Debtors filed wlith Bankruptcy Court their Second
Amended Joint Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganizatiom@snded and supplemented, the “Plan of ReorgémiZaaind their First Amended
Disclosure Statement (as amended and supplemehéetDisclosure Statement”). On May 12, 2010, tleeBuptcy Court entered an order
approving and confirming the Plan of Reorganizafibe “Confirmation Order”). CSA Canada’s plan ohgpromise or arrangement was
sanctioned on April 16, 2010.

On May 27, 2010 (the “Effective Date”), the Debtomsummated the reorganization contemplated bi?ldue of Reorganization and
emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings.

Pos-Emergence Capital Structure and Recent Events
Following the Effective Date, the Company’s cap#tlicture consisted of the following:

. Senior ABL Facility. A senior secured asset-based revolving credittfan the aggregate principal amount of $125,(0®
“Senior ABL Facility”), which contains an uncomngitt $25,000 “accordion” facility that will be avdile at the Compang’reques
if the lenders at the time conse

. 8 1/2% Senior Notes due 2018450,000 of senior unsecured notes (the “Senmed) that bear interest at'8 2% per annum
and mature on May 1, 201

. Common stock, 7% preferred stock and warraiguity securities comprised of (i) 17,489,693rsBaof the Company’s common
stock, (ii) 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s 7&fepred stock, which are initially convertible irt(290,788 shares of the
Company’s common stock, and (iii) 2,419,753 wassgfwarrants”) to purchase up to an aggregate4f® 753 shares of the
Compan’s common stock

On the Effective Date, the Company issued to kegleypees of the Company, (i) 757,896 shares of comstack plus, subject to
realized dilution on the warrants, an additionad,005 shares of common stock as restricted stork]1(664 shares of 7% preferred stock as
restricted 7% preferred stock, and (iii) 702,508@ys to purchase shares of common stock, plugestto realized dilution on the warrants, an
additional 78,057 options to purchase shares ofwomstock. On the day after the Effective Date,Gbenpany issued to certain of its direc
and Oak Hill Advisors L.P. or its affiliates, 2684hares of common stock as restricted stock ajfB86®ptions to purchase shares of common
stock. The Company also reserved 780,566 shamsnwfon stock for future issuance to the Compangeagement. On July 19, 2010, the
Company paid a dividend to holders of its outstagdi% preferred stock in the form of 10,780 addaicshares of 7% preferred stock.

For further information on the Senior ABL Facildynd the Senior Notes, see Note 9. “Debt.” For frrthformation on our common
stock, 7% preferred stock and warrants, see NateEHiity and Redeemable Preferred Stock.”

Satisfaction of Debtc-in-Possession Financing

In connection with the commencement of the Chapie€ases and the Canadian Proceedings, the Corepgergd into debtor-in-
possession financing arrangements. On the EffeCtate, all remaining
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amounts outstanding under the Company’s debtoess@ssion financing arrangement were repaid usoaepds of the Debtors’ exit
financing. For additional information on these finang arrangements, see Note 9. “Debt.”

Cancellation of Certain Prepetition Obligations

Under the Plan of Reorganization, the Company’pgtiton equity, debt and certain of its other ghtions were cancelled and
extinguished as follows:

. the Predecessor’s equity interests, including comstock and any options, warrants, calls, subsoriptor other similar rights or
other agreements, commitments or outstanding seudbligations, were cancelled and extinguislaed, no distributions were
made to the Predeces’s former equity holder:

. the Predecess<’s prepetition debt securities were cancelled aadntientures governing such obligations were teateih (othe
than for the purposes of allowing holders of theeado receive distributions under the Plan of Banization and allowing the
trustees to exercise certain rights);

. the Predecess<’s prepetition credit agreement was cancelled amdginated, including all agreements related thefetoer than fol
the purposes of allowing creditors under that figcib receive distributions under the Plan of Rggonization and allowing the
administrative agent to exercise certain rigt

For further information regarding the resolutionceftain of the Company’s other prepetition lial@h in accordance with the Plan of
Reorganization, see Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accountithgabilities Subject to Compromise.”

4. Fresh-Start Accounting

As discussed in Note 3. “Reorganization Under Gérapl of the Bankruptcy Code,” the Debtors emeffgath Chapter 11 bankruptcy
proceedings on May 27, 2010. As a result, the Sismreadopted fresh-start accounting as (i) thegegozation value of the Predecess@sset
immediately prior to the confirmation of the PlanReorganization was less than the total of alkypegition liabilities and allowed claims and
(i) the holders of the Predecessor’s existingn@shares immediately prior to the confirmationhef Plan of Reorganization received less than
50% of the voting shares of the emerging entity ABAequires the adoption of fresh-start accounsingf the Plan of Reorganization’s
confirmation date, or as of a later date when alterial conditions precedent to the Plan of Redegdion becoming effective are resolved,
which occurred on May 27, 2010. The Company eletdetiopt fresh-start accounting as of May 31, 2@1€bincide with the timing of its
normal May accounting period close. There wereransactions that occurred from May 28, 2010 throMgly 31, 2010, that would materially
impact the Company’s consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows for the 28Li8cessor or 2010 Predecessor periods.

Reorganization Value

The Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan of Reorgatidn, which included an enterprise value (orritistable value) of $1,025,000,
assuming $50,000 of excess cash, as set fortleiDigtlosure Statement. For purposes of the Pl&eofganization and the Disclosure
Statement, the Company and certain unsecured aredigreed upon this value. This reorganizationevalas determined to be a fair and
reasonable value and is within the range of vateesidered by the Bankruptcy Court as part of tirdirmation process. The reorganization
value reflects a number of factors and assumptiookjding the Company’s statements of operatiomstzalance sheets, the Company’s
financial projections, the amount of cash to fuperations,
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current market conditions and a return to more radired light vehicle production and sales volunidse range of values considered by the
Bankruptcy Court of $975,000 to $1,075,000 wasrdeiteed using comparable public company trading iplel, precedent transactions
analysis and discounted cash flow valuation mettuaies.

The comparable public company analysis identifigdaup of comparable companies giving consideratidimes of business, size,
geographic footprint and customer base. The arsat@wnpared the public market implied enterpriseedbr each comparable public company
to its projected earnings before interest, taxeprektiation and amortization (“EBITDA”). The calatg#d range of multiples for the comparable
companies was used to estimate a range which vpdisapo the Company’s projected EBITDA to deterenamrange of enterprise values for
the reorganized company or the reorganization value

Precedent transactions analysis estimates the galeompany by examining public merger and adfijmiistransactions. An analysis of
a company'’s transaction value as a multiple ofaezioperating statistics provided industry-wideuasibn multiples for companies in similar
lines of business to the Debtors. Transaction iplektiare calculated based on the purchase pricieiding any debt assumed) paid to acquire
companies that are comparable to the Debtors.$piaiel as a multiple of revenue, earnings befderést and taxes and EBITDA were
considered, which were then applied to the Debtoeg’ operating statistics to estimate the entezprédue, or value to a potential strategic
buyer.

The discounted cash flow analysis was based oG oepany’s projected financial information, whiclelides a variety of estimates and
assumptions. While the Company considers such agrand assumptions reasonable, they are inheseitflect to uncertainties and to a w
variety of significant business, economic and cdtitipe risks, many of which are beyond the Compargontrol and may not materialize.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions mayhadwesignificant effect on the determinationhaf Company’s reorganization value. The
discounted cash flow analysis was based on recsottive industry and specific platform productiamiume projections developed by both
third-party and internal forecasts, as well as cemuial, wage and benefit, inflation and discoumé @ssumptions. Other significant
assumptions include terminal value growth ratemieal value margin rate, future capital expendguaad changes in working capital
requirements.

Reorganization Adjustment

The consolidated financial information gives efferthe following reorganization adjustments, thenPof Reorganization and the
implementation of the transactions contemplatethikyPlan of Reorganization. These adjustmentseffeet to the terms of the Plan of
Reorganization and certain underlying assumptishs;h include, but are not limited to, the below.

. The issuance of the Senior Notes, which resultezgh proceeds of $450,0(

. The issuance of 17.5 million shares of our comntonks including 8.6 million shares offered to halslef the Predeces¢s
prepetition senior subordinated notes in conneatiith the rights offering conducted pursuant to B@n of Reorganization (the
“Rights Offering”), 2.6 million shares to certaiftbe Debtors’ creditors that agreed to backst@pRights Offering (the “Backstop
Parties”) pursuant to an equity commitment agreérftee “Equity Commitment Agreement”) and 6.3 noillishares to certain
holders of the Predecessor’s prepetition senicgsahd prepetition senior subordinated notes. Tmepany also issued shares of
7% preferred stock convertible into 4.3 million st®of common stock pursuant to the Equity Commitrdgyreement. The
Company received cash proceeds of $355,000 in ctionawith the Rights Offering and Equity Commitmégreement and also
received the full and complete satisfaction, settiet and release of allowed prepetition senior nlatiens anc
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allowed prepetition senior subordinated note cldionsuch shares. In addition, the Company alsgeidsvarrants to purchase
2.4 million shares of common stoc

. The repayment of $175,000 of liabilities under EBrebtor’ Debtorin-Possession Credit Agreement (“DIP Credit Agreemer”).
On the Effective Date, each holder of an allowe® Dlaim received, in full and complete satisfactisgttiement and release of and
in exchange for such allowed claim against the Bebtan amount in cash equal to the allowed amaiusiich claim

. The repayment of the $639,600, including intereststanding under the Predece’s prepetition credit agreement in ca
. The repayment of the $105,200, including intereststanding of the Predeces’s prepetition senior notes in ca

. The effects of the above reorganization adjustmezsisited in a decrease in interest expense, imgutie amortization of debt
issuance costs, resulting from a lower level oftd

Adoption of Fresl-Start Accounting

Fresh-start accounting results in a new basis @fatting and reflects the allocation of the Compsffgir value to its underlying assets
and liabilities. The Company’s estimates of failueaincluded in the Successor’s financial statesegpresent the Company’s best estimates
based on independent appraisals and valuationsCohgany’s estimates of fair value are inherentlgjact to significant uncertainties and
contingencies beyond the control of the Companyofdingly, there can be no assurance that the assnassumptions, valuations and
appraisals will be realized, and actual resultdccoary materially.

The Company'’s reorganization value was allocatdtstassets in conformity with ASC 805Btisiness CombinationsThe excess
reorganization value over the fair value of tangiidhd identifiable intangible assets was recordegbadwill. Liabilities existing as of the
Effective Date, other than deferred taxes, werended at the present value of amounts expected palil using appropriate risk adjusted
interest rates. Deferred taxes were determinednifocmity with applicable income tax accountingrgtards. Predecessor accumulated
depreciation, accumulated amortization, retaindttittecommon stock and accumulated other comprsiverioss were eliminated.
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The following FrestBtart Consolidated Balance Sheet illustrates thenftial effects on the Company of the implementatibthe Plan ¢
Reorganization and the adoption of fresh-start aating. This Fresh-Start Consolidated Balance Stedketcts the effects of the consummation
of the transactions contemplated in the Plan ofrdzation, including settlement of various lidti®k, issuance of certain securities,
incurrence of new indebtedness, repayment of aldbtedness and other cash payments.

Predecessor Successor
May 31, Reorganization Fresh-start May 31,
2010 Adjustments (1) Adjustments (9) 2010
Assets
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel ¢ 200,311 $ (21,642 ) $ = ¢ 178,669
Restricted cas 482,234 (482,234 2) - -
Accounts receivable, n 409,041 - - 409,041
Inventories, ne 116,248 - 8,136 124,384
Prepaid expenst 26,931 (1,243 3) - 25,688
Other 36,858 (68) ) - 36,790
Total current asse 1,271,62% (505,187 8,136 774,572
Property, plant and equipment, | 527,306 - 40,665 567,971
Goodwill 87,728 - 48,938 136,666 (8)
Intangibles, ne 10,294 - 144,711 155,005
Other asset 125,12C 4,895 3) (26,721 103,294
$ 2,022,07: $ (500,292 $ 215,72¢ $ 1,737,50¢
Liabilities and Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Debt payable within one ye & 15,335 $ - $ - $ 15,335
Debtorin-possession financir 74,813 (74,813 2) - -
Accounts payabl 171,886 6,763 4) - 178,649
Payroll liabilities 94,427 374 4) (1,154 93,647
Accrued liabilities 92,426 4,232 4) (9,462 87,196
Total current liabilities 448,887 (63,444 (10,616 374,827
Long-term debt 458,373 - - 458,373
Pension benefit 134,278 12,473 (4) 21,685 168,436
Postretirement benefits other than pens 75,198 - 4,948 80,146
Deferred tax liabilitiet 9,218 (268, (4) 12,267 21,217
Other lon¢-term liabilities 21,124 1,891 4) 7,839 30,854
Liabilities subject to compromis 1,213,781 (1,213,781 4) - -
Total liabilities 2,360,85¢ (1,263,129 36,123 1,133,85¢
Successor preferred sto - 128,000 (2)(4) - 128,000
Equity (deficit):
Successor common sto - 17 )47, - 17
Successor additional pi-in capital - 473,275 @2)4)(T; - 473,275
Predecessor common stc 35 (35) 5 - -
Predecessor additional p-in capital 356,560 (356,560 (5) - -
Accumulated defici (633,481 518,13C (6) 115,351 -
Accumulated other comprehensive i (62,083 10 4) 62,073 -
Total Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. equity (defic (338,969 634,837 177,424 473,292
Noncontrolling interest 181 - 2,182 2,363
Total equity (deficit) (338,788 634,837 179,606 475,655
Total liabilities and equity (deficit ¢ 2,022,071 $ (500,292 $ 215,729 ¢ 1,737,50¢

(1) Represents amounts recorded as of the EffebDiate for the consummation of the Plan of Reorgaiun, including the settlement of
liabilities subject to compromise, the satisfactidrihe DIP Credit Agreement, the incurrence of nesiebtedness and related cash
payments, the issuances of 7% preferred stock amehon stock and the cancellation of the Predec’s common stock
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(2) This adjustment reflects net cash payments recaaded the Effective Dat:

Release of restricted cash $ 482,234
Cash received from Rights Offeril 355,000
Payment of prepetition bank de (639,646)
Payment of prepetition senior no (105,227)
Repayment of DIP Credit Agreeme (75,777)
Other (38,226)

Net cash paymen § (21,642)

(&) Includes proceeds from issuance of long term deldt in restricted cash until the Effective Dz
(3) This adjustment reflects the capitalization of $%,®f debt issuance costs related to the Senior R#&tility.
(4) This adjustment reflects the settlement of lialeifitsubject to compromise (s“Liabilities Subject to Compromi” below).

Settlement of liabilities subject to comprom $ (1,213,781
Liabilities settled by cash (i 765,931
Issuance of Successor common stock, 7% preferoel and warrants, ni 258,716
Liabilities reinstate( 26,891

Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compise § (162,243)

(@) Cash received from the sale of the Senior Notesasamalints received from the Rights Offeri
(5) This adjustment reflects the cancellation of thedecess’s common stock
(6) This adjustment reflects the cumulative impacthef Reorganization Adjustments discussed ak

Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compise $ (162,243)
Cancellation of Predeces’s common stoc (356,595
Other 708
¢ (518,130)
(7) A reconciliation of the reorganization value of tBeccess’s common stock as of the Effective Date is showaowie

Reorganization valu ¢ 1,025,000
Less: Senior Note (450,000)
Other deb (23,708)
7% preferred stoc (128,000)

Plus: Excess cas 50,000
Reorganization value of Succe<'s common stock and warratr 473,292
Less: Fair value of warrants ( 20,919
Reorganization value of Succes’s common stoc $§ 452,373
Shares outstanding as of May 31, 2! 17,489,693
Per share value (| $ 25.87

(@) For further information on the fair value of thervamts, see Note 1“Equity and Redeemable Preferred St”
(b) Does not include restricted shares issued to mamagieupon emergence that vest ov-4 years
(c) The per share value of $25.87 was used to receréstiuance of the Succes's common stock
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(8) A reconciliation of the reorganization value of tBeccessc¢s assets and goodwill is shown belc

Reorganization valu $ 1,025,000
Plus:Liabilities (excluding debt and after givinffeet to fresl-start accounting adjustmen 660,145

Fair value of noncontrolling intere 2,363

Excess cas 50,000
Reorganization value of Succes’'s asset 1,737,508
Less:Success’s assets (excluding goodwill and after giving effedreslt-start accounting adjustmen 1,600,842
Reorganization value of Succes’s assets in excess of fair va- Successcs goodwill ¢ 136,666

(9) Represents the adjustment of assets and tiabitp fair value, or other measurement as sgethly ASC 805, in conjunction with the
adoption of fres-start accounting. Significant adjustments are surizea below.

Elimination of Predecess’s goodwill $ (87,728)
Success( s goodwill 136,666
Elimination of Predecess<’s intangible asse (10,294)
Success(’'s intangible asset adjustment 155,005
Defined benefit plans adjustment | (30,680)
Inventory adjustment (¢ 8,136
Property, plant and equipment adjustment 40,665
Investments in nc-consolidated affiliates adjustment 9,021
Noncontrolling interest adjustments (2,182)
Elimination of Predecess’s accumulated other comprehensive loss and otfgstadents (78,678)
Pretax income on fre-start accounting adjustmer 139,931
Tax related to fres-start accounting adjustments (24,580)

Net gain on fres-start accounting adjustmer $ 115,351

(a) Intangible asset- This adjustment reflects the fair value of intamgissets determined as of the Effective Datefurtirer informatior
on the valuation of intangible assets, see No“Goodwill and Intangible”

(b) Defined benefit plans — This adjustment prittyaeflects differences in assumptions, such aegpected return on plan assets and the
weighted average discount rate related to the payofédenefit obligations, between the prior meament date of December 31, 2009
and the Effective Date. The $(30,680) is refledtethe following: pension benefits $(21,685), peitement benefits other than pension
$(4,948), other assets $(4,701), accrued payrb8H(and accrued liabilities $1,245 line items lo@ Eresh-Start Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

(c) Inventory — This amount adjusts inventory tio Y@alue as of the Effective Date, which is estiethfor finished goods and work-proces:
based upon the expected selling price less casirtplete, selling and disposal cost and a normihgerofit. Raw material inventory
was recorded at a carrying value as such valueappates the replacement cc

(d) Property, plant and equipment — This amountigtdjproperty, plant and equipment to fair valuefake Effective Date, giving
consideration to the highest value and best usigesk assets. Fair value estimates were basediependent appraisals. Key assumpt
used in the appraisals were based on a combinatiocome, market and cost approaches, as apptef
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(e) Investments in non-consolidated and noncomiplhterests — These amounts adjust investmemsrrconsolidated affiliates and
noncontrolling interests to their estimated failues. Estimated fair values were based on intemdlexternal valuations using custon
valuation methodologies, including comparable eaysimultiples, discounted cash flows and negotiaetsaction values. The
adjustment to investments in non-consolidatediafés of $9,021 is included in the other assetsitem on the Fresh-Start Consolidated
Balance Shee

() Tax expense — This amount reflects the tax egpeelated to the fair value adjustments of inmentproperty, plant and equipment,
intangibles, tooling and investments and is inctltfethe other assets $(17,313), accrued liaksli$i&,000 and deferred tax liabilities
$(12,267) line items on the Fre-Start Consolidated Balance She

Liabilities Subject to Compromis

Certain prepetition liabilities were subject to gemise under the Plan of Reorganization and weperted at amounts allowed or
expected to be allowed by the Bankruptcy Courtt@eiof these claims were resolved and satisfieof #ise Effective Date. A summary of
liabilities subject to compromise reflected in fiezdecessor consolidated balance sheet as of M&02Q, is shown below:

Predecesso- May 31, 2010

Shor-term borrowings $ 85,503
Accounts payabl 8,007
Accrued liabilities 23,433
Derivatives 18,081
Debt subject to compromi
Prepetition primary credit facilit 520,637
Prepetition senior note 197,320
Prepetition senior subordinated nc 308,009
Accrued interes 52,791
Liabilities subject to compromis $ 1,213,78:

Reorganization Items and Fre«Start Accounting Adjustments, net

Reorganization items include expenses, gains assdtodirectly related to the Debtors’ reorganiragimceedings. Fresh-start accounting
adjustments reflect the impact of adoption of frekdrt accounting. A summary of reorganization geand fresh-start accounting adjustments,
net for the Predecessor period, is shown below:

Pretax reorganization item

Professional and other fe $ 48,701
Gain on prepetition settleme (49,980)
Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compise (162,243)
(163,522)

Pretax fres-start accounting adjustmer (139,931)
Reorganization items and fre-start accounting adjustments, | ¢ (303,453)

5. Acquisitions

On March 28, 2011, the Company completed the aitiguif USi, Inc. from Ikyuo Co. Ltd. of Japan,d® in Rockford, Tennessee, for
cash consideration of $6,500. USi Inc. providegaovative hard coating
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process for use in automotive and industrial apgibos, which will allow the Company to expandtéshnology capabilities. This acquisition
was accounted for under ASC 808Business Combinationsand the results of operations are included ex@ompany’s consolidated
financial statements from the date of acquisitibinis acquisition does not meet the thresholds figaificant acquisition and therefore no pro
forma financial information is presented.

To broaden product lines across Europe, the Compampleted an agreement with Fonds de ModernisagésrEquipementiers
Automobiles (“FMEA”) on May 2, 2011, to establistcént venture that combined the Company’s Frenatiybsealing operations and the
operations of Société des Polyméres Barre-Thon®BET"). SPBT is a French supplier of anti-vibratgystems and low pressure hoses, as
well as body sealing products, which FMEA acquiasd preliminary step to the joint venture trarisacfThe Company contributed its French
body sealing assets and obligations, which hadt adtue of approximately $33,000, to the joint uee to acquire 51 percent ownership and
FMEA contributed the assets and obligations of SRBTts 49 percent ownership. SPBT changed itsentmCooper Standard France SAS
(“CS France”) subsequent to the transaction.

The Company accounted for the transaction as so$alsubsidiary while retaining control under A8T0), “Consolidations’ and an
acquisition of 51 percent ownership interest of SRBder ASC 805, Business CombinationsAccordingly, the subsidiary was transferred at
historical cost and the assets acquired and théitias assumed of SPBT were recorded at fair@and are included in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, ZBElCompany received net cash of $38,224 as p#redransaction. Also, as part of the
acquisition the Company acquired a 50 percent ostginterest in a joint venture in India.

The operating results of CS France’s operationgnataded in the Company’s consolidated financiatements from the date of
acquisition.

The following table summarizes the estimated falue of SPBT assets acquired and liabilities asduahéhe date of acquisition:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 38,224
Accounts receivable, n 35,258
Inventories, ne 18,194
Property, plant, and equipment, | 42,565
Other asset 12,969
Total assets acquire 147,210
Accounts payabl 28,147
Shor-term notes payabl 20,474
Other current liabilitie: 30,998
Pension benefit 23,298
Other lon¢-term liabilities 12,293
Total liabilities assume 115,210
Net assets acquire ¢ 32,000

The estimated fair value of certain assets andlitiab are preliminary and may change in the fatas information becomes available
from third party valuations. This joint venture dagt meet the thresholds for a significant actjaisiand therefore no pro forma financial
information is presented.
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In connection with the investment in CS France rbecontrolling shareholders have the option, wigabmbedded in the noncontrolling
interest, to require the Company to purchase thmirging 49 percent noncontrolling share at a foenprice designed to approximate fair value
based on operating results of the entity. The ptibn becomes exercisable at the expiration ofdbeyear period following the May 2, 2011
closing date of the transaction. The combinatioa nbncontrolling interest and a put option reslitea redeemable noncontrolling interest.

The noncontrolling interest is redeemable at othan fair value as the put value is determineddbasea formula described above. The
Company records the noncontrolling interests inFE&ce at the greater of 1) the initial carryingoamt, increased or decreased for the
noncontrolling shareholders’ share of net incomss and its share of other comprehensive incanhese and dividends (“carrying amount”)
or 2) the cumulative amount required to accretadrthial carrying amount to the redemption valudaieh resulted in accretion of $4,071 for the
year ended December 31, 2011. Such accretion amatmtecorded as increases to redeemable nonltiogtioterests. According t
authoritative accounting guidance, the redeematsheantrolling interest is classified outside ofrpanent equity, in mezzanine equity, on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. As of DeeeBih 2011 the estimated redemption value of theption is $28,910. The redemption
amount related to the put option is guaranteedhbyompany and secured with the CS France shaikbya subsidiary of the Company.

According to authoritative accounting guidancergmeemable noncontrolling shareholders’ interéstthe extent the noncontrolling
shareholders have a contractual right to receivanamunt upon exercise of a put option that is othan fair value, and such amount is greater
than carrying value, then the noncontrolling shalgdr has, in substance, received a dividend Higion that is different than other common
stockholders. Therefore the redemption amount gesx of fair value should be reflected in the catapen of earnings per share available to
the Company’s common stockholders. At DecembefB11 there was no difference between redemptiamevahd fair value.

On July 1, 2011, the Company purchased from NistékRubber a 20% interest in Nishikawa Tachapl&etiber Company Limited for
cash consideration of $10,500. Nishikawa Tachagil®ebber Company Limited is a joint venture majodwned by Nishikawa Rubber based
in Thailand and supplies body sealing products. fidwe joint venture entity is Nishikawa Tachaplal@doper Limited. This joint venture is
owned 20% by Cooper Standard, 77.7% by NishikawabRuand 2.3% owned by Original Tachaplalerts amduideni Thailand. This
investment is accounted for under the equity metimatlis included in other assets in the accompgnydmsolidated balance sheet.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company &egithe automotive sealing business of Sigit S.pased in Chivasso, Italy and
Poland, for cash consideration of $2,391. ConsbligeSigit's sealing capabilities into the CompangXxisting operations will broaden the
Company’s supply relationship with global OEM cumstrs. This acquisition was accounted for under 88&, “Business Combination$anc
the results of operations are included in the Camjsaconsolidated financial statements from theeddtacquisition. The estimated fair value
of certain assets and liabilities are preliminamg anay change in the future as information becoawedable from third party valuations. This
acquisition does not meet the thresholds for aifsiggmt acquisition and therefore no pro forma fingl information is presented.

6. Restructuring

The Company implemented several restructuringaitivies in prior years in connection with the cl@sar consolidation of facilities in
North America, Europe, South America, Australia &sih. The Company also implemented a restructuniitgtive that involved thi
reorganization of the Company’s operating structliree
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Company commenced these initiatives prior to Deearth, 2010 and continued to execute these iniéiatihrough December 31, 2011. The
majority of the costs associated with these initest were incurred shortly after the original impkentation. However, the Company continues
to incur costs on some of the initiatives relatdédgipally to the liquidation of the respective ifides. The total expense incurred related to
these actions amounted to $5,893, $488 and $(éofive months ended May 31, 2010, the seven nsoerhded December 31, 2010 and the
year ended December 31, 2011, respectively. Assgkhber 31, 2011 there is a liability of $609 asged with these initiatives recorded

the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

In the first quarter of 2011, the Company initiated closure of a facility in North America and aonced the decision to establish a
centralized shared services function in Europe. d8tenated total costs of these initiatives amaoi$9,600 and are expected to be completed
in 2012. The following table summarizes the acyidir these initiatives for the year ended Decen@ier2011:

Employee
Separation Other
Exit Asset
Costs Costs Impairments Total

Balance at January 1, 20 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Expense 3,489 5,336 - 8,825
Cash payment (46) (4,488) - (4,534)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 3,443 $ 848 $ - ¢ 4,291

In the second quarter of 2011, the Company intlisite reorganization of the Compasy¥rench body sealing operations in relationst
the joint venture agreement with FMEA. The estirdat#al cost of this initiative is $43,500 and igected to be completed in 2012. The
following table summarizes the activity for thistiative for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Employee Other
Separation Exit Asset
Costs Costs Impairments Total

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Expense 32,995 6,620 - 39,615
Reorganization iniative transf 1,877 - - 1,877
Cash payments and foreign exchange transili (11,644) (6,620) - (18,264)
Balance at December 31, 2C § 23,228 § - $ = $ 23,228

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company initiatied transfer of certain sealing business fromadrits German facilities to other sealing
operations in Eastern Europe. The estimated to&tlaf this initiative is $1,900 and is expectedéocompleted by year-end 2012. The total
severance expense incurred related to this inéamounted to $1,898 for the year ended Decenthe2® 1. As of December 31, 2011 there
is a liability of $1,789 associated with this iative recorded on the Company’s consolidated balaheet.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is comprised of tlewing:

Successo
December 31 December 31 Estimated
Useful
2010 2011 Lives
Land and improvements $ 89,633 $ 92,386 10 to 25 yeal
Buildings and improvemen 170,280 193,189 10 to 40 yeal
Machinery and equipmel 335,300 415,828 5to 10 year:
Construction in Progres 52,497 78,884
647,710 780,287
Accumulated depreciatic (58,206) (160,570)
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 589,504 $ 619,717

Depreciation expense totaled $98,801, $35,33368%7and $108,473 for the year ended December 8B, 20e five months ended
May 31, 2010, the seven months ended Decembel03D, &nd the year ended December 31, 2011, resehctiv

8. Goodwill and Intangibles
Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill é&yyartable operating segment for the years endedrbieer 31, 2010 and 2011 are
summarized as follows:

North America International Total
Balance at January 1, 2010 - Predecessor $ 87,728 $ - $ 87,728
Fresl-start accounting adjustments (Note 28,778 20,160 48,938
Balance at May 31, 201- Successo $ 116,506 $ 20,160 ¢ 136,666
Foreign exchange translation and ot (1,122) 1,456 334
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 115,384 $ 21,616 ¢ 137,000
Foreign exchange translati (86) (508) (594)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 115,298 $ 21,108 $ 136,406

Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impaémt, either annually or when events or circumstaigicate that impairment may
exist, by reporting units determined in accordanite ASC 350,“Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsQur 2010 and 2011 annual goodwill
impairment analysis resulted in no impairment.

Other Intangible Assets

In connection with the adoption of fresh-start aoging, the Company, with the assistance of inddpahappraisal, valued certain
intangible assets at their estimated fair valuafaday 31, 2010. The value assigned to developelrology intangibles is based on the roy
savings method, which applies a hypothetical rgyate to projected revenues attributable to tleatified technologies. Royalty rates were
determined based on analysis of market informalitve. customer-based intangible asset includes dnep@ny’s established relationship with
its customers and the ability of these customeggetterate future economic profits for the Company.
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The following table presents intangible assetsanwlimulated amortization balances of the Comparmyf Becember 31, 2010 and 2011,
respectively:

Weighted
Gross Accumulated Net Average Usefu

Carrying Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount Life (Years)
Customer relationships $ 140,124 $ (8,035 ¢ 132,089 9.6
Developed technolog 9,600 (938) 8,662 5.7
Other 8,979 (88) 8,891
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 158,703 § (9,061) § 149,642 9.2
Customer relationshif 138,576 (21,267) 117,309 8.6
Developed technolog 9,503 (2,521) 6,982 4.8
Other 7,603 (203) 7,400
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 155,682 § (23,991 ¢ 131,691 8.1

Amortization expense totaled $14,976, $319, $8#82%$15,601 for the year ended December 31, 2B89ivte months ended May 31,
2010, the seven months ended December 31, 201thayear ended December 31, 2011, respectivelim&sgd amortization expense will
total approximately $15,600 over each of the nxe years.

9. Debt
Outstanding debt consisted of the following at Delber 31, 2010 and 2011:

Successo
December 31 December 31
2010 2011
Senior note! $ 450,000 $ 450,000
Other borrowings 26,723 38,652
Total debi $ 476,723 $ 488,652
Less current portio (19,965) (33,093)
Total lon¢-term debt $ 456,758 $ 455,559

8 1/2% Senior Notes due 2018

On May 11, 2010, CSA Escrow Corporation (the “Egctssuer”), an indirect wholly-owned non-Debtor sigbary of CSA U.S., sold
$450,000 aggregate principal amount of the Senaie® On the Effective Date, the Escrow Issuermasgyed with and into CSA U.S. and
CSA U.S. assumed the obligations under the SeritedNand the Senior Notes indenture and the gusesibly the guarantors described below
became effective. Proceeds from the Senior Nadggther with proceeds of the Rights Offering anshaan hand, were used to pay claims
under the Predecessor’s prepetition credit agregrtienDIP Credit Agreement and the portion of Biedecessor’s prepetition senior notes
payable in cash, in full, together with relatedsfe@d expenses.

The Senior Notes are unconditionally guaranteddilyjoand severally, on a senior unsecured bagi€doperStandard Holdings Inc. al
all of CSA U.S.’s wholly-owned domestic restrictmabsidiaries (collectively, the “guarantors” andether with CSA U.S., the “obligors”). If
CSA U.S. or any of its domestic
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restricted subsidiaries acquires or creates anathelly-owned domestic restricted subsidiary thaamgntees certain debt of CSA U.S. or a
guarantor, such newly acquired or created subgidaalso required to guarantee the Senior Noths.Senior Notes bear an interest rate of 8
1/2% and mature on May 1, 2018. Interest is pays#fi-annually on May 1 and November 1.

The Senior Notes and each guarantee constitutersggidt of the CSA U.S. and each guarantor, resdget The Senior Notes and each
guarantee (1) rank equally in right of payment veithof the applicable obligor’s existing and fugwsenior debt, (2) rank senior in right of
payment to all of the applicable obligor’s existiangd future subordinated debt, (3) are effectigelgordinated in right of payment to all of the
applicable obligor’s existing and future securedeiptedness and secured obligations to the extéheofalue of the collateral securing such
indebtedness and obligations and (4) are stru¢ywsabordinated to all existing and future indelokesks and other liabilities of CSA U.S.’s non-
guarantor subsidiaries (other than indebtednesdiaitities owed to CSA U.S. or one of the guacagj.

CSA U.S. has the right to redeem the Senior Ndtésearedemption prices set forth below:

. on and after May 1, 2014, all or a portion of tlemi®r Notes may be redeemed at a redemption pfit84€250% of the principal
amount thereof if redeemed during the twelve-mqugttiod beginning on May 1, 2014, 102.125% of thiagypal amount thereof if
redeemed during the twelve-month period beginnim@/ay 1, 2015, and 100% of the principal amountabéif redeemed on or
after May 1, 2016, in each case plus any accrudduapaid interest to the redemption di

. prior to May 1, 2013, up to 35% of the Senior Ndgssied under the Senior Notes indenture may keeredd with the proceeds
from certain equity offerings at a redemption pa¢d.08.50% of the principal amount thereof, plag accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date; a

. prior to May 1, 2014, all or a portion of the Saridntes may be redeemed at a price equal to 10Q¥egdrincipal amount therec
plus a mak-whole premium

If a change of control occurs with respect to Codptandard Holdings Inc. or CSA U.S., unless CSA.lhas exercised its right to
redeem all of the outstanding Senior Notes, eatéhodder shall have the right to require that CS&.Uepurchase such noteholder’s Senior
Notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101#egérincipal amount thereof plus accrued and uhpaerest, if any, to the date of purche
subject to the right of the noteholders of recandtee relevant record date to receive interestaiiutihe relevant interest payment date.

The Senior Notes indenture limits, among otherghirthe ability of CSA U.S. and its restricted sdiasies (currently, all majority owne
subsidiaries) to pay dividends or make distribuigiaepurchase equity, prepay subordinated debté&eroertain investments, incur additional
debt or issue certain disqualified stock or prefeérstock, sell assets, incur liens, enter intostations with affiliates and allow to exist certain
restrictions on the ability of a restricted subaigito pay dividends or to make other payment®ang to or transfer assets to CSA U.S. in each
case, subject to certain exclusions and other mastpexceptions. The Senior Notes indenture afsitdithe ability of CSA U.S., Cooper-
Standard Holdings Inc. and a subsidiary guaraotongrge or consolidate with another entity or aklor substantially all of its assets. In
addition, certain of these covenants will not bpligable during any period of time when the Seotes have an investment grade rating. The
Senior Notes indenture contains customary eventefafult.

The Senior Notes were initially issued in a prival@cement which was exempt from registration urtiderSecurities Act. Pursuant to the
terms of the registration rights agreement betwikerissuer, the guarantors and the initial puraisasithe Senior Notes, the Company
consummated a registered exchange offer in Feb2@#r¥, pursuant to which they exchanged all $43Dp¥hcipal amount of the outstanding
privately placed Senior
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Notes, or‘old notes,” for $450,000 principal amount of newt8% Senior Notes due 2018, or “exchange notesg’&tthange notes were
issued under the same indenture as the old noteararidentical to the old notes, except that #w& notes have been registered under the
Securities Act. References herein to the “SenidieBlorefer to the old notes prior to the consumaratf the exchange offer and to the
exchange notes thereafter.

Senior ABL Facility

On the Effective Date, the Company, CSA U.S., C@h&tla (together with CSA U.S., the “Borrowers”) aedain subsidiaries of CSA
U.S. entered into the Senior ABL Facility with a@rtlenders, Bank of America, N.A., as agent (tAgént”), for such lenders, Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, as syndication agent, anttBf America Securities LLC, Deutsche Bank Séi@srinc., UBS Securities LLC and
Barclays Capital, as joint lead arrangers and hauk@rs. The Senior ABL Facility provides for an aggate revolving loan availability of up
$125,000, subject to borrowing base availabilitgliding a $45,000 letter of credit sub-facilitydaz $20,000 swing line sub-facility. The
Senior ABL Facility also provides for an uncommitt$25,000 incremental loan facility, for a poteht@al Senior ABL Facility of $150,000
(if requested by the Borrowers and any existingléea or new lenders agree to fund such increasegoNsent of any lender (other than those
participating in the increase) is required to dffaty such increase. As of December 31, 2011, rmuata were drawn under the Senior ABL
Facility, but there was approximately $29,832 dteles of credit outstanding.

Any borrowings under the Senior ABL Facility willature, and the commitments of the lenders undesémor ABL Facility will
terminate, on May 27, 2014. Proceeds from the $&ib Facility were used by the Borrowers to paytai secured and unsecured claims,
administrative expenses and administrative claisnsomtemplated by the Plan of Reorganization. Ra&ef the Senior ABL Facility may also
be used to issue commercial and standby lettergedit, to finance ongoing working capital needd for general corporate purposes. Loan
(and letter of credit) availability under the SemdBL Facility is subject to a borrowing base, whiat any time is limited to the lesser of:

(A) the maximum facility amount (subject to certajustments) and (B) (i) up to 85% of eligible @aats receivable; plus (ii) up to the lesser
of 70% of eligible inventory or 85% of the appraigeet orderly liquidation value of eligible invemgpminus reserves established by the Ag
The accounts receivable portion of the borrowingebia subject to certain formulaic limitations (uding concentration limits). The inventory
portion of the borrowing base is limited to eligibhventory, as determined by an independent aggdrdihe borrowing base is also subject to
certain reserves, which are established by the ¥gdrich may include changes to the advance ratdisated above). Loan availability under
the Senior ABL Facility is apportioned, as follov#:00,000 to CSA U.S. and $25,000 to CSA Canada.

The obligations of CSA U.S. under the Senior ABlcily and cash management arrangements and int@tes foreign currency or
commodity swaps entered into by the Company, ith €ase with the lenders and their affiliates (atileely “Additional ABL Secured
Obligations”), are guaranteed on a senior secuastby the Company and all of our U.S. subsidigia¢her than CS Automotive LLC), and
the obligations of CSA Canada under the Senior ABtility and Additional ABL Secured Obligations@SA Canada and its Canadian
subsidiaries are guaranteed on a senior securédtyathe Company, all of the Canadian subsidiasféS8SA Canada and all of the Company’s
U.S. subsidiaries. CSA U.S. guarantees the AdditisdBL Secured Obligations of its subsidiaries &®A Canada guarantees the Additional
ABL Secured Obligations of its Canadian subsidgriehe obligations under the Senior ABL Facilityarlated guarantees are secured by a
first priority lien on all of each Borrower’s andeh guarantos existing and future personal property consistihgccounts receivable, paym
intangibles, inventory, documents, instrumentsftehpaper and investment property, certain modeppsit accounts and securities accounts
and certain related assets and proceeds of thgdiog
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Borrowings under the Senior ABL Facility bear irtstrat a rate equal to, at the Borrowers’ option:
. in the case of borrowings by the U.S. Borrower, QB or the base rate plus, in each case, an apl@ioargin; ot

. in the case of borrowings by the Canadian BorroBérrate, Canadian prime rate or Canadian baseptase in each case, an
applicable margin

The applicable margin may vary between 3.25% an8%.with respect to the LIBOR or BA-based borroveiraend between 2.25% and
2.75% with respect to base rate, Canadian prinecarad Canadian base rate borrowings. The applicadtgin is subject, in each case, to
quarterly pricing adjustments based on usage dveimimediately preceding quarter.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding pipat under the Senior ABL Facility, the Borrowers aequired to pay a fee in respect of
committed but unutilized commitments equal to 0.5886annum when usage of the Senior ABL Facilisygdpportioned between the U.S. and
Canadian facilities) is greater than 50% and 0.p&¥eannum when usage of the Senior ABL Facilitygsal to or less than 50%. The
Borrowers are also required to pay a fee on outigtgrietters of credit under the Senior ABL Fagyilitt a rate equal to the applicable margin in
respect of LIBOR based borrowings plus a frontieg &t a rate of 0.125% per annum to the issuardf etters of credit, together with
customary issuance and other letter of credit féks.Senior ABL Facility also requires the paymeihtustomary agency and administrative
fees.

The Borrowers are able to voluntarily reduce thetilimed portion of the commitment amount and repagstanding loans, in each case,
in whole or in part, at any time without premiumpanalty (other than customary breakage and retamdployment costs with respect to
repayments of LIBOR-based borrowings).

The Senior ABL Facility includes affirmative andgagive covenants that impose substantial restristam the Company’s financial and
business operations, including our ability to inand secure debt, make investments, sell assegtsgiyidends or make acquisitions. The Sel
ABL Facility also includes a requirement to maintaimonthly fixed charge coverage ratio of no tees 1.1 to 1.0 when availability under-
Senior ABL Facility is less than specified levéltie Senior ABL Facility also contains various eweoft default that are customary for
comparable facilities.

The Company was in compliance with all covenantsfddecember 31, 2011.

Other borrowings at December 31, 2010 and 201&cefiorrowings under capital leases, local bardsliand accounts receivable
factoring, including $17,419 and $14,160 of shertst notes payable, respectively, classified in galygble within one year on the
consolidated balance sheet.

The maturities of debt at December 31, 2011 afel&svs:

2012 $ 33,09¢
2013 4,737
2014 311
2015 232
2016 13¢
Thereaftel 450,14(

$ 488,65
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Interest paid on third party debt was $57,851, 33, $20,508 and $44,038 for the year ended DeceBih009, the five months ended
May 31, 2010, the seven months ended Decembet030, &nd the year ended December 31, 2011, reselyctiv

10. Pensions

The Company maintains defined benefit pension ptanering substantially all employees located & thmited States. Benefits gener:
are based on compensation, length of service amdoagalaried employees and on length of sendcédurly employees. The Company’s
policy is to fund pension plans such that suffiti@ssets will be available to meet future benefijuirements. The Company also sponsors
defined benefit pension plans for employees in sofiits international locations.

The Company also sponsors defined contributionipandans for certain salaried and hourly U.S. eapeks of the Company.
Participation is voluntary. The Company matchegrioutions of participants, up to various limitssed on its profitability, in substantially all
plans. In 2010, the Company began offering a neineraent plan that includes Company non-electivetrdoutions. Nonelective and matchir
contributions under these plans totaled $602 ferytar ended December 31, 2009, $3,324 for therfimeths ended May 31, 2010, $6,581 for
the seven months ended December 31, 2010 and $l@5the year ended December 31, 2011.

The following tables disclose information relatedhie Company’s defined benefit pension plans.

Predecessor Successor
Five Months Ended Seven Months Endec Year Ended
May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Change in projected benefit obligatic
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of pe $ 270,751 $ 128,391 ¢ 280,157 $ 129,852 $ 286,074 $ 136,511
Service cos- employer 870 787 1,307 1,426 1,868 3,088
Interest cos 6,279 2,877 8,973 4,032 14,746 7,865
Actuarial loss 7,189 13,121 10,554 495 25,265 6,982
Amendment: - - - 16 - -
Benefits paic (4,932) (2,902) (14,917) (4,662) (17,426) (7,802)
Acquisition - - - - - 22,770
Foreign currency exchange rate efi - (12,422) - 8,729 - (6,339)
Curtailment/Settlement - - - (3,405) (387) (390)
Transfers - - - - (2,188) -
Other - - - 28 180 74
Projected benefit obligations at end of pel ¢ 280,157 $ 129,85. $ 286,074 $ 136,511 $ 308,132 $ 162,759
Change in plar assets
Fair value of plar’ assets at beginning of peri $ 186,566 $ 50,746 $ 187,607 $ 51,241 $ 195,978 $ 60,557
Actual return on plar asset: (152) 449 19,885 5,133 807 3,232
Employer contribution 6,125 3,958 3,403 6,037 34,568 8,107
Benefits paic (4,932) (3,116) (14,917) (4,662) (17,426) (7,802)
Foreign currency exchange rate efi - (796) - 2,808 - (1,015)
Settlement: - - - - - (390)
Fair value of plar’ assets at end of peri $ 187,607 $ 51,241 $ 195,978 $ 60,557 $ 213,927 $ 62,689
Funded status of the pla $ (92,550) $ (78,611) $ (90,096) $ (75,954) $ (94,205) $ (100,070
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Successol
Seven Months Endec Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Amounts recognized in the balance she
Accrued liabilities (current $ (550) $ (4,084) $ (814) $ (4,027)
Pension benefits (long terr (89,546) (75,049) (93,391) (98,733)
Other asset - 3,179 - 2,690
Net amount recognized at Decembel $ (90,096 ¢ (75,954 § (94,205, § (100,070

Included in cumulative other comprehensive lod3etember 31, 2011 are the following amounts tha¢ meot yet been recognized in net
periodic benefit cost: unrecognized prior serviosts of $14 ($11 net of taxes) and unrecognizagbaiet losses of $44,471 ($43,910 net of
tax). The amounts included in cumulative other carhpnsive loss and expected to be recognized iparitdic benefit cost during the fiscal
yea-ended December 31, 2012 are $1 and $864, resplctiv

The accumulated benefit obligation for all domeatid international defined benefit pension plans $284,324 and $131,918 at
December 31, 2010 and $308,050 and $155,832 anlmre31, 2011, respectively. As of December 3102€@1e fair value of plan assets for
two of the Company’s defined benefit plans excedatiecprojected benefit obligation of $29,942 bylF3. As of December 31, 2011, the fair
value of plan assets for one of the Company’s éefinenefit plans exceeded the projected benefgatidn of $10,753 by $2,690.

Weighted average assumptions used to determindibellégations at December 31:

Successor
2010 2011
Non- Non-
u.S. u.S. u.S. u.S.
Discount rate 5.37% 5.18% 4.67% 4.87%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.26% 0.00% 3.25%

The following table provides the components ofperiodic benefit cost (income) for the plans:

Predecesso Successol
Year Ended Five Months Ended Seven Months Endec Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Service cost $ 2,826 $ 2,292 ¢ 1,002 $ 893 ¢ 1,307 $ 1,426 ¢ 1,868 ¢ 3,088
Interest cos 15,146 7,146 6,278 2,871 8,973 4,032 14,746 7,865
Expected return on plan ass (13,118) (2,988) (6,050) (1,460) (8,619) (2,051) (16,207) (4,036)
Amortization of prior service cost, recognized actal
loss and transition obligatic 3,840 201 1,467 70 - 19 40
Curtailment gain/settleme (159) (261) - - (3,405) (387) 50
Other - - - - - 28 180 -
Net periodic benefit cost (incom $ 8,535 ¢ 6,390 $ 2,697 $ 2374 $ 1,661 $ 30 $ 219 ¢ 7,007
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determingenietdic benefit costs for the years ended Decer@bavere:

Predecesso Successol
Year Ended Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Discount rate 6.18% 6.02%  5.79% 5.36% 5.55% 5.10%4  5.18% 5.30%
Expected return on plan ass 8.00% 7.11%  8.00% 6.11% 8.00% 7.29%  7.80% 7.54%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.34%  3.25% 3.50% 3.25% 3.49%  3.25% 3.77%

Plan Asset:

To develop the expected return on assets assumgh®Company considered the historical returnstaaduture expectations for returns
for each asset class, as well as the target dkseition of the pension portfolio.

The weighted average asset allocations for the @oxip pension plans at December 31, 2010 and 20 Hk$et category are
approximately as follows:

2010 2011
U.S. Nor-U.S. U.S. Nor-U.S.

Equity securitie: 42% 47% 37% 41%
Debt securitie: 18% 53% 25% 59%
Real Estatt 4% 0% 4% 0%
Balanced fund@® 30% 0% 34% 0%
Cash and cash equivalel 6% 0% 0% 0%
100% 100% 100% 100%

(1) Invested primarily in equity, fixed income and casstruments

Equity security investments are structured to ahsn equal balance between growth and value stdblessCompany determines the
annual rate of return on pension assets by fimlyaing the composition of its asset portfolio. tdigcal rates of return are applied to the
portfolio. This computed rate of return is reviewsdthe Company’s investment advisors and actudridsistry comparables and other outside
guidance is also considered in the annual seleofitime expected rates of return on pension assets.

Investments in equity securities and debt secardie valued at fair value using a market appraachobservable inputs, such as quoted
market prices in active markets (Level 1 input lbasie the GAAP fair value hierarchy). Investment8aianced Funds are valued at fair value
using a market approach and inputs that are priyndirectly or indirectly observable (Level 2 inpoised on the GAAP fair value hierarchy).
Investments in Real Estate funds are primarily edlat fair value based on appraisals for each imes# fund or valued at Net Asset Value
depending on the investment. The appraisals argidered an unobservable input (Level 3 input basethe GAAP fair value hierarchy). For
further information on the GAAP fair value hierayclsee Note 22. “Fair Value of Financial Instrungeht
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The following table sets forth by level, within tfer value hierarchy established by FASB ASC Td§#20, the Company’s pension plan
assets at fair value as of December 31, 2010:

Level One Level Two Level Three Total

Investments

Equity securitie: $ 61,755 $ 49,054 $ - $ 110,809
Debt securitie: 16,338 51,778 - 68,116
Real Estatt - - 7,021 7,021
Balanced fund 17,884 36,227 4,254 58,365
Cash and cash equivalel 12,224 - - 12,224
Total $ 108,201 $ 137,05¢ $ 11,27F $ 256,53

The following table sets forth by level, within tfer value hierarchy established by FASB ASC Tg#6, the Company’s pension plan
assets at fair value as of December 31, 2011:

Level One Level Two Level Three Total

Investments

Equity securitiet $ 47,23C $ 49,768 $ 7,972 $ 104,970
Debt securitie! 22,769 67,244 - 90,013
Real Estatt - 8,122 - 8,122
Balanced fund 23,410 44,366 5,567 73,343
Cash and cash equivalel 168 - - 168
Total $ 93,577 $ 169,50C $ 13,53¢ $ 276,61¢

The following is a reconciliation for which Levéiree inputs were used in determining fair value:

Beginning balance of assets classified as Level & danuary 1, 201 $ 6,003
Net purchase 4,144
Total gains 1,128
Ending balance of assets classified as Level 3 Beoember 31, 201 $ 11,275
Net purchase 14,351
Total losse: (2,25¢)
Transfer to Level : (9,829
Ending balance of assets classified as Level 3 Beoember 31, 201 $ 13,53!

Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 were accountsmydain commercial real estate and includes mortdagas which are backed by the
associated properties. It has been determinedhteaompany has the ability to redeem these inverstisrat Net Asset Value as of the
measurement date, therefore the investment is@ateg as a Level 2 fair value measurement.
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The Company estimates its benefit payments fatdteestic and foreign pension plans during the teexyears to be as follows:

U.S Non-U.S Total
2012 $ 21,36 $ 6,88! $ 28,25
2013 19,62: 7,654 27,27
2014 16,34¢ 7,547 23,89:
2015 16,99: 8,571 25,56¢
2016 17,78¢ 10,33¢ 28,12(
20172021 93,98( 55,37¢ 149,35«

The Company estimates it will make cash contrimgiof approximately $19,000 to its pension plangdh?2.

11. Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Company provides certain retiree health caddifminsurance benefits covering substantiallfhE. salaried and certain hourly
employees and employees in Canada. Employees aeealjg eligible for benefits upon retirement aminpletion of a specified number of
years of creditable service. Independent actudeésrmine postretirement benefit costs for eacliegipe subsidiary of the Company. T
Company'’s policy is to fund the cost of these misEment benefits as these benefits become payable

The following tables disclose information relatedlie Company’s postretirement benefit plans.

Predecessor Successor
Five Months Ended Seven Months Endec Year Ended
May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Change in benefit obligatiol
Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $ 57,036 $ 12,328 $ 59,380 $ 15,186 $ 57,523 ¢ 17,515
Service cos 481 163 705 308 1,196 635
Interest cos 1,341 353 1,893 506 3,004 917
Actuarial loss (gain 1,177 2,574 (3,324) 1,109 (15,893) 2,898
Benefits paic (690) (238) (1,198) (390) (2,084) (1,449)
Curtailment gair - - - - (384) -
Plan chang - - 17 -
Other 35 - 50 - 85 -
Foreign currency exchange rate eft - 6 - 796 - (448)
Benefit obligation at end of ye ¢ 59,380 ¢ 15,186 $ 57,523 $ 17,515 $ 43,447 $ 20,068
Funded status of the pla $ (57,523) $ (17,515) $ (43,447) $ (20,068)
Net amount recognized at Decembel $ (57,523) $ (17,515) $ (43,447) ¢ (20,068)

During 2011 the Company changed its participatiot @pt-out assumptions for the U.S. plan resuliintdpe actuarial gain shown in the
table above.

Included in cumulative other comprehensive lod3etember 31, 2011 are the following amounts tha¢ meot yet been recognized in net
periodic benefit cost: unrecognized prior servigedits of $14 net of tax and unrecognized actugaahs of $15,296 ($16,276, net of tax). The

amounts included in cumulative other comprehenkise and expected to be recognized in net perloehefit cost during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012 is $(1,321).
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The following table provides the components ofperiodic benefit costs for the plans:

Predecesso Successol
Year Ended Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
Service cost $ 1,307 $ 446 ¢ 481 ¢ 157 $¢ 705 ¢ 308 ¢ 1,196 $¢ 635
Interest cos 3,493 796 1,341 360 1,893 506 3,004 917
Amortization of prior service
cost and recognized actual
loss (3,182) (108) (1,381) (14) . . 2 .
Curtailment gair (2,656) (748) - - - - (384) -
Other 160 - 35 - 50 - 85 -
Net periodic benefit co: $ (878) ¢ 386 § 476 $ 503 § 2,648 $ 814 $ 3,903 $§ 1,552

The curtailment gain for the year ended DecembgR@11 in the table above was recorded as a redfutdirestructuring expense.

The weighted average assumed discount rate uskstdomine domestic benefit obligations was 5.35%4M0% at December 31, 2010
and 2011, respectively. The weighted-average ass$uliseount rate used to determine domestic nebgierbenefit cost was 6.10%, 5.80%,
5.55% and 5.35% for the year ended December 38,208 five months ended May 31, 2010, the seventinscended December 31, 2010 and
the year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.

The weighted average assumed discount rate ustatéomine international benefit obligations wass%62and 4.25% at December 31,
2010 and 2011, respectively. The weighted-averagemed discount rate used to determine interndti@igeriodic benefit cost was 7.50%,
6.80%, 5.65% and 5.25% for the year ended DeceBihe2009, the five months ended May 31, 2010, ¢dvers months ended December 31,
2010 and the year ended December 31, 2011, resglgcti

At December 31, 2011, the weighted average assamaghl rate of increase in the cost of health barefits (health care cost trend ri
for 2012 was 7.87% for the U.S. and 8.0% for NoS-Wvith both grading down over time to 5.0% in 20A&ne-percentage point change in
the assumed health care cost trend rate would tredv¢he following effects:

Increase Decrease
Effect on service and interest cost components $ 384 $ (302)
Effect on projected benefit obligatio 3,914 (3,138)

The Company estimates its benefit payments fgrastretirement benefit plans during the next teary¢o be as follows:

Non-
u.S. u.S. Total
2012 $ 2,54° $ 55¢ $ 3,10¢
2013 2,612 591 3,20
2014 2,66¢ 591 3,25¢
2015 2,71¢ 58¢ 3,302
2016 2,772 617 3,38¢
2017- 2021 14,29 3,531 17,82:
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Other post retirement benefits recorded in our clidated balance sheets include $8,263 and $8,4988 Recember 31, 2010 and 2011,
respectively, for termination indemnity plans faotof our European locations.

12. Income Taxes
Components of the Company’s income (loss) befarerire taxes and adjustment for non-controlling &ges are as follows:

Predecessor Successor
Seven Months Ende
Year Ended Five Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Domestic $ (285,177 $ 161,014 $ 20,595 S 111,884
Foreign (126,697) 158,940 25,625 (14,621)
§  (411,874) § 319,954 $ 46,220 $ 97,263

The Company'’s provision (benefit) for income taressists of the following:

Predecessor Successor
Five Months Endec Seven Months Ende
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 201
Current
Federa $ (2,786) $ - $ - $ 5,030
State 417 2,003 (92) 695
Foreign (12,001) 6,888 12,946 15,565
Deferred
Federa (4,850) 614 - -
State - 55 - -
Foreign (36,466) 30,380 (7,760) (525)
$ (55,686 $ 39,940 $ 5,095 $ 20,765

The following schedule reconciles the United Statatutory federal rate to the income tax provision

Predecesso Successol
Five Months Endec Seven Months Ende:
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 200 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 201
Tax at U.S. statutory rate § (144,156) $ 111,984 $ 16,177 $ 34,042
State and local taxe (5,999) 7,899 1,606 860
Tax credits (11,433) (1,936) (4,179) (4,464)
Goodwill impairment 50,712 - - -
Reorganization items and fre-start accountin
adjustments, ne - (37,761) - -
US-Canada APA settleme 7,132 5,867 (651) 2,658
Foreign withholding taxe 861 789 1,823 2,290
Effect of foreign tax rate (1,141) (7,376) (3,788) (7,739)
Valuation allowanct 39,898 (38,915) (5,377) (20,839)
Other, ne 8,440 (611) (516) 3,957
Income tax provisiol $ (55,686 $ 39,940 $ 5,095 $ 20,765
Effective income tax rat 13.5% 12.5% 11.0% 21.3%
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Payments (refunds), net for income taxes for thee gaded December 31, 2009, the five months endgd3¥l, 2010, the seven months
December 31, 2010 and the year ended DecembeO31,2ere $(1,006), $6,584, $4,367 and $20,643extisely. These amounts do not
include any payments or refunds of income taxesdedlto the US-Canada Advanced Pricing Agreemethésent.

Under the Bankruptcy Reorganization Plan, the Camisgprepetition senior subordinated securities ather obligations were
extinguished. Absent an exception, a debtor rezegniancellation of debt income (“CODUipon discharge of its outstanding indebtednes
an amount of consideration that is less than ijigséed issue price. The Internal Revenue Code (")p@vides that a debtor in a bankruptcy
case may exclude CODI from income but must redectin of its tax attributes by the amount of a3 realized as a result of the
consummation of a plan of reorganization. The arhoti€ODI realized by a taxpayer is the adjustedésprice of any indebtedness discha
less the sum of (i) the amount of cash paid, l{ig) issue price of any new indebtedness issuediigriti€ fair market value of any other
consideration, including equity, issued. As a resfithe market value of the Company’s equity uparergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy
proceedings, the Company’s U.S. net operatingdasyforward will be reduced to zero, however atiporof the Company’s tax credit

carryforwards (collectively, the “Tax Attributesill be retained after reduction of the Tax Attriba for CODI realized on emergence from
Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings.

IRC Sections 382 and 383 provide an annual lingitetvith respect to the ability of a corporatiorutdize its Tax Attributes, as well as
certain built-in-losses, against future U.S. tagahtome in the event of a change in ownership.timpany’s emergence from Chapter 11
bankruptcy proceedings is considered a change imemship for purposes of IRC Section 382. The litiotaunder the IRC is based on the
value of the corporation as of the emergence dae result, the Company’s future U.S. taxable ineanay not be fully offset by the Tax
Attributes if such income exceeds the Company’siahlimitation, and they may incur a tax liabiliyith respect to such income. In addition,
subsequent changes in ownership for purposes dRBeould further diminish the Company’s Tax Attrtes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect théested tax effect of accumulated temporary diffeemnbetween the basis of assets and

liabilities for tax and financial reporting purpasa&s well as net operating losses, tax credioémer carryforwards. Significant components of
the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabiliti€3ewember 31 are as follows:

Successol
2010 2011

Deferred tax asset

Postretirement and other bene ¢ 80,630 $ 67,629

Capitalized expenditure 9,015 7,221

Net operating loss and tax cre

carryforwards 152,843 156,382

All other items 36,077 40,852

Total deferred tax asse 278,565 272,084
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme (48,321) (49,884)

Intangibles (48,717) (42,930)

All other items (2,193) (121)

Total deferred tax liabilitie (99,231) (92,935)
Valuation allowance (155,363 (152,373

Net deferred tax asse & 23,971 $ 26,776

95



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

Net deferred taxes in the consolidated balancet stiees follows:

Successol
2010 2011
Current assets $ 8,786 $ 14,161
Non-current assel 39,461 31,968
Current liabilities (5,939) (550)
Non-current liabilities (18,337) (18,803)
g 23,971 $ 26,776

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s foreign subsigls, primarily in France, Brazil, Germany, and,Wdve operating loss
carryforwards aggregating $162,000 with indefimitgiration periods while Spain has an operating t@sryforward of $20,700 with expirati
dates beginning in 2012. Other foreign subsidiarigShina, Mexico, Italy, Netherlands, Poland aratéa have operating losses aggregating
$78,000, with expiration dates beginning in 2018e Tompany'’s Polish subsidiaries have special ananpone credits totaling $22,000. The
Company’s Czech Republic subsidiary has an inc@xéncentive totaling $4,200. The U.S. foreign tadit carryforward is $29,400 with
expiration dates beginning in 2015. The Companyindomestic subsidiaries have anticipated taxefisnof state net operating losses and
credit carryforwards of $19,700 with expirationembeginning in 2012.

The Company continues to maintain a valuation alove related to their net deferred tax assetsittiited States and several foreign
jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2011, the Complaag valuation allowances of $152,400 relatedxddss and credit carryforwards a
other deferred tax assets in the United Statesaweral foreign jurisdictions. The Company’s cuttamd future provision for income taxes is
significantly impacted by the initial recognitiofiand changes in valuation allowances in certaimtes, particularly the United States. The
Company intends to maintain these allowances itrigilmore likely than not that the deferred tageds will be realized. The Company’s future
provision for income taxes will include no tax béneith respect to losses incurred and no tax espewith respect to income generated in
these countries until the respective valuatiorvadlace is eliminated.

In conjunction with the Company’s ongoing reviewitsfactual results and anticipated future earnittgss Company reassesses the
possibility of releasing the valuation allowancerently in place on its U.S. deferred tax assetsdsl upon this assessment, the Company has
concluded that a release of a significant portibthe U.S. valuation allowance could possibly ocduring the next 12 months. The required
accounting for the release will involve significaakx amounts and will impact earnings in the quartevhich it is deemed appropriate to
release the reserve.

Deferred income taxes have not been provided oroappately $341,000 of undistributed earnings okfgn subsidiaries as such
amounts are considered permanently reinvestesinivti practical to estimate any additional incomes$ and applicable withholding taxes that
would be payable on remittance of such undistride@rnings.

At December 31, 2011, the Company has $3,303 (83i8fuding interest and penalties) of total ungedeed tax benefits. Of this total,
$3,048 represents the amount of unrecognized tagfite that, if recognized, would affect the effeetincome tax rate. The total unrecognized
tax benefits differ from the amount which wouldeadf the effective tax rate due primarily to the &opof the valuation allowance.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofninrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inubands):

Predecesso Successo
Seven Months Ende
Year Ended Five Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Balance at beginning of period $ 4,728 $ 3,218 $ 2,996 $ 2,758
Tax positions related to the current per
Gross addition 255 107 13 951
Gross reduction - - (19) -
Tax positions related to prior yee
Gross addition: - - 1,676 1,629
Gross reduction (1,086) (79) (1,443) -
Settlement: (59) (250) - (1,630)
Lapses on statutes of limitatio (620) - (465) (405)
Balance at end of peric $ 3,218 $ 2,996 $ 2,758 $ 3,303

The Company, or one of its subsidiaries, files medax returns in the United States and otherdargirisdictions. The Internal Revenue
Service completed an examination of the Company& thcome tax returns for 2007 and 2008 duringl2QLLS. state and local jurisdictions
tax claims for any taxable year prior to 2009 aaeqgally limited to the amount of any claims thiégd in the Bankruptcy Court by February 3,
2010. The Company’s major foreign jurisdictions Brazil, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Mexical Boland. The Company is no longer
subject to income tax examinations in major forgigisdictions for years prior to 2004.

During the next twelve months, it is reasonablysilae that, as a result of audit settlements, trelusion of current examinations and
the expiration of the statute of limitations inteém jurisdictions, the Company may decrease theusatnof its gross unrecognized tax benefits
by approximately $552, of which an immaterial amipifirecognized, could impact the effective tatera

The Company classifies all tax related interest genhlties as income tax expense. The companyebasded in liabilities for the year
ended December 31, 2009, the five months ended31ag2010, the seven months December 31, 2010 angktir ended December 31, 2011
amounts of $436, $352, $775 and $70 respectivehtak related interest and penalties on its cadatdd balance sheet.

13. Lease Commitments

The Company rents certain manufacturing faciliied equipment under long-term leases expiring @ ws dates. Rental expense for
operating leases was $21,570, $9,525, $11,668 26@@&4 for the year ended December 31, 2009, tieenfionths ended May 31, 2010, the
seven months December 31, 2010 and the year enelgehiber 31, 2011, respectively.

Future minimum payments for all non-cancelable afieg leases are as follows:

2012 $ 20,68
2013 13,95
2014 10,94¢
2015 8,867
2016 7,752
Thereaftel 10,65:
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14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)ératttompanying balance sheets consists of:

Predecessor Successor
Seven Months Ende
Year Ended Five Months Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2009 May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Cumulative currency translation adjustm & 24,474 & (6,617) $ 40,828 ¢ 15,018
Benefit plan liability (33,159) (33,067) 5,451 (29,472)
Tax effect 939 973 (489) 1,814
Net (32,220) (32,094) 4,962 (27,658)
Fair value change of derivativ (22,742) (23,017) 127 241
Tax effect (549) (355) (36) (70)
Net (23,291) (23,372) 91 171

$ (31,037 § (62,083 $ 45,881 $ (12,469

15. Contingent Liabilities
Employment Contrac!

The Company has employment arrangements with oedegi executives that provide for continuity of mgament. These arrangements
include payments of multiples of annual salarytaierincentives, and continuation of benefits ugfmoccurrence of specified events in a
manner that is believed to be consistent with coaiga companies.

Unconditional Purchase Orders

Noncancellable purchase order commitments for abpitpenditures made in the ordinary course ofrtass were $38,948 and $27,75
December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

Legal and Other Claim

The Company is periodically involved in claimsigdtion, and various legal matters that arise endrdinary course of business. Each of
these matters is subject to various uncertaindied,some of these matters may be resolved unfayoséth respect to the Company. If
appropriate, the Company establishes a reservaastifor each matter and updates such estimatdégaal information becomes available.
Based on the information currently known to the @any, they do not believe that the ultimate resofubtf any of these matters will have a
material adverse effect on their financial conditicesults of operations, or cash flows.

Environmenta

The Company is subject to a broad range of fedstatle, and local environmental and occupatiorfatgand health laws and regulations
in the United States and other countries, includegulations governing: emissions to air, dischatgewater, noise and odor emissions; the
generation, handling, storage, transportationfrireat, and disposal of waste materials; the cleafigentaminated properties; and human
health and safety. The Company may incur substamt&s associated with hazardous substance camgior or exposure, including cleanup
costs, fines, and civil or criminal sanctions, dhirarty property or natural resource damage, patsojury claims, or costs to upgrade or rep
existing equipment as a result of violations ofiailities
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under environmental laws or the failure to maint@irromply with environmental permits requiredratit locations. In addition, many of the
Company'’s current and former facilities are locadadproperties with long histories of industrialammmercial operations and some of these
properties have been subject to certain environah@mtestigations and remediation activities. Tr@pany maintains environmental reserves
for certain of these sites. As of December 31, 2814 Company has $10,040 reserved in other li@slon the consolidated balance sheet on
an undiscounted basis, which they believe are ateqgBecause some environmental laws (such asdaimp@hensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act and amalegstate laws) can impose liability retroactivady regardless of fault on potentially
responsible parties for the entire cost of cleagiugurrently or formerly owned or operated fa@ti as well as sites at which such parties
disposed or arranged for disposal of hazardousewtdst Company could become liable for investigatinremediating contamination at their
current or former properties or other propertiesi(iding offsite waste disposal locations). The @any may not always be in complete
compliance with all applicable requirements of earimental laws or regulations, and the Company raegive notices of violation or become
subject to enforcement actions or incur materiatsor liabilities in connection with such requirmts. In addition, new environmental
requirements or changes to interpretations of iegsequirements, or in their enforcement, couldena material adverse effect on the
Companys businesses, results of operations, and finaocraition. For example, while the Company is nogéeemitters of greenhouse ga:
laws, regulations and certain regional initiativesler consideration by the U.S. Congress, the Eh8ironmental Protection Agency, and
various states, and in effect in certain foreigisglictions, could result in increased operatingtsdo control and monitor such emissions. The
Company has made and will continue to make expereditto comply with environmental requirements. M/tie Company’s costs to defend
and settle claims arising under environmental lethe past have not been material, such costshmagaterial in the future.

16. Other Income (Expense), net
The components of other income (expense) condists o

Predecessol Successo
Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 200¢ May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011

Foreign currency gains
(losses, $ 4455  $ (20,779 $ 3355 % 2,757
Unrealized losses related

forward contract: - - - (5,280
Gain on debt repurcha 9,096 - - -
Interest rate sway (2,414 - - -
Loss on sale of receivabl (1,218 (377, (715 (1,656
Gain on partial sale of joit

venture - - - 11,423
Miscellaneous income

(expense - - 1,574 (70)
Other income (expens $ 991 % (21,15 $ 421 % 7,17

17. Related Party Transactions

Sales to NISCO, a 40% owned joint venture, tot$2t,705, $12,273, $16,032 and $28,933 for the geded December 31, 2009, the
five months ended May 31, 2010, the seven montidec&December 31, 2010 and the year ended Decerhp20B1, respectively. In March
2011, the Company received from NISCO a dividen§iqy¥50, all of which was related to earnings. larbh 2011, the Company sold a 10%
ownership
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interest in NISCO for $16,000. As a result of thiansaction, the Company’s ownership percentag$CO decreased from 50% to 40%, and
a gain of $11,423 was recognized in other incontbénconsolidated financial statements for the paaled December 31, 2011.

Purchases of materials from Guyoung TechnologyL@b, a Korean Corporation of which the Company swpproximately 20% of the
common stock, totaled $4,204, $4,052, $2,894 ap@8¥2for the year ended December 31, 2009, thenfiesths ended May 31, 2010, the
seven months ended December 31, 2010 and the ydad ®ecember 31, 2011, respectively.

18. Net Income Per Share Attributable to Cooper-Stadard Holdings Inc.

Basic net income per share attributable to Coopendard Holdings Inc. was computed using the tvegsimethod by dividing net
income attributable to Cooper-Standard Holdings, lafter deducting dividends on the Company’s 7&ered stock and undistributed
earnings allocated to participating securitiesth®/average number of common shares outstandimggdine period. The Company’s shares of
7% preferred stock outstanding are consideredaigating securities.

A summary of information used to compute basicimesme per share attributable to Cooper-Standatdifigs Inc. is shown below:

Successo
Seven Months Ended
Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Net income attributable to Cool-Standard Holdings In $ 40,576 102,844
Less: Preferred stock dividends (paid or unp (4,734 (7,278
Less: Premium paid for redemption of preferredls - (a,710
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to partithiygasecurities (7,119 (18,596
Net income available to Coo-Standard Holdings Inc. commu
stockholder $ 28,723 75,260
Average shares of common stock outstani 17,489,6¢ 17,610,61¢
Basic net income per share attributable to Cc-Standard Holding
Inc. $ 1.64 4.27

Diluted net income per share attributable to Cogptandard Holdings Inc. was computed using thestngastock method dividing net
income attributable to Cooper-Standard Holdings lrycthe average number of shares of common stotstanding, including the dilutive
effect of common stock equivalents, using the eyeshare price during the period. Diluted net inegrar share attributable to Cooper-
Standard Holdings Inc. computed using the two-alasthod was anti-dilutive.
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A summary of information used to compute dilutetlineome per share attributable to Cooper-StanHatdings Inc. is shown below:

Successo
Seven Months Ended
Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011

Net income available to Coo-Standard Holdings Inc. commu

stockholder $ 28,723 75,26(
Average common shares outstanc 17,489,693 17,610,61
Dilutive effect of:

Common restricted stoc 321,967 373,80«

Preferred restricted stou 77,758 83,501

Warrants 633,933 918,53

Options 56,574 184,03:
Average dilutive shares of common stock outstan 18,579,92! 19,170,49
Diluted net income per share attributable to Co-Standarc

Holdings Inc. $ 1.55 3.92

The effect of including the convertible 7% preferstock was excluded from the computation of weidhdverage diluted shares
outstanding for the seven months ended Decemb&(dD, and the year ended December 31, 2011, asiaolwould have resulted in
antidilution. A summary of these preferred shaeesif converted), is shown below:

Successo
Seven Months Ended
Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Preferred shares, as if converted 4,335,18: 4,351,47¢
Preferred dividends, undistributed earnings anchprm
allocated to participating securities that woulddloeled back
in the diluted calculatior $ 11,853 $ 27,584

19. Equity and Redeemable Preferred Stock
Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 190,0@0sb@res of common stock, par value $0.001 peeskharof December 31, 2011, an
aggregate of 18,323,443 shares of its common steck issued and outstanding, net of 93,514 shaldsrtreasury as a result of net-share
settlement for stock compensation awards.

Holders of shares of common stock are entitled®wte for each share on each matter on whicreh®lof common stock are entitlec
vote. Holders of 7% preferred stock are entitleddte (on an “as-converted” basis), together witdars of shares of common stock as one
class, on all matters upon which holders of comstook have a right to vote.

Holders of common stock are entitled to receivabit dividends and other distributions when, asi&déclared by the Compars/boarc
of directors out of assets or funds legally avdddherefore. The 7% preferred stock restrictsGbenpany’s ability to pay dividends on
common stock (other than dividends paid in commonlk unless full cumulative preferred dividendstbe 7% preferred stock have been |
(in cash or “in-kind” with additional shares of 8teferred stock (“additional preferred shares”)),an the case of a cash dividend, the
Company shall have offered to purchase and hasased all additional preferred shares previouslydd by it as an in-kind dividend and
tendered to the Company by the holders thereof.Serdor Notes and the Senior ABL Facility also eaghtain covenants that restrict the
Company'’s ability to pay dividends or make disttibos on the common stock, subject to certain etkoegp.
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In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or @ing up of the Company, holders of common stockeatéled to share ratably in the
Company assets, if any, remaining after the paymkall the Company’s debts and liabilities, subjecany liquidation preference of any
outstanding series of preferred stock, includireyZbo preferred stock.

Warrants

An aggregate of 2,419,753 warrants have been ismu@@,419,753 shares of common stock are issugble exercise of the warrants.
The warrants are exercisable into shares of conmstank at an exercise price of $27.33 per sharen@ cashless (net share settlement) basis
and are subject to certain customary anti-dilupostections. The warrants may be exercised atiamgy prior to the close of business on
November 27, 2017. The warrants are not redeem@lderant holders do not have any rights or privékeg@f holders of common stock ur
they exercise their warrants and receive sharesrofmon stock.

Redeemable Preferred Sto

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000s0@0es of preferred stock, par value $0.001 peresiThe Company has designated
2,000,000 shares of its authorized preferred stsck’% cumulative participating convertible preéetistock.” As of December 31, 2011,
1,003,108 shares were issued and outstandingf Ag326 shares held in treasury as a result ofinate settlement for stock compensation
awards and repurchases. The 7% preferred stock samlor to the common stock and all other clagsssries of the Comparss/tapital stock
except for any class or series that ranks on aypaiih the 7% preferred stock (“junior securitipsth the event of the Company’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, holders of 7% preferstdck are entitled to priority in payments in ancaimt equal to the greater of (x) the stated
value of the 7% preferred stock (currently one meddiollars, subject to adjustments) (the “stat@de’) plus accrued and unpaid cumulative
preferred dividends and (y) the amount such shiar&wpreferred stock would be entitled to recefvauich share had been converted into
shares of common stock (i.e. on an “as-convertedid).

Holders of 7% preferred stock are entitled to reeeiumulative preferred cash dividends at the ga#®% per annum on the stated value
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Dividendspayable quarterly in arrears on March 31, Jun&aptember 30, and December 31 of «
year. The Company may, at its option, pay prefedigilends“in-kind” with additional preferred shares; provided thatalirued dividends f
all past dividend periods have been paid in fulhétiher in cash or in-kind). Holders of shares of pfi¥ferred stock are also entitled to
participate on an “as-converted” basis in divideadd distributions paid or made on the common stottier than those paid or made in shares
of common stock (each, a “participating dividendhe 7% preferred stock restricts dividends anttidigions on, and the acquisition or
redemption of, junior securities (including comnsiack), subject to certain exceptions.

Shares of 7% preferred stock are convertible friome to time into shares of common stock at theooptif the holders. The conversion
price of the 7% preferred stock is $23.30574 pereiof common stock and is subject to customarti-thtution” adjustments.

The Company may cause the conversion of some of #ie 7% preferred stock at any time after May Z¥13 if, among other things,
(i) the closing sale price of the common stock exiesl 155% of the conversion price for a specifiediopl and (i) the common stock has been
listed on the New York Stock Exchange or NASDAQeTompany may also cause the conversion of alestar7% preferred stock
immediately prior to the consummation of an undétem initial public offering of the common stodk(i) the holders of two-thirds of the then
outstanding shares of 7% preferred stock appraveahversion and (ii) the common stock has beggdlisn the NYSE or NASDAQ.

In the event of certain transactions in which &lihe@ common stock is converted into the rightdoeaive cash (a “cash transaction”), the
Company may, at its option, cause all of the shaf&86 preferred stock to be
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converted into cash in an amount determined a®gétin the certificate of designations relatingthe 7% preferred stock. Upon the
occurrence of certain events that constitute agdaf control or involve a cash transaction, thielés of 7% preferred stock may require the
Company to redeem all or a portion of their 7% @nefd stock at a cash price per share determinsétdsrth in the certificate of designations.

From and after May 27, 2010, the Company maysaiption, redeem shares of 7% preferred stockyatime, in whole or in part, in ca
in an amount determined as set forth in the ceatié of designations. The Company’s right to ogilyrredeem the 7% preferred stock is
subject to certain conditions, including that allidends must have been paid for all past divideadods.

Each share of 7% preferred stock carries one wotedch share of common stock into which such smanebe converted and is entitled
to vote on any matter upon which shares of the comstock are entitled to vote, voting together wiith common stock and not as a separate
class. In addition, the holders of two-thirds of thutstanding 7% preferred stock are required pocye certain actions that could adversely
affect the 7% preferred stock.

The following table summarizes the Company’s 7%gsred stock activity for the seven months endeddbgber 31, 2010 and for the
year ended December 31, 20

Successol
Preferred Preferred
Shares Stock

Preferred stock at June 1, 2C 1,000,00C $ 128,00(
Stock-based compensatic 41,664 920
Preferred stock dividenc 10,780 1,419
Preferred stock at December 31, 2! 1,052,444 $ 130,339
Stoclk-based compensatic - 1,549
Repurchased preferred stock sh (46,658 (5,972
Forfeited share (2,678 -
Preferred stock at December 31, 2! 1,003,10¢ 125,916

On July 19, 2010, the Company paid a dividend idérs of its outstanding 7% preferred stock inftren of 10,780 additional shares of
7% preferred stock.

20. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stock-based compensationsexgefair value in accordance with the provisioh€ AAP and recognizes such
expense over the vesting period of the stock-basggloyee awards.

Predecesso

Prior to the Effective Date, the Company establistiee 2004 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Stockntice Plan (“Stock Incentive
Plan”), which permitted the granting of nonqualifiand incentive stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock and other stduksec
awards to employees and directors. In additioleénember 2006 the Company established the Manade&taek Purchase Plan, which
provided participants the opportunity to “purcha€smpany stock units. On the Effective Date, ouiditag awards under the Stock Incentive
Plan and Management Stock Purchase Plan were tathoebhccordance with the terms of the Plan ofrBaization. Total compensation
expense recognized under these plans amounted361$and $244 for the year ended December 31, 208%he five months ended May 31,
2010, respectively.
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Successo

On the Effective Date, the Company adopted the ZDddper-Standard Holdings Inc. Management IncerRiaa (the “Management
Incentive Plan”) that was filed with the Bankrupt€gurt on May 5, 2010 as part of the supplemettiédPlan of Reorganization. The total
number of shares authorized to be issued undeviémagement Incentive Plan as the Initial Grant Algaare as follows: (1) 4% of the
common stock (or 757,896 shares of common stocis, gubject to realized dilution on the warrantsadditional 104,075 shares of common
stock) to be granted as restricted stock; (2) 4¥hef7% preferred stock (initially convertible irt@8,771 shares of common stock) to be
granted as restricted 7% preferred stock; and¥8p8the equity (or 702,509 shares of common stpkls, subject to realized dilution on the
warrants, an additional 78,057 shares of commark¥to be granted as stock options. On the day feeEffective Date, the Company issued
to certain of its directors and Oak Hill AdvisordL or its affiliates, 26,448 shares of commonlsexrestricted stock and 58,386 options to
purchase shares of common stock. The Company edsoved 780,566 shares of common stock for fusigaince to the Company’s
management.

In 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors approaddption of the Omnibus Plan. The Omnibus Plarags the Management
Incentive Plan and provides for the grant of stopkions, stock appreciation rights, shares of comstock, restricted stock, restricted stock
units, restricted preferred stock, incentive awanals certain other types of awards to key emplogeesdirectors of the Company and its
affiliates.

In accordance with the Management Incentive Plahthe Omnibus Plan stock based compensation awmatisettle in shares of
Company stock, may be delivered on a gross settiebasis or a net settlement basis, as determiynduketrecipient.

The compensation expense related to stock optiethsestricted stock granted to key employees aretidirs of the Company in
connection with the Company’s emergence from batksy which is quantified below, does not repregayments actually made to these
employees. Rather, the amounts represent the reinecempensation expense recognized by the Comparonnection with these awards for
financial reporting purposes. The actual valuehebe awards to the recipients will depend on ttirig price of the Comparg/stock when th
awards vest.

Stock OptionsOn the Effective Date, 780,566 options to purcl@samon stock were issued, and on the day afteEfieetive Date,
58,386 options were granted under the Managemeantive Plan. An additional 147,000 options to pase common stock were granted
under the 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan to key eng®#eyand directors. Stock option awards are graitéee fair market value of the
Company'’s stock price at the date of the granttene a 10 year term. The stock option grants west three or four years from the date of
grant.

A summary of stock option transactions and relétéarmation for the year ended December 31, 204drésented below:

Weighted Weighted
Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Options Price Life (Years) Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2011 838,952 $ 2552
Granted 147,000 $ 46.00
Exercisec (66,667 $ 2552 $ 599
Forfeited (99,357 $ 26.16
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 819,928 $ 2911 8.6 $ 4,41%
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 138,153 $ 2552 8.4 $ 1,241
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total excess of the $34.50 closingg mfi Cooper Standard Holdings Inc.
common shares on the last trading day of 2011 itveexcess price of the stock option, multipliedty related number of options exercised,
outstanding and exercisable. The aggregate intriredue is not recognized for financial accounfingposes and the value changes based on
the daily changes in fair market value of the Conypcommon stock.

Total compensation expense recognized for stodkrmpaimounted to $1,493 and $3,198 for the severthm@nded December 31, 2010
and the year ended December 31, 2011, respectielgf December 31, 2011, unrecognized compensatipense for stock options amour
to $7,083. Such cost is expected to be recognizedaweighted average period of approximatelyy2ars.

The Company uses expected volatility of similaitégg to develop the expected volatility. The expdooption life was calculated using
the simplified method. The risk free rate is bagedhe U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a &zmal to the expected option life on the
date the stock options were granted. Fair valub@thares that are accounted for under ASC Td@aonvas estimated at the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model aralftiilowing weighted average assumptions were fethe 2010 and 2011 grants:

2010 2011
Expected volatility 40.00% 45.83%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected option life- years 6.2¢ 6.0C
Risk-free rate 3.4% 1.9%-2.9%
Weighted average fair value of
options grante: $ 11.47 $ 20.5:

Restricted Common Shares and Uns. the Effective Date, 861,971 restricted sharesoaimon stock were granted, and on the day
the Effective Date, 26,448 restricted shares weaiatgd under the Management Incentive Plan. Antiaddi 52,140 restricted common stock
and units were granted under the 2011 Omnibus tiveeRlan to key employees and directors. Thevalue of the restricted shares of comt
stock and units is determined based on the clasates price of the common stock on the date oftgidre restricted shares of common stock
and units vest over three or four years.

A summary of restricted common shares and unitséetions and related information for the year dridecember 31, 2011 is presented
below:

Restricted Weighted

Average

Common Grant Date

Shares and

Units Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2011 888,419 $ 25.52
Granted 52,140 $ 44.20
Vested (261,801 $ 25.52
Forfeited (58,920 $ 25.74
Non-vested at December 31, 20 619,838 $ 27.07

Total compensation expense recognized for restrigi@res of common stock and units amounted t@83&8d $7,062 for the seven
months ended December 31, 2010 and the year enelmshiber 31, 2011, respectively. As of DecembeRB11, unrecognized compensation
expense for restricted shares of common stock aitsl amounted to $12,751. Such cost is expectée t@cognized over a weighted-average
period of approximately 2.0 years.
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Restricted Preferred Stockn the Effective Date, 41,664 restricted prefestetk shares were granted. On July 19, 2010, tmep@ay
paid a stock dividend of 435 restricted preferdeares on the 41,664 restricted preferred stockeshautstanding. Restricted preferred stock
vest over three or four years from the date of griime fair value of the restricted preferred sticlletermined based on the fair market value
of the 7% preferred stock on the date of grant.

A summary of restricted preferred stock transastiand related information for the year ended Deear8l, 2011 is presented below:

Weighted
Restricted Average
Grant Date
Preferred
Stock Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 20 42,099 $ 127.77
Granted - $ -
Vested (12,338 $ 127.77
Forfeited (2,678 $ 127.77
Non-vested at December 31, 20 27,08: $ 127.77

As of December 31, 2010 there were 42,099 prefesteek shares outstanding, all of which were retgtd and convertible into 180,637
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 201rk thvere 27,083 restricted preferred stock sharestanding. These restricted preferred
stock shares are convertible into 116,207 sharesmmfnon stock. Total compensation expense recogifiimeestricted preferred stock totaled
$920 and $1,573 for the seven months ended Dece®ib@010 and the year ended December 31, 201deatdgely. As of December 31,
2011, unrecognized compensation expense for restrireferred stock amounted to $2,584. Such sastpected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of approximately 1.9 years.

21. Business Segments

ASC Topic 280, “‘Segment Reporting establishes the standards for reporting inforomaabout operating segments in financial
statements. In applying the criteria set forth BGA\280, the Company has determined that it operates segments, North America and
International. The Company’s principal product ineithin each of these segments are body and shaissiucts and fluid handling products.

The accounting policies of the Company’s businegsrgents are consistent with those described in Rlotdhe Company evaluates
segment performance based on segment profit beferd he results of each segment include certédcations for general, administrative,
interest, and other shared costs. Intersegmert aedeconducted at market prices. Segment asgetslaulated based on a moving average
over several quarters and exclude corporate aggeidwill, intangible assets, deferred taxes, arthin other assets.
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The following table details information on the Ccang’s business segments:

Sales to external custome
North America
International

Consolidatec

Intersegment sale
North America
International
Eliminations and othe

Consolidatec

Segment profit (loss
North America
International
Income (loss) before income tax

Restructuring cost included in segment profit
(loss)

North America

International

Consolidatec

Net interest expense included in segment p
North America
International

Consolidatec

Depreciation and amortization expel
North America
International

Consolidatec

Capital expenditure
North America
International
Eliminations and othe

Consolidatec

Segment asse
North America
International
Eliminations and othe

Consolidatec

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31, 200¢
$ 910,306
1,034,952
$ 104525
$ 4,377
5,467
(9,844
.
$ (246,015
(165,859
$ (411,874
$ 8,624
23,787
$ 32,411
$ 31,013
33,320
$ 64333
$ 63,377
50,400
$ 113777
$ 14,194
30,076
1,843
$ 46,113

Five Months Ended

May 31, 2010

$ 508,738
500,390

$ 100912
$ 1,757
3,206

(4,963

s -
$ 233,526
86,428

$ 319,954
$ 851
5,042

$ 5,893
$ 22,181
22,324

$ 44505
$ 18,843
16,809

$ 35,652
$ 9,120
11,542

2,273

$ 22,935
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Successor

Seven Months Ended

December 31, 2010

739,418
665,600

1,405,01¢

2,640
4,488
(7,128

58,004
(11,784

46,220

485
3

488

12,593
12,424

25,017

35,559
31,110

66,669

21,197
29,366
3,878

54,441

763,401
878,161
212,214

1,853,77

Year Ended
December 31, 2011
$ 1,417,281
1,436,22¢
$ 7,939
8,457
(16,396
.
$ 158,178
(60,915
$ 01263
$ 6,250
45,956
$ 52206
$ 17,142
23,417
$ 40,559
$ 60,898
63,176
$ 124,074
$ 41,822
57,227
9,290
$ 108339
$ 752,082
1,020,41C
231,296
$ 200378
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Geographic information for revenues, based on eguwitorigin, and long-lived assets is as follows:

Predecessor Successor
Five Months Ended Seven Months Ended
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 200¢ May 31, 2010 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Revenue:
United State: $ 516,411 $ 277,109 $ 382,089 $ 752,627
Canads 175,670 102,863 141,988 281,560
Mexico 218,225 128,766 215,342 383,094
Germany 277,859 118,314 149,404 293,293
France 106,416 54,617 73,272 303,925
Other 650,678 327,459 442,924 839,010
Consolidate( $ 1,945,25¢ $ 1,009,12¢ $ 1,405,01¢ $ 2,853,50¢
Tangible loni-lived asset:

United State: $ 122,86t $ 133,77¢
Canadz 50,48’ 45,687
Mexico 51,14: 50,34«
Germany 121,32¢ 111,66"
France 43,72F 74,227
Other 199,95 204,01¢
Consolidatec $ 589,50« $ 619,71

Sales to customers of the Company which contribteéegercent or more of its total consolidatedsaled the related percentage of
consolidated Company sales for 2009, 2010 and 264 &s follows:

2009 2010 2011
Percentage ¢ Percentage ¢ Percentage ¢
Combined Combined Combined
Customer Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales
Ford 31% 28% 26%
General Motor: 14% 16% 14%

22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of the Senior Notes approximated $&F dnd $462,375 at December 31, 2010 and 201Jctheply, based on quoted
market prices, compared to the recorded value 50$00.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie

The Company uses derivative financial instrumentduding forwards and swap contracts, to managexposures to fluctuations in
foreign exchange and interest rates. For a fairevhkedge, both the effective and ineffective,ghfficant, portions are recorded in earnings and
reflected in the consolidated statement of opemati&or a cash flow hedge, the effective portiothefchange in the fair value of the derivative
is recorded in AOCI in the consolidated balanceeshEhe ineffective portion, if significant, is i@ced in other income or expense. When the
underlying hedged transaction is realized or thigkd transaction is no longer probable, the galnss included in AOCI is recorded in

earnings and reflected in the consolidated stateofavperations on the same line as the gain ardosthe hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

As part of the FMEA joint venture, SPBT had undesigd derivative forward contracts to hedge cuyeisk of the Euro against the
Polish Zloty which are included in the Company’'sisolidated financial statements. The forward catgrare used to mitigate the potential
volatility of cash flows arising from changes im@ncy
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exchange rates that impact the Company'’s foreigrenay transactions. These foreign currency dexigatontracts consist of hedge
transactions up to April 2014. At December 31, 20hé& fair value before taxes of the Company’s sigteted derivative forward contracts
was $4,269 and is recorded in accrued liabilities @ther long-term liabilities in the Compasyonsolidated balance sheet. The unrealizec
or loss on the forward contracts is reported asnaponent of other expense. The unrealized losthéoyear ended December 31, 2011 was
$5,280.

The Company formally documents its hedge relatipsshincluding the identification of the hedgingiruments and the hedged items, as
well as its risk management objectives and stragefgir undertaking the cash flow hedges. The Compbao formally assesses whether a cash

flow hedge is highly effective in offsetting chaisga the cash flows of the hedged item. Derivataesrecorded at fair value in other current
assets, accrued liabilities and other long-teribiliizes.

Cash Flow Hedges

Forward foreign exchange contractsThe Company enters into forward contracts to bexgrency risk. The forward contracts are used
to mitigate the potential volatility to earningsdacash flow arising from changes in currency exgeamtes that impact the Company’s foreign

currency transactions. The gain or loss on the dotveontracts is reported as a component of OCreeldssified into earnings in the same
period or periods during which the hedged transadifects earnings. The amount reclassified frddCAinto cost of products sold was
$1,516 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Aebwer 31, 2011 all forward foreign exchange cotsraere settled.

Interest rate swaps Fhe Company has an interest rate swap contracatamge cash flow fluctuations of variable rate dklet to change
in market interest rates. This contract which fikesinterest payment of a certain variable rat# destrument is accounted for as a cash flow
hedge. As of December 31, 2011, the USD notionalarnof this contract was $4,290. At December ®1,12 the fair value before taxes of
Company’s interest rate swap contract was $156saretorded in accrued liabilities and other loag liabilities in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet with the offset AOQI ofileferred taxes. The amounts reclassified fAB@CI into interest expense for this swap
were $102, $132, and $158 for the five months emdayl 31, 2010, the seven months ended Decemb&03D, and the year ended
December 31, 2011, respectively. The amount teblassified in the next twelve months is expectelet approximately $84. The maturity
date of this interest rate swap contract is Sepézerad13.

Fair Value Measuremen

ASC 820 clarifies that fair value is an exit pricepresenting the amount that would be receivesgttican asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants. As such, fair value is a market-basedsurement that should be determined
based upon assumptions that market participantédwmse in pricing an asset or liability. As a bdsisconsidering such assumptions, ASC
establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, Wigidoritizes the inputs used in measuring faiuess follows:

Level 1:  Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actamets;
Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbts, are observable either directly or indirecéigd

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which require the reporting entitgléwelop its own
assumptions
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Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency andhmodity derivative instruments are determinddgiexchange traded prices and
rates. The Company also considers the risk of refepmance in the estimation of fair value andudes an adjustment for non-performance
risk in the measure of fair value of derivativetingents. In certain instances where market datatisvailable, the Company uses
management judgment to develop assumptions thatsato determine fair value.

Fair value measurements and the fair value hieydestel for the Company’s liabilities measured @otbsed at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, are shelewb

Successo- December 31, 201

Asset
Contract (Liability) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Interest rate swa $ (300 $ = $ = $ 300
Total $ (300) $ - $ - $ 300

Successo- December 31, 201

Asset
Contract (Liability) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Interest rate swa $ (156) $ = $ = $ (156)
Forward foreign exchange contra (4,269) - - (4,269)
Total $ (4,425 $ - $ - $ (4,425)

A reconciliation of changes in assets and liak#itielated to derivative instruments measuredratdéue using the market and income
approach adjusted for our and our counterpartyditrisks for the year ended December 31, 201dhdsvn below:

Net Derivative

Liabilities
Beginning Balance as of January 1, 2 $ 300
Total losses (realized or unrealized)
included in earnings (or changes in net liabiliti 6,657
Included in other comprehensive inco (144)
Settlement: (2,388)
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2 $ 4,42°F

The amount of total (gains) or losses for the pkineluded in
earnings (or changes in net liabilities) attriblgato the change in
unrealized (gains) or losses relating to assdtstd at the
reporting date $ -
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(Gains) and losses (realized and unrealized) irdlud earnings (or changes in net liabilities)tfor period (above) are reported in cost of

products sold and other income (expense):

Total losses included in earnings (or changes ftialgilities) for

the period (above

Change in unrealized losses relating to assetfistd at the

reporting date

Items measured at fair value on a -recurring basis

Successo

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

6,657

In addition to items that are measured at fair @an a recurring basis, the Company measuresragaets and liabilities at fair value on
a non-recurring basis, which are not included etble above. As these non-recurring fair valuasaeements are generally determined using
unobservable inputs, these fair value measurenaeatslassified within Level 3 of the fair value tairchy. For further information on assets
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-reaigasis see Note 2. “Significant Accounting Pelgi Note 4. “Fresh-Start Accounting,” Note
5. “Acquisitions,” Note 6. “Restructuring,” Note TProperty, Plant and Equipment,” and Note 8. “Gedldand Intangibles.”

23. Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

2010

Sales

Gross profit

Consolidated net incon

Net income attributable to Cooj-Standard Holdings In«

Net income available to Coof-Standard Holdings Inc. common stockholc
Basic net income per share attributable to Cc-Standard Holdings In«
Diluted net income per share attributable to Co-Standard Holdings In¢

2011

Sales

Gross profil

Consolidated net incon

Net income attributable to Cool-Standard Holdings In«

Net income available to Coor-Standard Holdings Inc. common stockholc
Basic net income per share attributable to Cc-Standard Holdings In¢
Diluted net income per share attributable to Co-Standard Holdings In¢

Predecessor Successor
First Two Months Ended One Month Ended Third Fourth
Quarter May 31, 2010 June 30, 2010 Quarter Quarter
$ 596,32/ 412,80 | $ 215,64 $ 58565( $ 603,727
104,504 72,423 33,767 102,091 96,811
3,668 276,346 4,940 21,009 15,176
3,409 276,283 4,930 20,833 14,813
3,218 15,116 10,395
$ 018 $ 086 $ 0.59
$ 018 $ 083 $ 0.55
Successol
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 688,77 760,46( $ 708,54: $ 695,73
120,76t 123,70t 108,55¢ 97,55¢
45,28 1,65: 8,09¢ 21,45¢
44,93t 19,02: 15,65¢ 23,22¢
34,53 13,74¢ 11,08( 15,87:
$ 1.97 0.7¢ % 06: $ 0.9C
$ 1.7¢ 071 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.84
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Selected quarterly information for the reportindityrsubsequent to emergence from Chapter 11 batdkyproceedings are not
comparable to the consolidated financial statemfentdhe reporting entity prior to emergence fromaPter 11 bankruptcy proceedings.

24. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries

In connection with the May 27, 2010 Reorganizattbthe Company, Cooper-Standard Automotive In@ (tesuer”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary, issued Senior Notes with a total ppatamount of $450,000. Cooper-Standard Holdingsadnd all wholly-owned domestic
subsidiaries of Cooper-Standard Automotive Ince (Buarantors”) unconditionally guarantee the notés following condensed consolidated
financial data provides information regarding thmahcial position, results of operations, and déslis of the Guarantors. Separate financial
statements of the Guarantors are not presented$eoaanagement has determined that those woulterogterial to the holders of the Senior
Notes. The Guarantors account for their investmigntise no-guarantor subsidiaries on the equity method. Theejpal elimination entries a
to eliminate the investments in subsidiaries amergompany balances and transactions.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Predecessor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)

Sales $ = $ 333.9 $ 404.€ $ 1,286. $ (79.3; $ 1,945.2
Cost of products sol - 288.1 326.9 1,143.3 (79.3 1,679.0
Selling, administration, & engineering expen - 77.4 30.4 91.7 - 199.5
Amortization of intangible: - 10.2 0.9 3.9 - 15.0
Impairment charge - 240.7 31.6 91.2 - 363.5
Restructuring - 4.3 1.0 27.1 - 324
Operating profit (loss - (286.8 13.8 (71.2 - (344.1
Interest expense, net of interest incc - (51.8 - (12.5 - (64.3,
Equity earnings - 0.1 15 2.4 - 4.0
Reorganization items, n - 17.4 - - - (17.4,
Other income (expense), r - 23.4 (1.4 (12.1 - 9.9
Income (loss) before income tax - (332.5 13.9 (93.3 - (411.9
Provision for income tax expense (bene - 65.0 2.7 (118.0 - (55.7,
Income (loss) before equity in income (loss) ofsdiaries - (397.5 16.6 24.7 - (356.2
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiar (356.1 41.4 - - 314.7 -
Consolidated net income (los (356.1 (356.1 16.6 24.7 314.7 (356.2
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Net income (loss) attributable to Coo-Standard Holdings Inc $ (356.1 $ (356.1 $ 16.6 $ 24.8 $ 314.7 $ (356.1
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Five Months Ended May 31, 2010

Sales

Cost of products sol

Selling, administration, & engineering expen
Amortization of intangible:

Restructuring

Operating profit (loss

Interest expense, net of interest incc

Equity earnings

Reorganization items, n

Other income (expens

Income before income tax

Provision for income tax expense (bene
Income before equity in income of subsidial
Equity in net income of subsidiari
Consolidated net incon

Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter

Net income attributable to Cooj-Standard Holdings In¢

Predecessor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)
= $ 1795 $ 223.1 $ 650.8 $ (44.3, $ 1,009.1
- 154.2 181.7 540.6 (44.3, 832.2
- 41.9 - 50.2 - 92.1
- 0.2 - 0.1 - 0.3
- 0.1 0.1 5.7 - 5.9
- (16.9 41.3 54.2 - 78.6
- (32.7 - (118 - (44.5
- - 2.6 1.0 - 3.6
- 160.0 2.7) 146.1 - 303.4
- 4.2 0.4 (25.8 - (21.2
- 114.6 41.6 163.7 - 319.9
- 39.5 (35.2 35.6 - 39.9
- 75.1 76.8 128.1 - 280.0
279.7 204.6 - - (484.3 -
279.7 279.7 76.8 128.1 (484.3 280.0
- - - 0.3 - (0.3
$ 279.7 $ 279.7 $ 76.8 $ 127.i $ (484.3 $ 279.7

113



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Seven Months Ended December 31, 2010

Successor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)
Sales $ = $ 248.7 $ 333.2 $ 883.! $ (60.8; $ 1,405.(
Cost of products sol - 212.5 269.8 750.9 (60.8' 1,172.4
Selling, administration, & engineering expen - 79.7 9.4 70.4 - 159.5
Amortization of intangible: - 6.5 - 25 - 9.0
Restructuring - 0.2 0.2 0.1 - 0.5
Operating profit (loss - (50.2) 53.8 60.0 - 63.6
Interest expense, net of interest incc - (21.2 - (3.8) - (25.0;
Equity earnings - 0.2 1.9 1.3 - 3.4
Other income (expense), r - 33.2 0.4 (29.4 - 4.2
Income (loss) before income tax - (38.0! 56.1 28.1 - 46.2
Provision for income tax expense (bene - (5.0 7.3 2.8 - 5.1
Income (loss) before equity in income (loss) ofsdiaries - (33.0 48.8 25.3 - 41.1
Equity in net income of subsidiari 40.6 73.6 - - (114.2 -
Consolidated net incon 40.6 40.6 48.8 25.3 (114.2 41.1
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter - - - (0.5) - (0.5)
Net income attributable to Cool-Standard Holdings In $ 40.6 $ 40.6 $ 48.8 $ 24.8 $ (114.2 $ 40.6
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Successor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)

Sales $ = $ 498.4 $ 607.5 $ 1,888.: $ (140.6 $ 2,853.t
Cost of products sol - 407.8 495.1 1,640.6 (140.6 2,402.9
Selling, administration, & engineering expen - 109.8 0.6 147.2 - 257.6
Amortization of intangible: - 11.1 - 4.5 - 15.6
Restructuring - 0.4 5.9 45.9 - 52.2
Operating profit (loss - (30.7, 105.9 50.0 - 125.2
Interest expense, net of interest incc - (28.5, - (12.0 - (40.5
Equity earnings - 1.2 1.0 3.2 - 5.4
Other income (expense), r - 44.1 13.0 (49.9 - 7.2
Income (loss) before income tax - (13.9 119.9 (8.7 - 97.3
Provision for income tax expense (bene - (0.8) 6.1 15.5 - 20.8
Income (loss) before equity in income of subsidis - (13.1 113.8 (24.2' - 76.5
Equity in net income of subsidiari 102.8 115.9 - - (218.7 -
Consolidated net income (los 102.8 102.8 113.8 (24.2 (218.7 76.5
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter - - - 26.3 - 26.3
Net income attributable to Cooj-Standard Holdings In $ 102.8 $ 102.8 $ 113.€ $ 2.1 $ (218.7 $ 102.8
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2010

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid Expense
Other
Total current asse
Investments in affiliates and intercompany accqumsg
Property, plant, and equipment, |
Goodwill
Other asset

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Debt payable within one ye
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Redeemable noncontrolling inter
Preferred Stoc
Total Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. stockhold’ equity
Noncontrolling interes
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit'

Successor

Consolidatec

Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals

(dollars in millions)

¢ = $ 163.( $ = $ AELE $ = $ 294t
- 54.2 72.€ 254.( - 380.¢
- 17.4 28.2 76.2 - 122.C
- 4.2 0.€ 15.2 - 20.1
- 16.4 (5.2 29.€ - 40.€
- 255.¢ 96.2 506.¢ - 858.:
560.5 384.t 934.t (206.6) (1,623.9) 49.1
- 68.1 71. 449.¢ - 589.t
- 111.1 - 25.¢ - 137.C
- 105.7 (8.5) 122.7 - 219.¢
¢ 560.f § 924.¢ $ 1,093.¢ $ 898.t $  (1,623.9) $ 1,853.¢
¢ - ¢ - $ - $ 19.€ $ - $ 19.€
- 34.2 25.F 1215 - 181.¢
- 79.¢ 11.2 116.2 - 207.%
- 114.( 36.7 257.¢ - 408.t
- 450.( - 6.8 - 456.¢
- 153.7 5.¢ 129.2 - 288.¢
- 717.% 42.¢€ 393.¢ - 1,154.:
- - - 6.2 - 6.2
- 130.: - - - 130.2
560.5 76.€ 1,051.: 495.¢ (1,623.9) 560.5
- - - 2.6 - 2.6
560.£ 76.€ 1,051. 498.¢ (1,623.9) 563.]
¢ 560.! § 924. $ 1,093. $ 898.! $  (1,623.) $ 1,853.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2011

Successor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel ¢ = ¢ 189.6 ¢ = $ 172.1 $ = $ 3617
Accounts receivable, n - 66.8 74.8 292.3 - 433.9
Inventories - 18.8 24.2 96.7 - 139.7
Prepaid expenst - 5.2 0.4 20.7 - 26.3
Other - 23.1 2.0 18.8 - 43.9
Total current asse - 303.5 101.4 600.6 - 1,005.5
Investments in affiliates and intercompany accqumsg 597.9 290.9 1,050.0 (164.9) (1,719.5) 54.4
Property, plant, and equipment, | - 77.8 64.6 477.3 - 619.7
Goodwill - 111.1 - 25.3 - 136.4
Other asset - 97.6 (5.8) 96.0 - 187.8
§ 597.9 $ 880.9 $ 1,210.2 $ 1,034.3 $ (1,719.5 $ 2,003.8
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Debt payable within one ye ¢ - ¢ - ¢ - $ 33.1 ¢ - $ 33.1
Accounts payabl - 48.3 30.9 177.5 - 256.7
Accrued liabilities - 48.9 9.0 135.3 - 193.2
Total current liabilities - 97.2 39.9 345.9 - 483.0
Long-term debt - 450.0 - 5.6 - 455.6
Other liabilities - 164.1 5.9 153.8 - 323.8
Total liabilities - 711.3 45.8 505.3 - 1,262.4
Redeemable noncontrolling inter - - - 14.3 - 14.3
Preferred stoc - 125.9 - - - 125.9
Total Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. stockhold’ equity 597.9 43.7 1,164.4 511.4 (1,719.5) 597.9
Noncontrolling interes - - - 3.3 - 3.3
Total equity 597.9 43.7 1,164.4 514.7 (1,719.5) 601.2
Total liabilities and equit $ 597.9 $ 880.9 $ 1,210.2 $ 1,034.3 ¢ (1,719.5) $ 2,003.8
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Predecessor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi ¢ - $ (329 9.1 $ 153.1 $ - $ 129.9
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant, and equipme - (4.3) (7.0 (34.8; - (46.1
Fixed asset procee! - - 0.2 0.4 - 0.6
Net cash used in investing activiti - (4.3) (6.8) (34.4, - (45.5
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in shc-term deb - 81.7 - 96.5 - 178.2
Principal payments on lo-term debi - (2.3) - 9.3 - (11.6;
Repurchase of bont - 0.7 - - - (0.7
Other - 10.5 (1.7) (8.6) - 0.2
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi - 89.2 1.7) 78.6 - 166.1
Effects of exchange rate changes on « - (1.1) 0.1 19.3 - 18.3
Changes in cash and cash equival - 515 0.7 216.6 - 268.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ - 40.0 - 715 - 111.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ - $ 91.5 0.7 $ 288.1 $ - $ 380.2
Depreciation and amortization $ = $ 26.€ 22.3 $ 64.7 $ = $ 113.8
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant, and equipme

Fixed asset procee!

Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in shc-term debt

Principal payments on lo-term deb

Proceeds from issuance of stc

Debt issuance cos

Proceeds from issuance of lc-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Effects of exchange rate changes on «
Changes in cash and cash equival

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Depreciation and amortization

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant, and equipme

Fixed asset procee:

Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in shc-term debr

Principal payments on lo-term deb

Other

Net cash used in financing activiti
Effects of exchange rate changes on «
Changes in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

For the Five Months Ended May 31, 2010

Predecessor

Consolidatec

Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals

(dollars in millions)
- $ (122.8 $ (0.3 $ 47.7 $ - $ (75.4
- (3.0) (4.0 (15.9 - (22.9
- - 3.6 0.2 - 3.8
- (3.0 (0.4) (15.7 - (19.1
- (75.0 - (102.1 - a77.1
- (595.5 - (114.0 - (709.5
- 355.0 - - - 355.0
- (30.9; - 0.1) - (31.0,
. 450.0 - - - 450.0
- 103.6 - (216.2 - (112.6
- (0.3 - 5.8 - 5.5
- (22.5, 0.7) (178.4 - (201.6
- 91.5 0.7 288.1 - 380.3
= & 69.0 $ = $ 109.7 $ = $ 178.7
- $ 6.5 $ 6.6 $ 22.6 $ - $ 35.7
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Seven Months Ended December 31, 2010
Successor

Consolidatec

Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals

(dollars in millions)

$ 3.2 $ 65.C $ 6.3 $ 96.1 $ - $ 170.€
- (10.2, (6.3) (37.9 - (54.4,
- 2.3 - 0.3 - 2.6
- (7.9) 6.3 (37.6, - (51.8
- - - 3.9 - 3.9
> (0.1) = (2.0) = (2.1
(3.2 37.0 - (37.0 - 3.2
3.2 36.9 - (35.1 - 1.4)
- - - (1.6) - (1.6)
- 94.0 - 21.8 - 115.8
- 69.0 - 109.7 - 178.7
$ = $§ 163.0 $ = $ 1315 $ = $ 294.5
$ - $ 17.1 $ 10.3 $ 39.3 $ - $ 66.7

Depreciation and amortization
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Successor
Consolidatec
Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Totals
(dollars in millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi ¢ 7.1 ¢ 31.7 $ (2.3) $ 135.8 $ - $ 172.3
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant, and equipme - (23.1 (13.4 (71.8 - (108.3
Acquisition of business., plus cash acqui - - - 28.4 - 28.4
Investment in affiliate: - (10.5 - - - (10.5
Proceeds from partial sale of joint vent - - 16.0 - - 16.0
Proceeds from the sale of ass - - 0.5 0.1 - 0.6
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi - (33.6 3.1 (43.3 - (73.8
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in shc-term debt - - - (5.8) - (5.8)
Principal payments on lo-term deb - - - (4.0 - (4.0
Repurchase of preferred stc - (7.5) - - - (7.5)
Other (7.1) 36.0 (0.8) (35.4 - (7.3)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (7.1) 28.5 (0.8) (45.2 - (24.6;
Effects of exchange rate changes on « - - - (6.7) - (6.7)
Changes in cash and cash equival - 26.6 - 40.6 - 67.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe - 163.0 - 131.5 - 294.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe b > § 189.6 $ = $ 172.1 $ > $ 361.7
Depreciation and amortization ¢ - $ 28.5 $ 16.3 $ 79.2 $ - $ 124.1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Dollar amounts in thousands except note 24, paresand share amounts)

25. Accounts Receivable Factoring

As a part of its working capital management, thenPany sells certain receivables through third pfingncial institutions without
recourse. The amount sold varies each month bas#dteamount of underlying receivables and cask fleeds of the Company.

At December 31, 2010 and 2011 (excluding the FMEArgyements discussed below), the Company had $883d $59,559,
respectively, outstanding under receivable trarsfigeements entered into by various locations.tdtad amount of accounts receivable
factored was $40,592 for the five months ended Btgy2010, $70,297 for the seven months ended Deze@ih 2010 and $157,526 for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The Company incartesk on the sale of receivables of $377, $71354iB5 for the five months end
May 31, 2010, the seven months ended Decembel030, &nd the year ended December 31, 2011, resplyctiliese amounts are recorded in
other income (expense) and interest expense iodhgolidated statements of operations. These angitped transactions under the Company’s
credit agreement.

As part of the FMEA joint venture, SPBT had certf@ictoring arrangements with and without recowdgch are included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, asudised below.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had $13,865andstg under receivable transfer agreements withurse. The recourse amount is
recorded in debt payable within one year. The @mtabunt of accounts receivable factored was $58@5he year ended December 31, 2011.
The Company incurred a loss on the sale of rectdsalf $363 for the year ended December 31, 2GEsetamounts are recorded in other
income (expense) and interest expense in the ddased statement of operations.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had $31,270andstg under receivable transfer agreements wittemgturse. The total amount of
accounts receivable factored was $99,964 for tae geded December 31, 2011. The Company incurlessaon the sale of receivables of
$412 for the year ended December 31, 2011, thesarmiare recorded in other income (expense) datest expense in the consolidated
statement of operations.

26. Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Compas evaluated events and transactions for pateatiognition or disclosure through
the date the financial statements were issued.
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SCHEDULE I

Balance at

beginning

Description of period

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(dollars in millions)

Charged to
Other

Changes Expenses

Charged
(credited)
to other

accounts (a) Deductions

Balance at
end of
period

Allowance for doubtful
accounts deducted from
accounts receivab

Year ended December 31,
2009- Predecesst¢ $ 4.

Five months ended May 31,

2010- Predecessc $
Seven months ended

December 31, 2010 -

Successa $ -
Year ended December 31,

2011- Successa $

5.8

1.C

Inventory reserve accou
deducted from inventorie

Year ended December &

2009- Predecessc¢ $
Five months ended May 31,

2010- Predecessc $
Seven months ended

December 31,

2010- Successa $ -
Year ended December 31,

2011- Successo $

(@) Primarily foreign currency translatio

(b)

14.2

17.2

2.5

(B3.7)0 0.2)

- 10.9

(17.6© 2.9

= 1.9

- 15.3

“Other Change” includes fres-start accounting adjustments of $3.7 milli

(c) “Other Change’ includes fres-start accounting adjustments of $17.6 milli

Description

Balance at
beginning
of period

2.5 (1.6)

(1.0) (0.9)

0.1 -

(0.9) (0.9)

1.1 (9.0)

(1.3) (1.2)

(0.5) -

Additions

Charged tc Charged tc

Income Equity Deductions

&

5.8

1.C

3.C

Balance at
end of
period

Tax valuation allowanc

Year ended December 31, 2C- Predecessc
Five months ended May 31, 20- Predecessc
Seven months ended December 31,

2010- Successo
Year ended December 31, 2(- Successa

175.2
210.6

161.8
155.4

8 A 8 A
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39.9
(38.9

(4.5) -
(9.9) -

(3.5)
(10.8

(2.9 -
7.8 -

8 A &8 A

210.¢
161.8

155.4
152.4
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company has evaluated, under the supervisionih the participation of the Company’s managetieicluding the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officéhe effectiveness of the Company’s disclosurdrotsiand procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of Decembe2(®ll]. Based on that evaluation, the Company’sf@&xecutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Compansslosure controls and procedures were effeetsvef December 31, 2011.

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controf éimancial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Binthe supervision and with the participation &f @ompany’s management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finafficer, the Company conducted an evaluatiothefeffectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting based on the frameworlnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued byG@oenmittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basetherevaluation under the framework in Internal Calrt-Integrated Framework,
management concluded that the Company’s intermataoover financial reporting was effective asi#cember 31, 2011.

The attestation report of the Compasyyidependent registered public accounting firmarégng internal control over financial reporting
set forth in item 8. “Consolidated Financial Stagerns and Supplementary Date,” under the captiop6Ref Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm on Internal control over FinandRéporting” and incorporated herein by reference.

There was no change in the Company’s internal obaotrer financial reporting that occurred during fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2011 that has materially affecteds ogasonably likely to materially affect, the Caang’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART IlI

ltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

Information concerning the Company’s directors pooate governance guidelines, Compensation Conerattd Governance Committee
appears in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statenfiemits 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders untter headings “The BoarslCommittee
and Their Functions” and “Corporate Governance” iaridcorporated herein by reference. Informationaerning the Company’s executive
officers is contained at the end of Part | of thiswual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “ExeeuOfficers.”

Audit Committee

Information regarding the Audit Committee, incluglithe identification of the Audit Committee membarsl the “audit committee
financial expert,” appears in the Company’s defiritProxy Statement for its 2012 Annual Meetingstdckholders under the headings “The
Board’s Committees and Their Functions” and “Cogb@iGovernance” and is incorporated herein by eefse.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of The Exchange Act

Information regarding compliance with Section 16{a)he Exchange Act appears in the Company’s definProxy Statement for its
2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the hegsli‘'Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportimap®liance” and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company’s Code of Business Ethics and Condgites to all of the Company’officers, directors and employees and is avaidlab
the Company’s website at http://www.cooperstandard.. To access this information, first click on “Intes” and then click on “Code of
Conduct” of the Company’s website.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

Information regarding executive and director congagion, Compensation Committee Interlocks and Brdrhrticipation, and the
Compensation Committee Report appears in the Coyp'gdefinitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 Anniéeting of Stockholders under the
headings “Compensation Discussion & Analysis,” “Bixéve Compensation” and “Director Compensationd @&incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

Information concerning the security ownership at&i@ beneficial owners and management of the Caorylparoting securities and
equity securities appears in the Company’s defi@iBroxy Statement for its 2012 Annual Meeting twfcRholders, under the heading “Stock
Ownership” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Detdger 31, 2011 regarding the Company’s equity corsaion plans, all of which have
been approved by the Company’s security holders:

Number of securities

Weighted average available for future
Number of securities exercise price of issuance under equity
to be issued upon exercise outstanding options compensation plans
(excluding securities
outstanding options, warrants and rights reflected in column (a)
warrants and rights
Compensation Plat (@ (b) (©

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holder: 936,13! Q) $ 29.11 2 777,326
Equity compensation

plans not approved

by security holder - - -

Total 936,135 $ 29.11 777,326

(1) Consists of 819,928 shares underlying outstandimgkoptions (whether vested or unvested); and2liconverted common shal
related to 27,083 underlying time-vested restrigieferred stock. All stock based compensationssussed in Note 20. “Stock-Based
Compensatiol” of the notes to the consolidated financial statds

(2) There is no cost to the recipient for shares ispueduant to conversion of restricted preferredistBecause there is no strike pr
applicable to these stock awards they are exclérdadthe weighted-average exercise price whichgiestsolely to outstanding stock
options.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence
Information regarding transactions with relatedspes appears in the Company’s definitive Proxyestant for its 2012 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders under the heading “The Board’s Cattemand Their Functions” and is incorporated tmeby reference.

Information regarding the independence of the Camisadirectors appears in the Company’s definitrexy Statement for its 2012
Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the headingrfforate Governance” and is incorporated hereirefgrence.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

Information regarding the Company’s independenitaudppears in the Company’s definitive Proxy &taent for its 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “CerRetationships and Related Transactions” and isrparated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Annual ReporEorm 10-K:

(1) Financial Statement

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistdPeitblic Accounting Firn

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegisigPeiblic Accounting Firm, Internal Control over &ircial
Reporting

Consolidated statements of operations for the geded December 31, 2009, the five months ended 8132010, the
seven months ended December 31, 2010 and the yéed ®ecember 31, 20:

Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,8l December 31, 20:

Consolidated statements of changes in equity (tefiae the year ended December 31, 2009, therfiemths ended
May 31, 2010, the seven months ended Decembel030, &nd the year ended December 31, :

Consolidated statements of cash flows for the gaded December 31, 2009, the five months ended3ag010, tht
seven months ended December 31, 2010 and the ydad ®ecember 31, 20:

Notes to consolidated financial stateme

2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

All other financial statement schedules are notiiregl under the related instructions or are inaglie and therefore
have been omittet

3. The Exhibits listed on tt*Index to Exhibit” are filed herewith or are incorporated by refereme@dicated belov
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Exhibit No.
2.1*

3.1*

3.2%

3.3*

4.1*

4.2*

4.3*

4.4

4.5*

4.6*

4.7
10.1*

Index to Exhibits

Description of Exhibit

Debtors’ Second Amended Joint Chapter 11 Plan of ganization, dated March 26, 2010 (incorporateddgrence to
Exhibit 2.1 to Coope-Standard Holdings In's Current Report on Forn-K filed May 24, 2010)

Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponeof Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., dated MayZ¥10
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Coeptandard Holdings Inc.’s Registration StatemenForm S4 (File No.
333-168316)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Cooper-Standardiftyddnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ®Zooper-
Standard Holdings In’s Registration Statement on For-1 (File No. 33-168316)).

Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Certificate of Deaigpns 7% Cumulative Participating Convertible Bregd Stock
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Coeptandard Holdings Inc.’s Registration StatemenForm S4 (File No.
33:-168316)).

Indenture, €1/ 2% Senior Notes due 2018, dated as of May 11, 28dfiyeen CSA Escrow Corporation and U.S. B
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddfgnence to Exhibit 4.1 to Cool-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Registration
Statement on Form-1 (File No. 33-168316)).

Supplemental Indenture, Senior Notes due 2018ddeef May 27, 2010, among Cooper-Standard Autiwadrnc.,
Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., the subsidiarieSadperStandard Automotive Inc. set forth on the signapage there!
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee utigeindenture (incorporated by reference to ExHili to Cooper-
Standard Holdings In’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2010, by and among CSA Escrow Corporation and ReatBank
Securities Inc. (incorporated by reference to Eitlit8 to Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s RegishraStatement on
Form &-1 (File No. 33-168316)).

Joinder to Registration Rights Agreement, dated RIay2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitté.Zoope-
Standard Holdings In’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2P10, by and among Cooper-Standard Holdings Ihe.Backstop
Purchasers and the other holders party theretorfiocated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Coopemn&sad Holdings Incs
Current Report on Form-K filed June 3, 2010

Warrant Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2010, betv@mope-Standard Holdings Inc. and Computershare Inc.
Computershare Trust Company, N.A., collectivelyMarrant Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhbit to Cooper-
Standard Holdings In's Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Form of 81/ 2% Senior Notes due 2018 (included in Exhibit 4

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of May 2I028mong Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., Coopendsial
Automotive Inc., Cooper-Standard Automotive Canhitaited, the other guarantors party thereto, carfamancial
institutions as lenders and Bank of America, Nas. Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.Cooper-Standard
Holdings Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.2*

10.3*t

10.4*t

10.5*t

10.6*t

10.7*t

10.8*t

10.9*t

10.10*t

10.12*f

10.13*F

10.14*

10.15*%

10.16*t

Escrow Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2010, byasmdng CSA Escrow Corporation, Coc-Standard Automotive Inc
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, and Bk National Association, as escrow agent (iporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Coop«Standard Holdings In's Registration Statement on For-1 (File No. 33-168316)).

Fourth Amended and Restated Employment Agreemateddiuly 1, 2008, by and among Cooper-Standardmative Inc.
and James S. McElya (incorporated by referencexkibi 10.18 to Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s AahReport on Form
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 200&rtyamong Coop-Standard Automotive Inc. and Edward A. Ha
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Gaetandard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Report on FofKlfor the fiscal
year ended December 31, 20C

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008nd among Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. areinAl. Campbell
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to GareBtandard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Report on FolsKlfor the fiscal
year ended December 31, 20(

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008nd among Coog-Standard Automotive Inc. and Keith
Stephenson (incorporated by reference to ExhibR3.@ Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Annual RéparForm 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. Executive SeverdaePlan effective January 1, 2011 (incorporateteference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Coop«Standard Holdings In's Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Coope-Standard Automotive Inc. Deferred Compensation Riffective January 1, 2005 with Amendments thra
December 31, 2008 (incorporated by reference taliixt0.33 to Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s AninReport on Form
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008nd among Cooper-Standard Inc. and Timothy Wetmn
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Caepmndard Holdings Inc.’s Quarterly Report on FA®Q for the quarterl
period ended March 31, 201!

Coope-Standard Automotive Inc. Supplemental ExecutivarBetent Plan, effective January 1, 2011 (incorpextdty
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Cooper-Standard Hhgdilnc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgear ended
December 31, 2010

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. Nonqualified Suppatary Benefit Plan, Amended and Restated ashofaig 1, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to GareBtandard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Report on FolsKlfor the fiscal
year ended December 31, 201

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. Long-Term IncenfNan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10d&boper-Standard
Holdings Inc’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Commitment Agreement, dated as of March 19, 20&flyéen Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. and certaikdtap parties
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to GareBtandard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Report on FoleKlfor the fiscal
year ended December 31, 20(C

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008nd between Coof-Standard Automotive Inc. and Michael
Verwilst (incorporated by reference to Exhibit @6 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Reportorm 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 20(

Form of Amendment to Employment Agreement, effectlanuary 1, 2011 (incorporated by reference tabixt0.16 to
Coope-Standard Holdings In's Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.17*%

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*%

10.23*t

10.24*t

10.25*F

10.26*

10.27*F

10.28*f

2011 Coope-Standard Automotive Inc. Annual Incentive Plan @imorated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Co-Standarc
Holdings Inc’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Director Nomination Agreement, made as of May Z¥,® among Coop-Standard Holdings Inc. and Barclays Capital,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Ca-Standard Holdings In’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Director Nomination Agreement, made as of May Z¥,® among Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. and Siaént Capital,
L.P., on behalf of its affiliates and related furfolecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Garetandard Holdings Inc.’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed June 3, 2010

Director Nomination Agreement, made as of May Z¥,® among Coop-Standard Holdings Inc. and Oak Hill Advisors L
on behalf of certain funds and separate accouatsttmanages (incorporated by reference to Exiibid to Cooper-Standard
Holdings Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Director Nomination Agreement, made as of May Z¥1® among Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. and Qdpéaearch and
Management Company, as investment advisor to oefdads it manages, TCW Shared Opportunity Fund.l¥?,, TCW
Shared Opportunity Fund IVB, L.P., TCW Shared Opputy Fund V, L.P., TD High Yield Income Fund, ahdrd, Abbett &
Co. LLC, as investment manager on behalf of mtigients (incorporated by reference to Exhibib1td. Cooper-Standard
Holdings Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010’

2011 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Omnibus Incerfilan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@dl€ooper-Standard
Holdings Inc’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Form of Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. 2011 Omnibus Incentive Ftotk Award Agreement for key employe
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to GareBtandard Holdings Inc.’s Annual Report on FolsKlfor the fiscal
year ended December 31, 201

Form of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. 2011 Omnilmgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemtemtkey
employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibi24@ Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Annual ReparfForm 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 20

Form of Coope-Standard Holdings Inc. 2011 Omnibus Incentive Rastricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for k
employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibi23@o Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Annual ReparfForm 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 201

2010 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Management kinee®lan (incorporated by reference to Exhibitclid. Cooper-
Standard Holdings In’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 3, 2010

Form of 2010 Coop-Standard Holdings Inc. Management Incentive Plandualified Stock Option Agreement for k
employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibi¥ 10.Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Current ReparForm 8-K filed
June 3, 2010

Form of 2010 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Managerrmeentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreenfenkey
employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibi8 16.Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Current ReparForm 8-K filed
June 3, 2010,
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Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit

10.29*t Form of 2010 Coop-Standard Holdings Inc. Management Incentive Plandualified Stock Option Agreement 1
directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit91id. Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Current ReparForm 8-K
filed June 3, 2010

10.30*t Form of 2010 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. Manag#rreentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreenfent
directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl00to Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc.’s Current ReporForm 8-
K filed June 3, 2010

10.31* Settlement Agreement, dated as of March 17, 20igo(porated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Co-Standarc
Holdings Inc’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

12.1** Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg

21.1% List of Subsidiaries

23.1** Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1** Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursudo Exchange Act Rul
13e-14(a)/15-14(a) (Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002)

31.2%* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursita¢o Exchange Act Rul
13z-14(a)/15-14(a) (Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002)

32.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 13t
(Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002)

32.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbal-OxleyAct of 2002).

101.INS*** XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docun

101.LAB*** XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.PRE*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Previously filed.

**  Filed herewith

***  Submitted electronically with the Repc

T Management contracts and compensation plans argamaent
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.

Date: March 12, 201 /s/ James S. McEly

James S. McEly
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Direc
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed beloWMarch 12, 2012 by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capecitidicated.

Signature Title

/sl James S. McElya Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Director
James S. McEly

/s/ Allen J. Campbell Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
Allen J. Campbel

/s/ Helen T. Yant. Controller (Principal Accounting Office
Helen T. Yant:

/s/ Orlando A. Busto Director
Orlando A. Busto:

/s/ Larry J. Jutti Director
Larry J. Jutte

/sl Jeffrey E. Kir Director
Jeffrey E. Kirt

/s/ David J. Mastrocol Director
David J. Mastrocol:

/s Stephen A. Van Ot Director
Stephen A. Van Os

/s/ Kenneth L. Wa Director
Kenneth L. Way
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Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges ad Preferred Stock Dividends
(In millions, except ratio of earnings to fixed chages)

Exhibit 12.1

Predecessor Successor
Five Months Seven Months
Ended Ended Year Ended
Year Ended December 31 May 31, December 31, December 31
2007 2008 2009 2010 2010 2011
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (117.5 $ (933 $ (4119 $ 319.9 3 46.2 $ 97.3
Less:
Income from equity method investme (2.2) (0.9) (4.0) (3.6) (3.4) (5.4)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befo@me taxes

and income or loss from equity investme (119.7 (94.2 (415.9 316.3 42.8 91.9
Plus:

Fixed charges, excluding preferred stock dividesgliremen 104.8 108.2 73.6 48.3 29.8 53.3
Earnings available for fixed charg $§ (149 $§ 140 $ (3423 8 364. $ 72. $ 145.2
Fixed charges

Interest expens $ 974 ¢ 100.5 $§ 66.5 $ 45.2 3 25.9 $ 45.4

Estimated interest factor for rent 7.4 7.7 7.1 31 3.9 7.9

Preferred stock dividend requireme - - - - 4.7 7.3
Fixed charge $ 104.8 ¢ 108.2 $§ 736 $ 48.3 $ 34.5 $ 60.6
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges anéepred stock

dividends - - - 7.5 21 24
Fixed charges in excess of earnings $ 119.7 $ 942 $ 4159 ¢ - $ - $ -

(1) Earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charggssth19.7 million, $94.2 million and $415.9 millidar the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 an@, 266pectively



Subsidiaries of CoopefrStandard Holdings Inc. @

Subsidiary Name
Coope-Standard Automotive (Australia) Pty. Li
Coope-Standard Automotive FHS (Australia) Pty. L
CSA (Barbados) Investment Co. L
Coope-Standard Automotive Belgium N
Coope-Standard Automotive Brasil Sealing Ltc
Itatiaia Standard Industrial Ltd
Coope-Standard Automotive Canada Limit
Cooper Saiyang Wuhu Automotive Co., Ltd. (94.:
Coope-Standard Automotive (Kunshan) Co., L
Coope-Standard (Suzhou) Automotive Co., L
Coope-Standard Chongqing Automotive Co., L
Coope-Standard Jingda (Jingzhou) Automotive Co., Ltd %3
Coope-Standard Jingda Changchun Automotive Co., Ltd. (8
Huayt-Cooper Standard Sealing Systems Co., Ltd. (47
Coope-Standard Automotive Ceska Republika s.
Coope-Standard Automotive FHS Ceska republika s
Coope-Standard Automotive FHS In
Coope-Standard Automotive Fluid Systems Mexico Holding
CS Automotive LLC
NISCO Holding Compan
Nishikawa Cooper LLC (40%
StanTech, Inc
Sterling Investments Compal
Coope-Standard Automotive France S.A
Cooper Standard France S,
Coope-Standard Automotive (Deutschland) Gm
CSA Beteiligungen (Deutschland) Gml
CSA Germany GmbH & Co. K¢
CSA Germany Verwaltungs Gmk
CSA Holding (Deutschland) Gmb
Diorama Grundstiicksverwatungsgesellschaft mbH &\Wawmietungs KG (50%
Metzeler Automotive Profile Systems Gml|
Metzeler Kautschuk Unterstuetzungskasse Gr
Metzeler Technical Rubber Systems G
Sujan Barre Thomas AVS Private Limited (50
Coope-Standard Automotive India Private Limit
Metzeler Automotive Profiles India Private Limit€t4%)
CSA ltaly Holdings SrlL
Coope-Standard Automotive Italy Sp
Cooper Standard Automotive Japan K
Coope-Standard Automotive Korea In
Guyoung Technology Co. Ltd. (20¢
Coopermex, S.A. de C.\
Coope-Standard Automotive de Mexico Fluid Services, SRde de C.V.
Coope-Standard Automotive de Mexico S.A. de C
Coope-Standard Automotive FHS, S.A. de C

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of Organization
Australia
Australia
Barbados
Belgium
Brazil
Brazil
Canade
China
China
China
China
China
China
China
Czech Republi
Czech Republi
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
France
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
India
India
India
Italy

Italy
Japar
Korea
Korea
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico



Subsidiary Name

Coope-Standard Automotive Fluid Systems de Mexico, SRde de C.V.

Coope-Standard Automotive Sealing de Mexico, S.A. de G80%)
Coope-Standard Automotive Services, S.A. de C
Manufacturera El Jarudo, S. de R.L. de C
Coope-Standard de Mexico S de RL de (

Westborn Service Center, Ir

Coope-Standard Automotive NC L.L.C
Coope-Standard Automotive In

Coope-Standard Automotive OH, LL!

CSA Services Inc

CSF Poland z o.c

Coope-Standard Automotive Polska Sp. z ¢
Coope-Standard Automotive Piotrkow sp z

Metzeler Automotive Profile Systems Polska sp
Wahabi Investments Sp. z o

Coope-Standard Romania SF

Coope-Standard Automotive Espafa, S
Coope-Standard Rockford Inc

North America Rubber, Incorporat

Nishikawa Tachaplalert Cooper Ltd. (20
Coope-Standard Automotive International Holdings B
CSA International Holdings C.\

CSA International Holdings Cooperative U.
Coope-Standard Automotive (UK) Pension Trust Limit
Coope-Standard Automotive UK Limite
Coope-Standard Automotive UK Sealing Limite

®

2

Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2012; wh-owned except as otherwise indica

Jurisdiction of Organization
Mexico

Mexico

Mexico

Mexico

Mexico
Michigan

North Caroling
Ohio

Ohio

Ohio

Poland

Poland

Poland

Poland

Poland
Romanis

Spain
Tennesse
Texas

Thailand

The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-3 File No. 333-B75&nd Form S-8 File No. 333-175635)
of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. of our reporteda¥larch 12, 2012 with respect to the 2011 conateidi financial statements and schedule
of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. and the effectdgsnof internal control over financial reportingGdoper-Standard Holdings Inc. as of

December 31, 2011 included in this Annual Repoottfi- 10-K).
/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
March 12, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
Certification of the Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
(Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, James S. McElya, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Coope-Standard Holdings Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’'s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably like to materially affect, the regist’'s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anbldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralsrdinancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: March 12, 2012 /sl James S. McEly

James S. McEly
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 31.2

COOPER-STANDARD HOLDINGS INC.
Certification of the Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
(Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Allen J. Campbell, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Coope-Standard Holdings Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’'s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably like to materially affect, the regist’'s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anbldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralsrdinancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: March 12, 2012 /sl Allen J. Campbe

Allen J. Campbel
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, the undersigrfeobf Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. (the “Comyarereby certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that the Company’s Annual Report on FbfaK for the year ended December 31, 2011 (thetR®) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applcads the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thatnformation contained in the Report
fairly presents, in all material respects, theficial condition and results of operations of therpany.

Dated: March 12, 2012 /sl James S. McEly
James S. McEly
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

The foregoing certification (i) accompanies thefiland is being furnished solely pursuant to 18.0. Sec. 1350, (ii) will not be deemed
“filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglaict of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liabibf that section, and (iii) will not k
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgfilnder the Securities Act of 1933 or the ExcleaAgt, except to the extent that the
registrant specifically incorporates it by referenc

A signed original of this written statement reqdif®y Section 906, or other document authenticatiegnowledging, or otherwise adopting the

signature that appears in typed form within thetetaic version of this written statement requibgdSection 906, has been provided to Cooper

Standard Holdings Inc. and will be retained by Gaetandard Holdings Inc. and furnished to the 8tes and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, the undersigrfeobf Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. (the “Comyarereby certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that the Company’s Annual Report on FbfaK for the year ended December 31, 2011 (thetR®) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applcais the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thatnformation contained in the Report
fairly presents, in all material respects, theficial condition and results of operations of therpany.

Dated: March 12, 2012 /sl Allen J. Campbe
Allen J. Campbel
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

The foregoing certification (i) accompanies thefiland is being furnished solely pursuant to 18.0. Sec. 1350, (ii) will not be deemed
“filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglaict of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liabibf that section, and (iii) will not k
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgfilnder the Securities Act of 1933 or the ExcleaAgt, except to the extent that the
registrant specifically incorporates it by referenc

A signed original of this written statement reqdif®y Section 906, or other document authenticatiegnowledging, or otherwise adopting the

signature that appears in typed form within thetetaic version of this written statement requibgdSection 906, has been provided to Cooper

Standard Holdings Inc. and will be retained by Gaetandard Holdings Inc. and furnished to the 8tes and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon reques



